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For the period ended Mar 31, 2015

Currency (indicate
units, if applicable) Php

Balance Sheet

Period Ended Fiscal Year Ended (Audited)

Mar 31, 2015 Dec 31, 2014

Current Assets 946,233,486 915,304,235

Total Assets 1,835,986,436 1,810,052,701

Current Liabilities 912,182,021 922,060,443

Total Liabilities 920,614,181 930,681,938

Retained
Earnings/(Deficit) 342,181,068 305,789,976

Stockholders' Equity 915,372,255 879,370,763

Stockholders' Equity - Parent 910,146,720 873,755,628

Book Value per Share 2.54 2.45



Income Statement

Current Year 
(3 Months)

Previous Year 
(3 Months)

Current Year-To-Date Previous Year-To-Date

Operating Revenue 514,824,809 382,387,400 514,824,809 382,387,400

Other Revenue - 719,808 - 719,808

Gross Revenue 514,824,809 383,107,208 514,824,809 383,107,208

Operating Expense 449,750,975 338,469,747 449,750,975 338,469,747

Other Expense 10,633,496 9,073,148 10,633,496 9,073,148

Gross Expense 460,384,471 347,542,895 460,384,471 347,542,895

Net Income/(Loss)
Before Tax 54,440,339 35,564,313 54,440,339 35,564,313

Income Tax Expense 18,438,847 10,662,113 18,438,847 10,662,113

Net Income/(Loss) After
Tax 36,001,492 24,902,200 36,001,492 24,902,200

Net Income Attributable
to
Parent Equity Holder

36,391,093 24,902,200 36,391,093 24,902,200

Earnings/(Loss) Per
Share
(Basic)

0.1 0.07 0.1 0.07

Earnings/(Loss) Per
Share
(Diluted)

0.1 0.07 0.1 0.07

Other Relevant Information

Calata Corporation's Quarterly Report as of March 31, 2015.

Filed on behalf by:

Name Jose Marie Fabella

Designation Corporate Secretary/Corporate Information Officer
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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION 

 

SEC FORM 17-Q 

 

QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 17 OF THE SECURITIES 

 REGULATION CODE AND SRC RULE 17(2)(b) THEREUNDER 
 

 

1.  For the quarterly period ended March 31, 2015 

   

2.   Commission identification number A199911666    3.  BIR Tax Identification No 005-712-797-000 

 

4.  Exact name of issuer as specified in its charter 

  

     Calata Corporation 

 

5.  Province, country or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization Philippines 

  

6.  Industry Classification Code:     (SEC Use Only)  

  

      

.................................................................................................................................. 

 

 

7.   Address of issuer's principal office                                                     Postal Code 

 

      McArthur Highway, Banga 1st, Plaridel, Bulacan   3004 

 

8.  Issuer's telephone number, including area code   

  

     (044) 795 0136 

 

9.  Former name, former address and former fiscal year, if changed since last report  

 

Not Applicable 

 

10. Securities registered pursuant to Sections 8 and 12 of the Code, or Sections 4 and 8 of the RSA  

 

 Title of each Class     Number of shares of common   

                    stock outstanding and amount   

                     of debt outstanding 

 

             Common Shares          359, 827, 000 shares 

 

11.  Are any or all of the securities listed on a Stock Exchange? 

 

 Yes   [ / ]    No   [   ] 

 

If yes, state the name of such Stock Exchange and the class/es of securities listed therein: 

 

Philippine Stock Exchange  Common Shares 



12.  Indicate by check mark whether the registrant:  

 

(a) Has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 17 of the Code and SRC Rule 17 

thereunder or Sections 11 of the RSA and RSA Rule 11(a)-1 thereunder, and Sections 26 and 

141 of the Corporation Code of the Philippines, during the preceding twelve (12) months (or 

for such shorter period the registrant was required to file such reports) 

 

   Yes [ / ]     No   [   ] 

 

 (b) Has been subject to such filing requirements for the past ninety (90) days. 

  

   Yes [ / ]    No   [   ] 

 

 

 

PART I--FINANCIAL INFORMATION  

 

 Item 1. Financial Statements. 

 

  Please see attached interim unaudited financial statements as of 31 March 2015. 

 

 

  

  PART II--OTHER INFORMATION 

   

 The issuer may, at its option, report under this item any information not previously reported in 

a report on SEC Form 17-C.  If disclosure of such information is made under this Part II, it need not be 

repeated in a report on Form 17-C which would otherwise be required to be filed with respect to such 

information or in a subsequent report on Form 17-Q. 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 





 

             
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

 
CALATA CORPORATION AND ITS SUBSIDIARY 

 
 
 

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AS AT MARCH 31, 2015 (UNAUDITED)  
AND DECEMBER 31, 2014 (AUDITED)  

AND FOR THE THREE-MONTH PERIODS ENDED  
MARCH 31, 2015 AND 2014 (UNAUDITED) 

 
 

  



 

CALATA CORPORATION AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES 

          CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

MARCH 31, 2015 (UNAUDITED) AND DECEMBER 31, 2014 (AUDITED) 

 
     

  
 

        Note March 31,2015 
 December 31, 

2014 

     
  

 ASSETS 
 

  
 Current assets 

 
  

 Cash and cash equivalents 9 P339,678,733  P378,513,908 
Trade and other receivables, net 10 270,137,920  268,582,864 
Loans receivable 11 9,650,000  9,650,000 
Inventories 12 168,833,177  153,656,818 
Current biological assets 13 3,344,996  3,344,996 
Advances to related parties 25 150,275,682  97,176,174 
Other current assets 

 
4,312,979  4,379,475 

Total current assets 
 

946,233,486  915,304,235 

  
  

 
   

 Noncurrent assets 
 

   
Noncurrent biological assets 13 56,162,357  56,162,357  
Investment properties 14 392,071,683  392,071,683  
Property and equipment, net 15 434,249,610  439,375,297  
Deferred tax assets 27 3,964,167  3,833,997  
Other noncurrent assets 28 3,305,133  3,305,132  

Total noncurrent assets 
 

889,752,950  894,748,466  

Total assets 
 

P1,835,986,436  P1,810,052,701  

  
       

 
   

 LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 
 

    
Current liabilities 

 
   

Trade and other payables 16 P123,589,195  P132,174,659  
Borrowings 17 697,197,091  714,146,105  
Advances from related parties 25 19,525,588  22,719,986  
Income tax payable 

 
71,870,147  53,019,693  

Total current liabilities 
 

912,182,021  922,060,443  

  
  

 
   

 Noncurrent liabilities 
 

   
Borrowings, net of current portion 17 2,410,570  2,836,408  
Retirement benefit liability 26 5,847,890  5,611,387  
Deferred tax liabilities 27 173,700  173,700  

Total noncurrent liabilities 
 

8,432,160  8,621,495  

Total liabilities 
 

920,614,181  930,681,938  

    
   

 Equity 
 

  
 Equity attributable to owners 

 of the Parent Company 
 

   

Share capital 18 360,112,000  360,112,000  
Share premium 18 209,157,649  209,157,649  
Treasury shares 18 (1,015,190)  (1,015,190) 
Remeasurement loss on retirement 

benefit plans 26 (288,807) 

 
(288,807) 

Retained earnings 
 

342,181,068  305,789,976  

  
910,146,720  873,755,628  

  
  

 Equity attributable to non-controlling 
interests 

 
5,225,534 

 
5,615,135 

Total equity 
 

915,372,255  879,370,763  

Total liabilities and equity 
 

P1,835,986,436  P1,810,052,701  

 (The notes on pages 6 to 84 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.) 

 



 

 
 

 
CALATA CORPORATION AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES 

 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME 
FOR THE THREE-MONTH PERIODS ENDED  
MARCH 31, 2015 AND 2014 (UNAUDITED) 

     

     

 
Note 2015   2014 

        Revenue 19 P505,840,839 
 

P374,590,023 
Cost of sales and services 20 (425,130,393) 

 
   (313,326,357)  

Gross profit 
 

80,710,446 
 

      61,263,666 
Operating expenses 21 (24,620,582) 

 
     (25,143,390)  

Other operating income, net 22 8,983,970 
 

        7,797,377  

Profit from operations 

 

65,073,835 

 

       43,917,653 

Finance income 23 - 
 

            719,808  

Finance costs 24 (10,633,496) 
 

        (9,073,148)  

Profit before tax 
 

54,440,339 
 

       35,564,313 
Provision for income tax  27 (18,438,847) 

 
      (10,662,113)  

Profit for the year 
 

P36,001,492 
 

P24,902,200 

     Profit attributable to: 
    Owners of the Parent Company 
 

P36,391,093 
 

P- 
Non-controlling interests 

 
(389,601) 

 
- 

  
P36,001,492 

 
P- 

     Basic and diluted earnings per share  29 P.10 
 

P0.07  

        (The notes on pages 6 to 84 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.) 

  



 

CALATA CORPORATION AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES 

 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
FOR THE THREE-MONTH PERIODS ENDED  
MARCH 31, 2015 AND 2014 (UNAUDITED) 

        
                Note 2015   2014 

        Profit for the year 
 

P36,001,492 
 

P24,902,200 
Other comprehensive income 

    Item that will not be reclassified to 
profit or loss 

 
- 

 
- 

Remeasurement gain (loss) on defined 
benefit plans, net of tax 

 
- 

 
- 

Total comprehensive income  
 

P36,001,492 
 

P24,902,200 

     Attributable to: 
     Owners of the Parent  
 

P36,391,093 
 

P P24,902,200 
 Non-controlling interests 

 
(389,601) 

 
- 

 
 

P36,001,492 
 

P P24,902,200 

 (The notes on pages 6 to 84 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.) 

  



 

CALATA CORPORATION AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES 
   

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
FOR THE THREE-MONTHS PERIODS ENDED MARCH 31, 2015 AND 2014 (UNAUDITED) 

          
  

  
    

 
 

      
Attributable to owners of the Parent Company  

 
 

    
Note 

 
Share capital 

 

Share 
premium 

 

Treasury 
shares  

Retained 
earnings 

 

Remeasurement 
gain (loss) on 

defined 
benefit plans 

 

Total 

 
Non-

controlling 
interests  Total equity  

          
  

  
    

 
  

At January 1, 2014 
  

P360,112,000  
 

P209,157,649  
 

(P1,015,190)   P178,079,086   (P718,221)   P745,615,324  P-  P745,615,324 
Initial investment 

      
  

  
    3,062,500  3,062,500 

Net income for the three-
month period 

  
- 

 
- 

 
-  24,902,200 

 
-  24,902,200  -  24,902,200 

At March 31, 2014 
  

360,112,000  
 

209,157,649  
 

(1,015,190)   202,981,286 
 

(718,221)  70,517,524  3,062,500  773,580,024 
Net income for the nine-month 

period 
  

- 
 

- 
 

-  102,808,690 
 

-  102,808,690  2,552,635  102,808,690 
Other comprehensive income 

  
- 

 
- 

 
-  - 

 
429,414  429,414  -  - 

At December 31, 2014 
  

360,112,000  
 

209,157,649  
 

(1,015,190)   305,789,976 
 

(288,807)  873,755,628  5,615,135       879,370,763 
Net income for the three-

month period 
  

- 
 

- 
 

-            36,391,093 
 

-  
        

36,391,093   (389,601)  36,001,492 

At March 31, 2015 
  

P360,112,000  
 

P209,157,649  
 

(P1,015,190)   342,181,068 
 

(P288,807)  P910,146,720   5,225,534      P915,372,255 

       
  

  
    

 
  

       
  

  
    

 
  

       
  

 
 

 
   

   (The notes on pages 7 to 84 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.) 

 
  



 

CALATA CORPORATION AND ITS SUBSIDIARY 

 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE THREE-MONTH PERIODS ENDED  
MARCH 31, 2015 AND 2014 (UNAUDITED) 

     

          Notes 2015   2014 

     Cash flows from operating activities 
    Profit before tax 
 

      P54,440,339  
 

 P186,937,890 
Adjustments for: 

    
 

Depreciation and amortization 15, 21        5,251,277  
 

   4,943,838 

 
FV adjustment 

 
- 

 
(1,130,454) 

 
Impairment loss on trade receivables  

 
- 

 
639,880 

 
Retirement benefit costs 21, 26           165,250  

 
660,997 

Gain on disposal of property and equipment 
 

- 
 

(1,750,000) 
Finance income 23 - 

 

    (719,808) 

Finance costs 24       10,633,496  
 

(10,462,425) 

Operating income before working capital changes  
 

      70,490,362  
 

231,520,271 
Decrease (increase) in: 

    
 

Trade and other receivables 
 

      (1,555,055) 
 

(47,830,574) 

 
Advances to related parties 

 
     (53,099,508) 

 
(48,866,446) 

 
Inventories 

 
     (15,176,360) 

 
6,573,775 

 
Other current assets 

 
         (214,940) 

 
(1,621,128) 

Increase (decrease) in: 
    

 
Trade and other payables 

 
      (8,585,464) 

 
33,764,029 

 
Advances from related parties 

 
      (3,194,398) 

 
7,898,210 

Cash provided by operations 
 

     (11,335,364) 
 

181,438,137 
Finance income received 

 
                 -    

 
10,462,425 

Income tax paid 
 

          562,874  
 

(47,256,137) 

Net cash provided by operating activities 
 

   (10,772,488) 
 

144,644,425 

     Cash flows from investing activities 
    Acquisition of investment properties 
    Decrease (increase) in advances to related parties 25 - 

 
(195,041,258) 

Acquisition of property and equipment 15          (125,590) 
 

(79,168,199) 
Acquisition of biological assets 

 
- 

 
(10,000,000) 

Disposal of property and equipment 

 

- 

 

2,730,500 

Net cash used in investing activities 
 

       (125,590) 
 

(281,478,957) 

     Cash flows from financing activities 
    Non-controlling interests in subsidiary 
   

3,062,500 
Net availments (payments) of borrowings 17      (17,374,852) 

 
103,247,209 

Finance costs paid 
 

     (10,562,243) 
 

(35,924,332) 

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 
 

   (27,937,095) 
 

70,385,377 

     Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 

 

   (38,835,173) 

 

(66,449,155) 

     Cash and cash equivalents 
    

 
January 1 

 
    378,513,908  

 
444,963,063 

 
March 31 

 
   P339,678,735  

 
P378,513,908 

     (The notes on pages 6 to 84 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.) 

 
                                      
 
 
 
 
  



 

CALATA CORPORATION AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES 
 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AS AT MARCH 31, 2015 (UNAUDITED) AND DECEMBER 31, 2014 (AUDITED)  

AND FOR THE THREE-MONTH PERIODS ENDED MARCH 31, 2015 AND 2014 (UNAUDITED) 
  

  
NOTE 1 – CORPORATE INFORMATION 
 

Calata Corporation and its Subsidiaries (collectively referred herein as the Group) were 
incorporated under the laws of the Republic of the Philippines. 
 
Calata Corporation 
 
Calata Corporation (the Parent Company) was registered with the Philippine Securities and 
Exchange Commission (SEC) per Registration No. A199911666 on July 23, 1999. 
 
The primary purpose of the Parent Company is to conduct, engage in and carry on, as principal 
or otherwise, all lawful business activities involving livestock and agricultural business, 
corporate or otherwise, such as but not limited to the business of acquiring, raising, breeding, 
slaughtering, preserving, processing, packing, canning, enveloping, storing, marketing, 
exporting, and commercially distributing livestock such as chicken, fowl, cattle, calves, swine 
livestock, goats, sheep, lambs, all kinds of livestock and other animals, as may be permitted by 
law, for food purposes; the business of cultivating land and other natural resources, planting, 
growing, producing, buying, preserving, processing, packing, canning, enveloping, storing, 
marketing, exporting, and commercially distributing food and agricultural products including all 
kinds of goods, commodities, wares and merchandise of every kind and descriptions whether 

natural or artificial as may be permitted by law; the business of manufacturing, preparing 
stocking, packing, buying, selling, importing and exporting, dealing in and delivering all kinds of 
livestock and agricultural products such as but not limited to poultry, livestock, feeds, feed 
additives, fertilizers, pesticides, all types of chemicals and substance used for livestock and 
agriculture, and/or whatsoever materials which may be necessary or incidental to their 
manufacture or preparation inside or outside the Philippines and all kinds of materials and 
products and by-products arising out of or used in the breeding and slaughtering of poultry and 
livestock and all other agricultural activities for food purposes; and to direct, establish, 
construct, acquire, sell, lease operate and maintain slaughterhouse, dressing plants, processing 
plant, refrigerating plants, cold storage, warehouses, sheds, silos, bodegas, storage bins, and 
other buildings, facilities, structures and equipment necessary or expedient for the carrying out 
of the purposes aforesaid.  
 
The secondary purposes of the Parent Company are: 
 

 to invest in, purchase, or otherwise acquire and own, hold, use, sell, assign, transfer, 

mortgage, pledge or otherwise dispose of real or personal property of every kind and 
description, including shares of stocks, bonds, debentures, notes, evidence of 
indebtedness, marketable securities, deposit substitutes in any valid currency and other 
securities or obligation, provided that the Parent Company will not engage as stock brokers 
or dealers in securities;  

 to engage in the management, supervision or control of business enterprises of all kinds, 
the operations and transactions of any entity or undertaking and to manage and administer 
land, building, any kind of business and any kind of properties whether real or personal, 

and in general, to act as agent, attorney-in-fact, purchasing agent and general agent, as 
may be permitted by law; 

 to purchase, acquire, own, lease , convey real properties such as lands, buildings, factories 
and warehouses and machineries, equipment and other properties as may be necessary or 
incidental to the conduct of the corporate business; 
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 to borrow or raise money necessary to meet the financial requirements of its business by 
the issuance of bonds, promissory notes and other evidence of indebtedness, and to secure 
the repayment thereof mortgage pledge, deed of trust or lien upon the properties of the 
Parent Company, or to issue, pursuant to law, its shares, debentures and other evidence of 

indebtedness in payment for properties acquired by the Parent Company or for money 
borrowed in the prosecution of its lawful business. 

 to invest and deal with the money and properties of the Parent Company in such a manner 
as may from time to time be considered wise or expedient for the advancement of its 
interest and to sell, dispose of or transfer the business, properties and goodwill of the 
Parent Company or any part thereof for such consideration and under such terms as it shall 
see fit to accept; 

 to aid in any matter entities any shares of which, or any bonds, debentures, notes, 

securities, evidences of indebtedness, contracts or obligations of which are held by or for 
the Parent Company, directly or indirectly, or through other corporations; 

 to enter into lawful arrangement for sharing profits, union or interest, utilization or farm 
out agreement, reciprocal concession, or cooperation with any entities in the carrying on of 
any business or transaction deemed necessary, convenient or incidental to carrying out any 
of the purposes of the Parent Company; 

 to acquire or obtain from any entity such charter, contracts, franchise, privileges, 

exemption, licenses and concessions as may be conducive to any of the objects of the 
Parent Company; 

 to establish and operate one or more offices, branches or agencies and to carry on any or 
all of its operations and business without any restrictions as to place or amount including 
the right to hold, purchase or otherwise acquire, lease, mortgage, pledge and convey, or 
otherwise deal in and with real and personal property anywhere within the Philippines; 

 to conduct and transact any lawful activity herein set forth within or without the 

Philippines and in any and all foreign countries; and 

 to guarantee, for and in behalf of the Parent Company obligations of other entities in which 
it has lawful interest. 

 
On January 5, 2010, the Parent Company’s Board of Directors (BOD) amended its By-laws to 
change the corporate name from Planters Choice Agro Products, Inc. to Calata Corporation. On 
February 22, 2010, the SEC issued a Certificate of Amendment approving the said amendment. 
 
On August 5, 2011, the Parent Company’s BOD amended its article of incorporation to increase 

its authorized share capital from P1,000,000 to P345,400,000 with par value of P100 to P1, 
respectively (see Note 16). On August 17, 2011, the SEC issued a Certificate of Amendment 
approving the said amendment. 
 
On August 18, 2011, the Parent Company’s BOD amended its article of incorporation to increase 
its authorized share capital from P345,400,000 to P845,400,000 (see Note 16). On August 25, 
2011, the SEC issued a Certificate of Amendment approving the said amendment. 
 
On December 28, 2011, with the approvals by the Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE) for the 
Parent Company’s application for listing and by the SEC for the Registration Statement, a total 
of 36,012,000 common shares, with P1 par value, representing 10% of outstanding share capital, 
was offered and subscribed at P7.50 per share through an initial public offering on May 10 to 
16, 2012 (see Note 16). The common shares comprise of 36,012,000 new shares issued by the 
Parent Company by way of a primary offer. The Parent Company’s common shares were listed 
and commenced trading on the PSE on May 23, 2012. 
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On January 31, 2012, the Parent Company’s BOD amended its article of incorporation to change 
the primary purpose of the Parent Company to include the cultivation of land and other natural 
resources and on the other hand, to include the sale, at wholesale or retail, of livestock such as 
chicken, fowl, cattle, calves, swine livestock, goats, sheep, lambs, all kinds of livestock and 
other animals, as may be permitted by law, for food purposes; and food and agricultural 
products including all kinds of goods, commodities, wares and merchandise of every kind and 
descriptions whether natural or artificial. On February 6, 2012, the SEC issued a Certificate of 
Amendment approving the said amendment. 
 

On July 19, 2012, the Parent Company’s BOD approved the conversion of its P55,455,249 worth 
of advances to equity shares in Agri Phil Corporation (APC) as well as the purchase of all the 
issued and outstanding shares of stock therein. On August 3, 2012, the SEC approved said 
conversion which resulted to the Parent Company owning 85.37% ownership in APC. The 
investing public, including all the shareholders of the Parent Company have been informed of 
this development through timely and complete disclosures with the SEC via the filing of the 
requisite Current Report (SEC Form 17-C) and the uploading thereof with the PSE via the PSE 
Online Disclosure System. 
 
On September 30, 2012, the complete acquisition of APC had been implemented and reflected 
in the books of the Parent Company’s SEC Form 17-Q which was filed with the SEC and 
uploaded with the PSE via the PSE Online Disclosure System. APC has been included in the 
consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2012. 
 
The Parent Company’s registered office address and principal place of business is at McArthur 
Highway, Banga 1st, Plaridel, Bulacan while its headquarters is at Level 16 Tower 2, The 
Enterprise Center, Ayala Avenue corner Paseo de Roxas, Makati City. 
 

The Parent Company’s common shares were listed and commenced trading on May 23, 2012 in 
the Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE) with the ticker code CAL. 
 
Agri Phil Corporation 
 
Agri Phil Corporation (APC) was incorporated under the laws of the Republic of the Philippines 
and registered with the Philippine Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) per Registration 
No. CS201100828 on January 18, 2011. 
 
The primary purpose of APC is to engage in, conduct, and carry on the business of 
import/export, buying, selling, distributing, marketing, at wholesale and retail in so far as 
permitted by law, all kinds of goods, commodities, wares and merchandise of every kind and 
description such as but not limited to agricultural products likes pesticides, fertilizers, feeds, 
pet supplies and accessories and agricultural equipments and machineries; to enter into all 
kinds of contracts for the export, import, purchase, acquisition, sale at wholesale or retail and 
other distribution for its own account as principal or in representative capacity as 
manufacturer’s representative, merchandise broker, commission merchants, factors or agents, 
upon consignment of all kinds of goods, wares, merchandise, or products whether natural or 

artificial. 
 
APC is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Parent Company. 
 
APC’s registered office address and principal place of business is at McArthur Highway, Banga 
1st, Plaridel, Bulacan. 
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Brookfields Meat, Inc. 
 
Brookfields Meat Inc. (BMI) was organized under the laws of the Republic of the Philippines and 
registered in the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on December 11, 2013 per SEC 
Registration No. CS201323470. 
 
BMI is engaged in trading and processing of goods such as, but not limited to, meat and its by-
products and other animals as may be permitted by law, for food purposes on wholesale and 
retail basis, the business of manufacturing, preparing, stocking, packing, buying, selling, 

importing and exporting, dealing in and delivering all kinds of livestock, meat additives, all 
types of chemicals and substances used for livestock and agriculture, which may be necessary 
or incidental to their manufacture inside or outside the Philippines and all kinds of materials 
and products and by-products arising out or used in the breeding and slaughtering of livestock 
and all agricultural activities for food purposes. 
 
BMI is 51% owned of the Parent Company. 
 
BMI started its commercial operation on January 2, 2014. 
 
BMI’s registered office address and principal place of business is at #35 Doña Rosario Ave., Doña 
Rosario Subdivision, Quezon City. 
 
 
NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
2.1 Basis of preparation 
 

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the consolidated financial 
statements are set out below. The policies have been consistently applied to the years 
presented, unless otherwise stated.  
 
The consolidated financial statements provide comparative information in respect of the 
previous years.  
 
Statement of compliance 
 
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Philippine 
Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS) as issued by the Financial Reporting Standards Council, 
and adopted by SEC. 
 
Basis of measurement 

 
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except 
for current biological assets which are measured at fair market value less estimated cost to 
sell at the point of harvest. 
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Functional and presentation currency 
 
The consolidated financial statements are presented in Philippine Peso (P), which is the 
Group’s functional and presentation currency. All values are rounded off to the nearest Peso, 
unless otherwise indicated. 
 
Use of judgments and estimates 
 
The preparation of consolidated financial statements in compliance with PFRS requires the use 

of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires the Group’s management to exercise 
judgment in applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas where significant judgments 
and estimates have been made in preparing the consolidated financial statements and their 
effects are disclosed in Note 3. 
 
Changes in accounting policies and disclosures 
 
a. Amendments and interpretation effective from January 1, 2014 

 
The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous years except for the 
following new standards, interpretations and amendments effective for the first time on or 
after either January 1, 2014. The nature and the impact of each new standard and amendment 
are described below: 

 
i. Amendments relevant to the Group 

 

 Amendments to PFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements, PFRS 12, Separate 

Financial Statements, and PAS 27, Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation 
Exception 

 Amendments to PAS 32, Financial Instruments: Presentation – Offsetting Financial 
Assets and Financial Liabilities 

 Amendment to PAS 36, Impairment of Assets – Recoverable Amount disclosures for Non-

financial Assets 
 

 Amendments to PFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements, PFRS 12, Separate 
Financial Statements and PAS 27, Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation 
Exception: These amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 
January 1, 2014. Earlier application is permitted. They provide an exception to the 
consolidation requirement for entities that meet the definition of an investment entity 
under PFRS 10. The exception to consolidation requires investment entities to account for 
subsidiaries at fair value through profit or loss. The adoption of these amendments will 

have no significant impact on the Group’s financial position or performance. 
 

 Amendments  to PAS 32, Financial Instruments: Presentation - Offsetting Financial 
Assets and Financial Liabilities: The amendments clarify the meaning of “currently has a 
legally enforceable right to set-off” and also clarify the application of the PAS 32 offsetting 
criteria to settlement systems (such as central clearing house systems) which apply gross 
settlement mechanisms that are not simultaneous. The amendments affect presentation 
only and have no impact on the Group’s financial position or performance. The 
amendments to PAS 32 are to be retrospectively applied for annual periods beginning on or 
after January 1, 2014. 
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 Amendments to PAS 36, Impairment of Assets: The amendments align the disclosures 
required for the recoverable amount of an asset (or CGU) when this has been determined 
on the basis of fair value less costs of disposal with those required where the recoverable 
amount has been determined on the basis of value in use, and require an entity to: 

 Disclose the recoverable amount of an asset (or CGU) only in periods in which 
impairment has been recorded or reversed in respect of that asset (or CGU) 

 Disclose the discount rate when an asset (or CGU) has been impaired (or impairment 
reversed) where the recoverable amount has been determined based on fair value less 
costs of disposal using a present value technique 

 To expand and clarify the disclosure requirements when an assets (CGUs) recoverable 

amount has been determined on the basis of fair value less disposal, including: 
a) The level of the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurement of 

the asset (cash-generating unit) is categorized in its entirety (without taking into 
account whether the ‘costs of disposal’ are observable); 

b) For fair value measurements categorized within Level 2 and Level 3 of the fair 
value hierarchy, a description of the valuation technique(s) used to measure fair 
value less costs of disposal. If there has been a change in valuation technique, the 
entity is required to disclose that change and the reason(s) for making it; 

c) For fair value measurements categorized within Level 2 and Level 3 of the fair 
value hierarchy, each key assumption on which management has based its 
determination of fair value less costs of disposal. Key assumptions are those to 
which the asset’s (CGU’s) recoverable amount is most sensitive; and 

d) The discount rate(s) used in the current measurement and previous measurement if 
fair value less costs of disposal is measured using a present value technique. 

 
ii. New amendment and interpretation not relevant to the Group  
 

 PAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement - Novation of Derivatives 
and Continuation of Hedge Accounting (Amendments) (effective January 1, 2014) 

 Philippine Interpretation on IFRIC 21, Levies (effective January 1, 2014) 

 
b. New standards and amendments to existing standards issued but not yet effective and not 

early adopted by the Group 
 
Standards and amendments to existing standards issued but not yet effective up to the date of 
issuance of the consolidated financial statements are listed below. This listing is of standards, 
interpretation and amendments issued, which the Group reasonably expects to be applicable at 
a future date. The Group intends to adopt those standards when they become effective. 
 
i.    Standards and amendments relevant to the Group  
 

 PFRS 9, Financial Instruments:  In July 2014, the final version of PFRS 9, Financial 

Instruments, was issued.  The final version reflects all phases of the financial instruments 
project and replaces PAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement and all 
previous versions of PFRS 9.  The standard introduces new requirements for classification 
and measurement, impairment and hedge accounting. PFRS 9 is effective for annual periods 
beginning on or after January 1, 2018, with early application permitted.  Retrospective 
application is required but comparative information is not compulsory. 

 
Early application of previous versions of PFRS 9 (2009, 2010 and 2013) is permitted if the 
date of initial application is before February 1, 2015.  The adoption of PFRS 9 will have an 
effect on the classification and measurement of the Group’s financial assets, but will have 
no impact on the classification and measurement of the Group’s financial liabilities. 
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 PFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers: PFRS 15 was issued in May 2014 and 
establishes a new five-step model that will apply to revenue arising from contracts with 
customers.  Under PFRS 15, revenue is recognized at an amount that reflects the 

consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods 
or services to a customer.  The principles in PFRS 15 provide a more structured approach to 
measuring and recognizing revenue. 

 
The new revenue standard is applicable to all entities and will supersede all current 
revenue recognition requirements under PFRS.  Either a full or modified retrospective 
application is required for all annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2017 with 
early adoption permitted.  The Group is currently assessing the impact of PFRS 15 and plans 
to adopt the new standard on the required effective date. 

 

 Amendments to PAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements, Disclosure Initiative:  The 
amendments clarify some of its presentation and disclosure requirements to ensure that 

entities are able to use judgment when disclosing information in the financial statements. 
The amendments also require separate disclosure of an entity’s share on items of other 
comprehensive income arising from investments accounted for using the equity method. 
 
The amendments are effective beginning on or after January 1, 2016, with early adoption 
permitted. The adoption of the Amendments to PAS 1 will have no significant impact on the 
Group’s consolidated financial position or performance. 
 

 Amendments to PAS 16 and PAS 38, Clarification of Acceptable Methods of 
Depreciation and Amortization:  The amendments clarify the principle in PAS 16 and PAS 
38 that revenue reflects a pattern of economic benefits that are generated from operating 
a business (of which the asset is part) rather than the economic benefits that are consumed 

through the use of the asset.  As a result, a revenue-based method cannot be used to 
depreciate property and equipment and may only be used in very limited circumstances to 
amortize intangible assets.  The amendments are effective prospectively for annual periods 
beginning on or after January 1, 2016, with early adoption permitted.  These amendments 
are not expected to have significant impact to the Group since the Group has not used a 
revenue-based method to depreciate its noncurrent assets. 
 

 Amendments to PAS 19, Defined Benefit Plans: Employment Contribution: The 
amendments are effective from July 1, 2014, with earlier application permitted. The 
amendments to PAS 19 (2011) permit contributions that are independent of the number of 
years of service to be recognized as a reduction in the service cost in the period in which 
the service is rendered, instead of allocating the contributions to periods of service. Other 

contributions by employees or third parties are required to be attributed to periods of 
service either using the plan’s contribution formula or on a straight-line basis. The adoption 
of these amendments will have no significant impact on the consolidated financial position 
or performance. 
 

 Amendments to PAS 41, Biological Assets – Agriculture: Bearer Plants: the amendments 
extend the scope of PAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment to include bearer plants and 
define a bearer plant as a living plant that is used in the production process of agricultural 
produce, is expected to bear produce for more than one period; and has a remote 
likelihood of being sold (except incident scrap sales).  The changes made result in bearer 
plants being accounted for in accordance with PAS 16 using either the cost or revaluation 
model. The amendments are retrospectively effective for annual periods beginning on or 

after 1 January 2016, with early adoption permitted. The Group is currently assessing the 
impact of the Amendments to PAS 41 and plans to adopt the Amendments on the required 
effective date. 
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ii. Standards, interpretations and amendments not relevant to the Group  
 

 PFRS 14, Regulatory Deferral Accounts (effective beginning on or after January 1, 

2016) 

 Amendments to PFRS 11, Accounting for Acquisitions of an Interest in a Joint Operation 
(effective beginning on or after January 1, 2016) 

 Amendments to PAS 27, Separate Financial Statements – Equity Method in Separate 
Financial Statements 
 

2.2 Basis of consolidation 
 

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Parent 
Company and its subsidiaries.  Control is achieved when the Parent Company is exposed to, or 
has rights to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to 
affect those returns through its power over the investee. Specifically, the Parent Company 
controls an investee, if and only if, the Parent Company has: 
 

 Power over the investee 

 Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee 

 The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns. 
 
Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights result in control. To support 
this presumption and when the Parent Company has less than a majority of the voting or similar 
rights of an investee, the Parent Company considers all relevant facts and circumstances in 
assessing whether it has power over an investee, including: 
 

 The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee 

 Rights arising from other contractual arrangements 

 The Parent Company’s voting rights and potential voting rights 

 
The Parent Company re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and 
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control. 
Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and 
ceases when the Parent Company loses control of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and 
expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the 
consolidated financial statements from the date the Parent Company gains control until the 
date the Parent Company ceases to control the subsidiary.  
 
Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (OCI) are attributed to the 
equity holders of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this 
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. When necessary, adjustments 
are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line 
with the Parent Company’s accounting policies. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, 
income, expenses and cash flows relating to intra-group transactions are eliminated in full on 
consolidation. 
 

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as 
an equity transaction. If the Parent Company loses control over the subsidiary, it: 

 

 derecognizes the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary 

 derecognizes the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest 

 derecognizes the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity 

 recognizes the fair value of the consideration received 

 recognizes the fair value of any investment retained 

 recognizes any surplus or deficit in profit or loss 

 reclassifies the parent’s share of components previously recognized in other 
comprehensive income to profit or loss or retained earnings, as appropriate. 
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2.3 Business combinations 
 
Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an 
acquisition is measured as the aggregate of the consideration transferred measured at 
acquisition date fair value and the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree. For 
each business combination, the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interest in 
the acquiree at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net 
assets. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred and included in administrative 
expenses. 

 
When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for 
appropriate classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic 
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the separation 
of embedded derivatives in host contracts by the acquiree. 
 
If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously held equity interest is 
remeasured at its acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognized in 
profit or loss. 
 
Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer will be recognized at fair value 
at the acquisition date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a 
financial instrument and within the scope of PAS, is measured at fair value with changes in fair 
value recognized either in profit or loss or as a change to other comprehensive income. If the 
contingent consideration is not within the scope of PAS 39, it is measured in accordance with 
the appropriate PFRS. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured 
and subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity. 
 

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration 
transferred and the amount recognized for non-controlling interest over the net identifiable 
assets acquired and liabilities assumed. 
 
If the fair value of the net assets acquired is in excess of the aggregate consideration 
transferred, the gain is recognized in profit or loss. 
 
After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. 
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the 
acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units that are expected to 
benefit from the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the acquiree 
are assigned to those units. 
 
Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within 
that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the disposed operation is included in the 
carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal. Goodwill 
disposed in these circumstances is measured based on the relative values of the disposed 
operation and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained. 

 
2.4 Current versus noncurrent classification 
 
The Group presents assets and liabilities in the consolidated statements of financial position 
based on current/noncurrent classification.  
 
An asset is current when: 
 

 It is expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle 

 It is held primarily for the purpose of trading 

 It is expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or 

 Cash on hand and in banks unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a 

liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period 
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All other assets are classified as noncurrent.  
 
A liability is current when: 
 

 It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle 

 It is held primarily for the purpose of trading 

 It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or 

 There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve 

months after the reporting period 
 

The Group classifies all other liabilities as noncurrent. 
 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are generally classified as noncurrent assets and liabilities. 
 
2.5 Fair value measurement 
 
For measurement and disclosure purposes, the Group determines the fair value of an asset or 
liability at initial measurement or at each statement of financial position date. Fair value is the 
price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value 
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the 
liability takes place either: 

 

 In the principal market for the asset or liability, or  

 In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or 
liability 

 
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to by the Group. 

 
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market 
participants would use when pricing the asset or a liability, assuming that market participants 
act in their economic best interest. 
 
A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s 
ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling 
it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.  
 
The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which 
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable 
inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs. 
 
2.6 Foreign currency transactions and translation 
 
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Group at the respective 
functional currency rates prevailing at the date of the transaction. 
 

Monetary assets and monetary liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at 
the functional currency spot rate of exchange ruling at the reporting date. 
 
All differences are taken to the consolidated statement of income with the exception of all 
monetary items that provide an effective hedge for a net investment in a foreign operation. 
These are recognized in OCI until the disposal of the net investment, at which time they are 
recognized in profit or loss. Tax charges and credits applicable to exchange differences on 
these monetary items are also recorded in OCI. 
 
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are 
translated using the exchange rates as at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary 
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at 
the date when the fair value is determined. 
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2.7 Financial instruments 
 
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a 
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. 
 
i. Financial assets 
 
Initial recognition and measurement 

 
Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial assets at fair value through 
profit or loss (FVPL), loans and receivables, held to maturity (HTM) investments, available for 
sale (AFS) financial assets, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective 
hedge, as appropriate. All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case 
of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are 
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. 
 
Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame 
established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognized 
on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. 
 
Subsequent measurement 
 
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification as described 
below: 
 
(a) Financial assets at FVPL 

 
Financial assets at FVPL include financial assets held for trading and financial assets designated 
upon initial recognition at FVPL.   
 
Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling 
or repurchasing in the near term. Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives are 
also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments as 
defined by PAS 39. Financial assets at FVPL are carried in the consolidated statement of 
financial position at fair value with net changes in fair value presented as finance costs 
(negative net changes in fair value) or finance income (positive net changes in fair value) in the 
consolidated statement of income. 
 
The Group has not designated any financial assets at FVPL.   
 
(b) Loans and receivables 
 
This category is the most relevant to the Group. Loans and receivables are non-derivative 
financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. 

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost 
using the effective interest rate (EIR) method, less impairment. Amortized cost is calculated by 
taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an 
integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included in finance income in the consolidated 
statement of income. The losses arising from impairment are recognized in the consolidated 
statement of income in finance costs for loans and in other operating income/expense for 
receivables. 
 
This category generally applies to cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables, loans 
receivables, advances to related parties and refundable security deposit in the consolidated 
statements of financial position (see Notes 9, 10, 11, 25 and 28). 
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(c) HTM investments 
 
Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities are 
classified as HTM when the Group has the positive intention and ability to hold them to 
maturity. After initial measurement, HTM investments are measured at amortized cost using 
the EIR, less impairment. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or 
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR 
amortization is included as finance income in the consolidated statement of income. The losses 

arising from impairment are recognized in the consolidated statement of income in finance 
costs.  
 
The Group did not have any HTM investments as at December 31, 2014 and 2013. 
 
(d) AFS financial assets 
 
AFS financial assets include equity investments and debt securities. Equity investments 
classified as AFS are those that are neither classified as held for trading nor designated at FVPL. 
Debt securities in this category are those that are intended to be held for an indefinite period 
of time and that may be sold in response to needs for liquidity or in response to changes in the 
market conditions. 
 
After initial measurement, AFS financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value with 
unrealized gains or losses recognized as OCI and credited in the AFS reserve until the 
investment is derecognized, at which time, the cumulative gain or loss is recognized in other 
operating income, or the investment is determined to be impaired, when the cumulative loss is 
reclassified from the AFS reserve to the consolidated statement of income in finance costs. 

Interest earned while holding AFS financial assets is reported as finance income using the EIR 
method. 
 
The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to sell its AFS financial assets in the near 
term is still appropriate. When, in rare circumstances, the Group is unable to trade these 
financial assets due to inactive markets and management’s intention to do so significantly 
changes in the foreseeable future, the Group may elect to reclassify these financial assets if 
the Group has the intent and ability to hold these assets for the foreseeable future or until 
maturity.  
 
For a financial asset reclassified from the AFS category the fair value carrying amount at the 
date of reclassification becomes its new amortized cost and any previous gain or loss on the 
asset that has been recognized in equity is amortized to profit or loss over the remaining life of 
the investment using the EIR. Any difference between the new amortized cost and the maturity 
amount is also amortized over the remaining life of the asset using the EIR. If the asset is 
subsequently determined to be impaired, then the amount recorded in equity is reclassified to 
the consolidated statement of income. The Group does not have any asset under this category. 
 

Derecognition 
 
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar 
financial assets) is primarily derecognized when:  
 
a)  the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired  
b) the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an 

obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party 
under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (i) the Group has transferred substantially 
all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (ii) the Group has neither transferred nor retained 
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset. 
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When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered 
into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and 
rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks 
and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognize 
the transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement in the asset. In that 
case, the Group also recognizes an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated 
liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has 
retained. 
 

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over transferred asset is measured 
at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of 
consideration that the Group could be required to repay. 
 
ii. Impairment of financial assets 
 
The Group assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is objective evidence that a 
financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists if one or more 
events that has occurred since the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred ‘loss event’), has 
an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial 
assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include indications that the 
debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or 
delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy 
or other financial reorganization and observable data indicating that there is a measurable 
decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions 
that correlate with defaults. 
 
(a) Financial assets carried at amortized cost 

 
For financial assets carried at amortized cost, the Group first assesses whether impairment 
exists individually for financial assets that are individually significant, or collectively for 
financial assets that are not individually significant. If the Group determines that no objective 
evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant 
or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics 
and collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for 
impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognized are not 
included in a collective assessment of impairment. 
 
The carrying amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as the difference between 
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding 
future expected credit losses that have not yet been incurred). The present value of the 
estimated future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original EIR. If a loan has a 
variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current EIR. 
 
The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account and the 
loss is recognized in the consolidated statement of income. Interest income (recorded as 

finance income in the consolidated statement of income) continues to be accrued on the 
reduced carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of interest used to discount the future 
cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. Loans together with the 
associated allowance are written off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and 
all collateral has been realized or has been transferred to the Group. If, in a subsequent year, 
the amount of the estimated impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event 
occurring after the impairment was recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss is 
increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. 
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(b) Financial assets carried at cost 
 
If there is objective evidence of an impairment loss on an unquoted equity instrument that is 
not carried at fair value because its fair value cannot be reliably measured, or of a derivative 
asset that is linked to and must be settled by delivery of such an unquoted equity instrument, 
the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and 
the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of 
return for a similar financial asset. 

 
(c) AFS financial assets 
 
For AFS financial assets, the Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective 
evidence that an investment or a group of investments is impaired. In the case of equity 
investments classified as AFS, objective evidence would include a significant or prolonged 
decline in the fair value of the investment below its cost. ‘Significant’ is evaluated against the 
original cost of the investment and ‘prolonged’ against the period in which the fair value has 
been below its original cost. When there is evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss – 
measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any 
impairment loss on that investment previously recognized in the consolidated statement of 
income – is removed from OCI and recognized in the consolidated statement of income. 
Impairment losses on equity investments are not reversed through profit or loss; increases in 
their fair value after impairment are recognized directly in OCI. 
 
In the case of debt instruments classified as AFS, the impairment is assessed based on the same 
criteria as financial assets carried at amortized cost. However, the amount recorded for 
impairment is the cumulative loss measured as the difference between the amortized cost and 

the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that investment previously recognized in the 
consolidated statement of income. 
 
Future interest income continues to be accrued based on the reduced carrying amount of the 
asset, using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of 
measuring the impairment loss. The interest income is recorded as part of finance income. If, 
in a subsequent year, the fair value of a debt instrument increases and the increase can be 
objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognized in the 
consolidated statement of income, the impairment loss is reversed through the consolidated 
statement of income. 
 
iii. Financial liabilities 
 
Initial recognition and measurement 
 
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at FVPL and other 
financial liabilities. All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case 
of loans and borrowing and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. 
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Subsequent measurement 
 
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification as described below: 
 
(a) Financial liabilities at FVPL 
 
Financial liabilities at FVPL include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities 
designated upon initial recognition as at FVPL. Financial liabilities are classified as held for 
trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also 

includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Group that are not designated as 
hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by PAS 39. Separated embedded 
derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective 
hedging instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognized in the 
consolidated statement of income. Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at 
FVPL are designated at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in PAS 39 are 
satisfied. 
 
The Group does not have any liabilities held for trading nor has it designated any financial 
liability as being at FVPL. 
 
(b) Other financial liabilities 
 
This category is the most relevant to the Group. After initial recognition, other financial 
liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses 
are recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR 
amortization process. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or 
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR 

amortization is included as finance costs in the consolidated statement of income. 
 
This category generally applies to trade and other payables, borrowings and advances from 
related parties (see Notes 16, 17, and 25). 
 
Derecognition 
 
A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged 
,cancelled or has expired. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the 
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are 
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the 
original liability and the recognition of a new liability and the difference in the respective 
carrying amounts is recognized in the consolidated statement of income. 
 
iv. Classification of financial instruments between debt and equity 
 
Financial instruments are classified as liability or equity in accordance with the substance of 
the contractual arrangement. The Group designates a financial instrument as equity instrument 

if, and only if, the following conditions are met: 
 
(a) The instrument includes no contractual obligation: 

i. to deliver cash or another financial asset to another entity; or 
ii. to exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions 

that are potentially unfavourable to the issuer; and 
 
(b) If the instrument will or may be settled in the issuer’s own equity instruments, it is: 

i. a non-derivative that includes no contractual obligation for the issuer to deliver a 
variable number of its own equity instruments; or 
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ii. a derivative that will be settled only by the issuer exchanging a fixed amount of cash or 

another financial asset for a fixed number of its own equity instruments. For this 
purpose, rights, options or warrants to acquire a fixed number of the entity’s own 
equity instruments for a fixed amount of any currency are equity instruments if the 
entity offers the rights, options or warrants pro rata to all of its existing owners of the 
same class of its own non-derivative equity instruments. 

 
Interest, dividends, gains and losses relating to a financial instrument or a component that is a 

financial liability is reported as expense or income. 
 
v. Offsetting of financial instruments 
 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the 
consolidated statement of financial position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to 
offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realize the 
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.  
 
2.8 Cash and cash equivalents 
 
Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand and in banks and short-term deposits with 
original maturities of three months or less and are subject to an insignificant risk of change in 
value. For the purpose of reporting cash flows, cash and cash equivalents are unrestricted and 
available for use in current operations. 
 
2.9 Trade and other receivables 
 

Trade and other receivables are recognized initially at the transaction price and are 
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the EIR method, less provision for impairment. 
A provision for impairment of trade receivables is established when there is objective evidence 
that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of the 
receivables. 
 
2.10 Inventories 
 

Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and subsequently at the lower of cost and net 
realizable value (NRV). Cost comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs 
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is calculated 
using the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method. NRV represents the estimated selling price less all 
estimated costs to be incurred in marketing, selling and distributing the goods. 
 
When the NRV of the inventories is lower than the cost, the Group provides for an allowance for 
the decline in the value of the inventory and recognizes the write-down as an expense in the 
consolidated statement of income.   
 

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories is recognized as an expense 
in the period in which the related revenue is recognized. 
 
2.11 Other assets 
 
Other assets are recognized when the Group expects to receive future economic benefit from 
them and the amount can be measured reliably. Other assets are classified in the consolidated 
statement of financial position as current assets when the cost of goods or services related to 
the assets are expected to be incurred within one year or the Group’s normal operating cycle, 
whichever is longer. Otherwise, other assets are classified as noncurrent assets. 
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2.12 Biological Assets 
 
The biological assets of the Group consist of swine livestock and are divided into three major 
categories as follows: 

 Breeders (livestock bearer i.e. Great Grand Parent “GGP” and/or Grand Parent “GP”) 

 Sucklings (breeders’ offspring which is still dependent or attached to the bearer 
biological asset) 

 Weanlings (comes from sucklings intended to be a replenishment breeder or to be sold 
as a breeder or a fattener) 

 

Consumable biological assets are those that are to be harvested as agricultural produce or sold 
as biological assets while bearer biological assets are those other than consumable biological 
assets. Bearer biological assets are not agricultural produce but, rather, are self-regenerating. 
 
Biological assets are also classified either as mature biological assets or immature biological 
assets. Mature biological assets are those that have attained harvestable specifications (for 
consumable biological assets) or are able to sustain regular harvests (for bearer biological 
assets). 
 
Biological assets are measured on initial recognition and at each reporting date at its fair value 
less costs to sell, except for a biological asset where fair value is not clearly determinable. 
Agricultural produce harvested from an entity’s biological assets are measured at its fair value 
less estimated costs to sell at the time of harvest. 
 
The Group is unable to measure fair values reliably for its swine livestock breeders and 
sucklings in the absence of: (a) available market-determined prices or values; and (b) 
alternative estimates of fair values that are determined to be clearly reliable; thus, these 
biological assets are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if 

any. However, once the fair values become reliably measurable, the Group measures these 
biological assets at their fair values less estimated costs to sell. 
 
Agricultural produce is the harvested product of the Group’s biological assets. A harvest occurs 
when agricultural produce is either detached from the bearer biological asset or when the 
biological asset’s life processes cease. A gain or loss arising on initial recognition of agricultural 
produce at fair value less costs to sell shall be included in profit or loss in the statement of 
comprehensive income in the period in which it arises. The agricultural produce in swine 
livestock is the suckling that transforms into weanling intended to be a replenishment breeder 
or to be sold as a breeder or a fattener. 
 
Biological assets at cost 
 
The cost of a biological asset comprises its purchase price and any costs attributable in bringing 
the biological asset to its location and conditions intended by management. 
 
When fair value cannot be reliably, verifiably and objectively determined, biological assets are 

valued at production cost less accumulated depreciation, and any cumulative impairment loss 
(reduction). Depreciation related to biological assets forms part of the cost of biological assets 
for sale (weanlings) and is ultimately recognized within the cost of sales in the consolidated 
statement of income and other comprehensive income. 
 
Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the EUL of the biological assets, 
regardless of utilization. The estimated useful life of biological assets is reviewed annually 
based on expected utilization as anchored on business plans and strategies that consider market 
behavior to ensure that the period of depreciation is consistent with the expected pattern of 
economic benefits from the biological assets. The EUL of biological assets is three years. 
 
The carrying values of biological assets at cost are reviewed for impairment, when events or 
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying values may not be recoverable (see further 
discussion under impairment of nonfinancial assets). 
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This accounting policy applies to the Group’s swine livestock breeders. 
 
Biological assets carried at fair values less estimated costs to sell 
 
Swine livestock (weanlings) are measured at their fair values less costs to sell. The fair values 
are determined based on current market prices of livestock of similar age, breed and genetic 
merit. Costs to sell include commissions to brokers and dealers and nonrefundable transfer 
taxes and duties. Costs to sell exclude transport and other costs necessary to get the biological 

assets to the market. 
 
A gain or loss on initial recognition of a biological asset carried at fair value less estimated 
costs to sell and from a change in fair value less estimated costs to sell of a biological asset is 
included under ‘Cost of sales and services’ in profit or loss in the consolidated statement of 
comprehensive income in the period in which it arises. 
 
2.13 Investment properties 
 
Investment properties consist of properties held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation 
but not for sale in the ordinary course of business, used in the production or supply of services 
or for administrative purposes. 
 
Investment properties (including investment properties under construction) are measured 
initially at cost, including transaction costs. An investment property acquired through an 
exchange transaction is measured at fair value of the asset acquired unless the fair value of 
such an asset cannot be measured in which case the investment property acquired is measured 
at the carrying amount of the asset given up. 

 
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment property is carried at cost less accumulated 
depreciation and impairment in value. Investment property is to subject to regular impairment 
tests. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the property’s carrying amount 
exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of the property’s fair value less costs to 
sell and value in use.  
 
Investment properties are derecognized either when they have been disposed of or when they 
are permanently withdrawn from use and no future benefit is expected from their disposal. The 
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is 
recognized in the statement of income in the period of derecognition. 
 
Expenditures incurred after the investment properties have been put into operations, such as 
repairs and maintenance costs, are normally charged to operations in the year which the costs 
are incurred. 
 
Land is not depreciated. Depreciation is charged so as to allocate the cost of the assets less 
their residual values, if any, over their estimated useful lives using straight-line method. The 

estimated useful life used for the depreciation of building is 10 years.  
 
Transfers are made to (or from) investment properties only when there is a change in use. For a 
transfer from investment properties to owner-occupied properties, the deemed cost for 
subsequent accounting is the carrying amount at the date of change in use. If owner-occupied 
properties become investment properties, the Group accounts for such property in accordance 
with the policy stated under property and equipment up to the date of change in use. 
 
Investment property is derecognized by the Group upon its disposal or the investment property 
is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are expected from its 
disposal. Any gain or loss on the retirement or disposal of investment property is recognized in 
the consolidated statement of income in the year of retirement or disposal. Expenditures 
incurred after the investment properties have been put into operations, such as repairs and 
maintenance costs, are charged to the consolidated statement of income in the year the costs 
are incurred. 
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Gains or losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying 
amount and are recognized in the consolidated statement of income. 
 
2.14 Property and equipment 
 
Property and equipment are initially measured at cost. At the end of each reporting period, 
items of property and equipment are measured at cost less any subsequent accumulated 
depreciation, amortization, and any accumulated impairment losses. Cost includes expenditure 

that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset and the estimated present value of 
any future unavoidable costs of dismantling and removing items. The corresponding liability is 
recognized within provisions. 
 
Subsequent expenditures relating to an item of property and equipment that have already been 
recognized are added to the carrying amount of the asset when it is probable that future 
economic benefits, in excess of the originally assessed standard of performance of the existing 
asset, will flow to the Group. All other subsequent expenditures are recognized as expense in 
the period in which those are incurred. 
 
Farm lands are not depreciated. Depreciation and amortization is charged so as to allocate the 
cost of other assets less their residual values over their estimated useful lives using the 
straight-line method. Below is the estimated useful lives used for the depreciation and 
amortization of property and equipment: 
 

Office equipment 5 years 
Transportation equipment 5 years 
Leasehold improvements 7 years or term of the 

lease, whichever is shorter 
Buildings and improvement 40 years 
Farms equipment 20 years 

 
Properties in the course of construction for production, rental or administrative purposes, or 
for purposes not yet determined, are carried at cost, less any recognized impairment loss. Cost 
includes materials used, professional fees and for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalized 
in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy. 
 
Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other property assets, commences at the 
time the assets are ready for their intended use. 
 
Fully depreciated assets are retained in the accounts until they are no longer in use and no 
further depreciation is charged to the consolidated statements of income. 
 
The estimated useful lives and depreciation and amortization method are reviewed 
periodically, and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate, to ensure that the periods and method 
of depreciation and amortization are consistent with the expected pattern of economic 

benefits from items of property and equipment. The lease term includes assumption of lease 
renewals when such have been determined to be reasonably assured. The lease renewal is 
reasonably assured when failure to renew the lease imposes a penalty to the lessee. 
 
When assets are retired or otherwise disposed of, the cost and the related accumulated 
depreciation, amortization and any impairment in value are removed from the accounts and 
any resulting gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an asset, determined as the 
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, is recognized in 
the consolidated statement of income.  
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2.15 Refundable security deposits 
 
Refundable security deposits represent payments made in relation to the lease agreements 
entered into by the Group. These are carried at cost and will generally be applied as lease 
payments toward the end of the lease terms or refunded to the Group. 
 
2.16 Impairment of non-financial assets 
 
The carrying amounts of the Group’s non-financial assets such as inventories, investment 

properties, property and equipment, investment in subsidiaries and noncurrent biological assets 
are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of 
impairment or an impairment loss previously recognized no longer exists or may have 
decreased. If any such indication exists, the Group makes a formal estimate of the asset’s 
recoverable amount. 
 
An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or its CGU’s fair value less costs of 
disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless 
the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other 
assets or groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its 
recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable 
amount. 
 
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value 
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of 
money and the risks specific to the asset. For an asset that does not generate cash flows 
independent of those from other assets, the recoverable amount is determined for the CGU to 
which the asset belongs. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market 

transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate 
valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted 
share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators. 
 
An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine 
the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s 
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of 
depreciation and amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized. Reversals of 
impairment are recognized in the consolidated statement of income. 
 
2.17 Trade and other payables 
 
Trade and other payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired 
in the ordinary course of business from suppliers. They are classified as current liabilities if 
payment is due within one year or less (or within the normal operating cycle of the business if 
longer); otherwise, they are presented as noncurrent liabilities. 
 
Withholding tax payable which represent taxes retained by the Group for an item of income 

required to be remitted to the BIR on or before the 10th day of the following month. The 
obligation of the Group to deduct and withhold the taxes arises at the time an income payment 
is paid or payable, or the income payment is accrued or recorded as an expense or asset, 
whichever comes first. The term “payable” refers to the date the obligation becomes due, 
demandable or legally enforceable. 
 
Trade and other payables are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at 
amortized cost using the EIR method. 
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2.18 Provisions and contingencies 
 
Provisions are recognized when: (a) the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as 
a result of a past event; (b) it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic 
benefits will be required to settle the obligation; and (c) a reliable estimate can be made of 
the amount of the obligation. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions 
are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects 
current market assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks 
specific to the liability. Where discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the 

passage of time is recognized as finance cost. When the Group expects a provision or loss to be 
reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognized as a consolidated asset only when the 
reimbursement is virtually certain and its amount is estimable. The expense relating to any 
provision is presented in the consolidated statement of income, net of any reimbursement. 
 
Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the consolidated financial statements. They are 
disclosed in the notes unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic 
benefits is remote.  
 
Contingent assets are not recognized in the consolidated financial statements but disclosed in 
the notes to consolidated financial statements when an inflow of economic benefits is 
probable. 
 
2.19 Employee benefits 
 
A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which the Group pays fixed contributions 
into a separate entity. The Group has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further 
contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits 

relating to employee service in the current and prior periods. A defined benefit plan is a 
pension plan that is not a defined contribution plan. 
 
Defined benefit plans define an amount of pension benefit that an employee will receive on 
retirement, usually dependent on one or more factors such as age, years of service and 
compensation. 
 
The liability or asset recognized in the consolidated statement of financial position in respect 
of defined benefit pension plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the 
end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is 
calculated annually using projected unit credit method. The present value of the defined 
benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows using 
interest rates of government bonds that are denominated in the currency in which the benefits 
will be paid, and that have terms to maturity approximating to the terms of all related pension 
obligations. 
 
Defined benefit costs comprise the following: 
 

 Service cost 

 Net interest on the net defined benefit liability or asset 

 Remeasurements of net defined benefit liability or asset 

 
Service costs which include current service costs, past service costs and gains or losses on non-
routine settlements are recognized as expense in the statement of income. Past service costs 
are recognized when plan amendment or curtailment occurs. These amounts are calculated 
periodically by independent qualified actuaries. 
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Net interest on the net defined benefit liability or asset is the change during the period in the 
net defined benefit liability or asset that arises from the passage of time which is determined 
by applying the discount rate based on government bonds to the net defined benefit liability or 
asset. Net interest on the net defined benefit liability or asset is recognized as expense or 
income in the consolidated statement of income. 
 
Remeasurements comprising actuarial gains or losses arising from experience adjustments and 
changes in actuarial assumptions are charged or credited to equity in OCI in the period in which 
they arise.  Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods. 

 
2.20 Borrowings  
 
Borrowings are recognized initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings 
are subsequently measured at amortized cost using EIR method, which ensures that any finance 
cost over the period of repayment is at a constant rate on the balance of the liability carried in 
the consolidated statements of financial position. 
 
The Group classifies borrowings as current liabilities if settlement is expected within one year 
or less, and the Group does not have the right to defer settlement of the liabilities and does 
not breach any loan provisions on or before the end of the reporting period. Otherwise, these 
are presented as noncurrent liabilities. 
 
2.21 Share capital 
 
Share capital is measured at par value for all shares issued. When the shares are sold at a 
premium, the difference between the proceeds and the par value is credited to the “Share 
premium” account. When shares are issued for a consideration other than cash, the proceeds 

are measured by the fair value of the consideration received. In case the shares are issued to 
extinguish or settle the liability of the Group, the shares shall be measured either at the fair 
value of the shares issued or fair value of the liability settled, whichever is more reliably 
determinable. 
 
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new ordinary shares are shown in equity 
as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds. Costs that relate to the stock market listing, or 
otherwise are not incremental costs directly attributable to issuing new shares, are recorded as 
expenses in the consolidated statement of income. 
 
Transaction costs that relate jointly to more than one transaction (for example, costs of a 
concurrent offering of some shares and a stock exchange listing of other shares) are allocated 
to those transactions using a basis of allocation that is rational and consistent with the joint 
transactions. 
 
2.22 Treasury shares 
 
Own equity instruments that are reacquired (treasury shares) are recognized at cost and 

deducted from equity. No gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue 
or cancellation of the Group’s own equity instruments. Any difference between the carrying 
amount and the consideration, if reissued, is recognized in share premium. 
 
2.23 Retained earnings 
 
Retained earnings represent the cumulative balance of periodic net income or loss, dividend 
distribution, prior period adjustments, effect of changes in accounting policy and other capital 
adjustments. When retained earnings account has a debit balance, it is called “deficit”, and 
presented as a deduction from equity. 
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2.24 Dividends 
 

Dividends are recognized when they become legally payable. Dividend distribution to equity 
shareholders is recognized as a liability in the consolidated financial statements in the period in 
which the dividends are declared and approved by the Group’s BOD. 
 
Non-cash distributions are measured at the fair value of the assets to be distributed with fair 
value remeasurement recognized directly in equity. 
 

Upon distribution of non-cash assets, any difference between the carrying amount of the 
liability and the carrying amount of the assets distributed is recognized in the consolidated 
statement of income. 
 
2.25 Revenue recognition 
 
Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to 
the Group and the revenue can be measured reliably, regardless of when the payment is being 
made. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking 
into account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duty and 
represents amounts receivable for goods and services provided in the normal course of 
business. 
 
The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is 
recognized: 
 
Sale of agro-products, meat and swine livestock 
 

Revenue from the sale of agro-products and swine livestock is recognized when all of the 
following conditions are satisfied: 
 

a. the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards of ownership of 
the agro-products, meat and swine livestock; 

b. the Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually 
associated with ownership nor effective control over the agro-products, meat and swine 
livestock sold; 

c. the amount of revenue can be measured reliably; 
d. it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to 

the Group; and 
e. the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured 

reliably. 
 
If it is probable that discount will be granted and the amount can be measured reliably, then 
the discount is recognized as a reduction of revenue as the sale is recognized. 
 
Rendering of services 

 
When the outcome of a transaction involving revenue from farming operations can be estimated 
reliably, revenue associated with the transaction is recognized by reference to the stage of 
completion of the service activity and performance at the end of the reporting period. The 
outcome of a transaction can be estimated reliably when all the following conditions are 
satisfied: 
 

a. the amount of revenue can be measured reliably; 
b. it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to 

the Group; 
c. the stage of completion of the transaction can be measured reliably; and 
d. the costs incurred for the transaction and the costs to complete the transaction can be 

measured reliably. 
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When the outcome of the transaction involving contract growing cannot be estimated reliably, 
revenue is recognized only to the extent of the expenses recognized that are recoverable. 
 
Finance income 
 
For all financial instrument measured at amortized cost, interest income is recorded using the 
EIR which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts 
over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to 
the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability. Interest income is included 

in “finance income” in the consolidated statement of income. 
 
2.26 Costs and expense recognition 
 
Costs and expenses are recognized in the consolidated statements of income when decrease in 
future economic benefit related to a decrease in an asset or an increase in a liability has arisen 
that can be measured reliably. Costs and expenses are recognized in the consolidated 
statements of income on the basis of a direct association between the costs incurred and the 
earning of specific items of income on the basis of systematic and rational allocation 
procedures when economic benefits are expected to arise over several accounting periods and 
the association with income can only be broadly or indirectly determined or immediately when 
an expenditure produces no future economic benefits or when, and to the extent that, future 
economic benefits do not qualify, or cease to qualify, for recognition in the consolidated 
statements of financial position as an asset. 
 
Costs and expenses in the consolidated statements of income are presented using the function 
of expense method. Costs of sales and services are expenses incurred that are associated with 
the goods sold and services rendered and include purchases of goods, distribution costs, labor 

cost and overhead. Operating expenses are costs attributable to administrative, marketing and 
other business activities of the Group. 
 
2.27 Leases 
 
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all 
the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating 
leases. The Group does not have any leases under finance lease. 
 
The Group as lessee 
 
Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease 
term, except when another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in 
which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed. Contingent rentals arising under 
operating leases are recognized as an expense in the period in which they are incurred. 
 
In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating leases, such incentives 
are recognized as a liability.  The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognized as a reduction 

of rental expense on a straight-line basis, except when another systematic basis is more 
representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset are 
consumed. 
 
2.28 Taxes 
  
Current income tax 
  
Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current period is measured at the amount 
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws 
used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted at the 
reporting date. 
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Current income tax relating to items recognized directly in equity is recognized in equity and 

not in the consolidated statement of income. Management periodically evaluates positions 

taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are 

subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate. 

Deferred tax 
 
Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on all temporary differences between the 
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for reporting purposes. 
 
Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except:  
 
(i) when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or 

liability in a transaction which is not a business combination and at the time of the 
transaction, affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and 
 

(ii) in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and 
associates and interest in joint ventures, when timing of the reversal of the temporary 
differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not 
reverse in the foreseeable future. 
 

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, the carry-forward 
of unused tax credits from excess minimum corporate income tax (MCIT) and net operating loss 
carry over (NOLCO), and any unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable 
profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and the carry-
forward of unused tax credits from MCIT and NOLCO and unused tax losses can be utilized, 
except:  
 

 when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary differences arises from 

the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business 
combination; and at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor 
taxable profit (or loss). 
 

 in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries 
and associates and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognized only to 
the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable 
future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be 

utilized. 
 

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to 
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow 
all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. 
 
Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognized to 
the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax 
asset to be recovered. 
 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in 
the year when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) 
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. 
 
Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or 
loss. Deferred tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in 
OCI or directly in equity. 
 

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to 
set off current tax assets against current income tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to 
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or 
different taxable entities which intend to either settle the liabilities simultaneously. 
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Value-added Tax (VAT) 
 
Revenue, expenses and assets are recognized net of the amount of VAT. 
 
For acquisition of capital goods over P1,000,000, the VAT is deferred and amortized over the 
useful life of the related capital goods or 60 months, whichever is shorter, commencing on the 
date of the acquisition. 
 

The net amount of VAT recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as 
part of ‘other current assets’ or ‘trade and other payables’ in the consolidated statements of 
financial position. 
 
2.29 Related parties 
 
Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability, directly or indirectly, to 
control the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial 
and operating decisions. Parties are also considered to be related if they are subject to 
common control. Related parties may be individuals or corporate entities. The key management 
personnel of the Group and post–employment benefit plans for the benefit of the Group’s 
employees are also considered to be related parties. 
 
2.30 Earnings per share (EPS) 
 
Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the Group by 
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year excluding ordinary shares 
purchased by the Group and held as treasury shares. 

 
Diluted EPS is calculated by adjusting the weighted average number of ordinary shares 
outstanding and assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. 
 
2.31 Events after the reporting date 
 
Post year-end events up to the date when the consolidated financial statements were 
authorized for issue by the BOD that provide additional information about the Group’s position 
at reporting date (adjusting events) are reflected in the consolidated financial statements. Post 
year-end events that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to the consolidated 
financial statements when material. 
 
2.32 Segment reporting 
 
An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from 
which it may earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to 
transactions with any of the Group’s other components. 
 

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to 
the chief operating decision-maker (CODM). The CODM, who is responsible for allocating 
resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the CEO 
that makes strategic decisions. 
 
An operating segment may engage in business activities for which it has yet to earn revenues, 
for example, start-up operations may be operating segments before earning revenues. 
 
Segment results that are reported to the CEO include items directly attributable to a segment 
as well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis. Unallocated items comprise mainly 
corporate assets, head office expenses, interest income and expenditures and income tax 
assets and liabilities. 
 
Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the year to acquire property, and 
equipment.  
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Segment information is disclosed in Note 8 of the consolidated financial statements. 
 
 
NOTE 3 – SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS 
 
The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with PFRS requires the 
management to make estimates, assumptions and judgments that affect the amounts reported 
in the consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes. 

 
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experiences and other various 
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances including expectations of 
related future events, the results of which form the basis of making the judgments about 
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual 
results may differ from these estimates.  
 
The estimates, assumptions and judgments are reviewed and evaluated on an ongoing basis.  
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised 
if the revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the 
revision affects both current and future periods. 

 
Judgments 

 
Going concern 
 

The Group’s management has made an assessment on the Group’s ability to continue as a going 

concern and is satisfied that the Group has the resources to continue their business for the 

foreseeable future. Furthermore, management is not aware of any material uncertainties that 

may cast significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. Therefore, 

the consolidated financial statements continue to be prepared on the going concern basis. 

 

Determination of functional currency 
 

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Philippines Peso, which is also the 

Group’s functional currency. For each entity, the Group determines the functional currency and 

items included in the consolidated financial statements of each entity are measured using that 

functional currency.  

 

Classification of financial instruments 

 

The Group classifies a financial instrument, or its component parts, on initial recognition as a 

financial asset, a financial liability or an equity instrument in accordance with the substance of 

the contractual agreement and the guidelines set by PAS 39 on the definitions of a financial 

asset, a financial liability or an equity instrument. In addition, the Group also determines and 

evaluates its intention and ability to keep the investments until its maturity date.   

 

The substance of a financial instrument, rather than its legal form, and the management’s 

intention and ability to hold the financial instrument to maturity generally governs its 

classification in the consolidated statements of financial position. 
 
The classification of financial assets and liabilities is presented in Note 6. 
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Determination whether an arrangement contains a lease 
 
The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains, a lease is based on the substance 
of the arrangement at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is assessed for whether 
fulfillment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets or the 
arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly 
specified in the arrangement. 
 
The Group has entered into operating lease arrangement as a lessee. The Group, as a lessee, 

has determined that the lessor retains substantial risks and rewards of ownership of these 
properties, which are on operating lease agreements. 
 
Leases accounted for as operating leases are disclosed in Note 28. 
 
Estimates 
 
Impairment of loan and trade and other receivables 
 
The Group reviews its loans and receivables at each reporting date to assess whether a 
provision for impairment should be recognized in its consolidated statement of income or loans 
and receivables balance should be written off. In particular, judgment by management is 
required in the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows when determining the 
level of allowance is required. Such estimates are based on assumptions about a number of 
factors and actual results may differ, resulting in future changes to the allowance. Moreover, 
management evaluates the presence of objective evidence of impairment which includes 
observable data that comes to the attention of the Group about loss events such as but not 
limited to significant financial difficulty of the counterparty, a breach of contract, such as a 

default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, probability that the borrower will 
enter bankruptcy or other financial re-organization.  
 
The carrying value of loans receivable amounted to P9,650,000 and P9,650,000 as at March 31, 
2015 and December 31, 2014 (see Note 11). The carrying value of trade and other receivables 
amounted to P270,137,920 and P268,582,864 as at March 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, 
respectively (see Note 10). The Group did not provide an allowance for impairment loss on 
trade receivables for the three-month periods ended March 31, 2015 and 2014. 
 
Determination of NRV and impairment of inventories 
 
The Group, in determining the NRV, considers any adjustment necessary for obsolescence which 
is generally providing a 100% write down for nonmoving items for more than one year. The 
Group adjusts the cost of inventory to the recoverable value at a level considered adequate to 
reflect any market decline in the value of the recorded inventories. The Group reviews the 
classification of the inventories and generally provides adjustments for recoverable values of 
new, actively sold and slow-moving inventories by reference to prevailing values of the same 
inventories in the market. 

 
The amount and timing of recorded expenses for any period would differ if different judgments 
were made or different estimates were utilized. An increase in inventory obsolescence and 
market decline would increase recorded operating expenses and decrease current assets. 
 
At each reporting date, inventories are assessed for impairment by comparing the carrying 
amount of each item of inventory (or group of similar items) with its selling price less costs to 
sell. If an item of inventory (or group of similar items) is impaired, its carrying amount is 
reduced to selling price less costs to sell, and an impairment loss is recognized immediately in 
profit or loss. 
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Based on management’s assessment, inventories are fairly stated, thus, no impairment loss 
needs to be recognized for the years ended March 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014 . The 
carrying amount of inventories amounted to P188,089,490 and P153,656,818 as at March 31, 
2015 and December 31 2014, respectively (see Note 12). 
 
Impairment of non-financial assets other than inventories and biological assets for sale 
(weanlings) 
 
The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that the carrying 

amount of all non-financial assets may be impaired. If any such indication exists, or when 
annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group makes an estimate of the asset’s 
recoverable amount. At the reporting date, the Group assesses whether there is any indication 
that previously recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If 
such indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.  
 
Management has reviewed the carrying values of the Group’s non-current biological assets, 
investment properties and property and equipment as at March 31, 2015 and December 31, 
2014 for impairment. Based on the results of its evaluation, there were no indications that the 
non-financial assets were impaired, thus, no impairment loss needs to be recognized in the 
three-month period March 31, 2015 and 2014. 
 
The details of the carrying values as at March 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014 of the Group’s 
non-financial assets are as follow: 
 
  2015 

 
2014 

  
   Noncurrent biological assets (Note 13)  P56,162,357 

 
P56,162,357 

Investment properties (Note 14)  392,071,683 
 

392,071,683 

Property and equipment, net (Note 15)  434,249,610 
 

439,375,297 

  P882,483,650 
 

P887,609,337 

 
Estimation of useful lives of investment properties and property and equipment 
 
The Group reviews annually the estimated useful lives of property and equipment based on the 
period over which the assets are expected to be available for use. It is possible that future 
results of operations could be materially affected by changes in these estimates. A reduction in 
the estimated useful lives of property and equipment would increase recorded depreciation and 
amortization expense and decrease the related asset accounts.  
 
The estimated useful lives of property and equipment are discussed in Note 2.13 to the 
consolidated financial statements which showed no changes during the three-month periods 
ended March 31, 2015 and 2014. 
 
Estimation of useful lives of biological assets at cost 
 
The EUL of noncurrent biological assets is reviewed annually based on expected utilization as 
anchored on business plans and strategies that considers market behavior to ensure that the 

period of depreciation is consistent with the expected pattern of economic benefits from items 
of biological assets. The EUL of noncurrent biological assets at cost is three years as set out in 
Notes 2.12. 
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Determination of fair values less estimated costs to sell of biological assets for sale 
(weanlings) 
 
The fair values of swine for sales are determined based on current market prices of livestock of 
similar age, breed and genetic merit. Costs to sell costs include commissions to brokers and 
dealers, nonrefundable transfer taxes and duties. Costs to sell exclude transportation and other 
costs necessary to get the biological assets to the market. The fair values are reviewed and 
updated, if expectations differ from previous estimates due to changes brought by both 
physical change and price changes in the market. It is possible that future results of operations 

could be materially affected by changes in these estimates brought about by the changes in 
factors mentioned. 
 
The Group recognized gains arising from changes in the fair market value of biological assets 
included in ‘Other operating income net’ in the consolidated statements of income amounting 
to nil and P1,130,454 in 2015 and 2014 (see Notes 13 and 22). 
 
The carrying value of the Group’s biological assets carried at fair values less estimated costs to 
sell is disclosed in Note 13 to the consolidated financial statements. 
 
Realizability of deferred tax assets 

 
Management reviews the carrying amount of deferred tax assets at each reporting date. The 
carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable 
that sufficient taxable profit will be available against which the related tax assets can be 
utilized. Management believes that sufficient taxable profit will be generated to allow all or 
part of the deferred tax assets to be utilized.  
 
The Group’s recognized deferred tax assets amounted to P3,964,167 and P3,833,997 as at 

March 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, respectively (see Note 27). 
 
Revenue from contract growing 
 
The Group’s revenue recognition policy with regard to its contract growing requires the use of 
estimates and assumptions that may affect the reported amounts of revenues and receivables. 
The Group identifies at the end of every month the stage of completion of service activity 
based on the expected housing population at the end of each operating cycle, or the housing 
time. Housing time is the period when the obligation of the Group as stated in the service 
agreements is carried out (see Note 28). Differences between the amounts initially recognized 
and actual settlements are taken up in the accounts upon reconciliation. However, there is no 
assurance that such use of estimates may not result in material adjustments in future periods. 
 
The Group started its contract growing operations in 2013 and the revenue earned from 
contract growing for the three-month period ended March 31, 2015 and 2014 amounted to nil 
and P6,913,477, respectively (see Note 19). 
 
Revenue from meat processing 

 
The Group’s revenue recognition policy with regard to its contract growing requires the use of 
estimates and assumptions that may affect the reported amounts of revenues and receivables. 
When the outcome of the transaction involving the rendering of services can be measured 
reliably, revenue associated with the transaction is recognized by reference to the stage of 
completion of the transaction. Service is deemed completed when the meat has been processed 
into specified cuts as agreed with the customers. 
 
The Group started its meat processing operations in 2014 and the revenue earned from meat 
processing for the three-month period ended March 31, 2015 and 2014 amounted to 
P11,724,529 and nil (see Note 19). 
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Revenue from meat processing 
 
The Group’s revenue recognition policy with regard to its contract growing requires the use of 
estimates and assumptions that may affect the reported amounts of revenues and receivables. 
When the outcome of the transaction involving the rendering of services can be measured 
reliably, revenue associated with the transaction is recognized by reference to the stage of 
completion of the transaction. Service is deemed completed when the meat has been processed 
into specified cuts as agreed with the customers. 
 

The Group started its meat processing operations in 2014 and the revenue earned from meat 
processing for the three-month period ended March 31, 2015 and 2014 amounted to 
P11,724,529 and nil, respectively (see Note 19). 
 
Estimation of retirement benefits 
 
The costs of retirement benefits as well as the present value of the retirement obligation are 
determined using actuarial valuations. The actuarial valuation involves making various 
assumptions by management. These include the determination of the discount rates, future 
salary increases, mortality rates and future pension increases. While the Group believes that 
the assumptions are reasonable and appropriate, significant differences in the actual 
experience or significant changes in the assumptions may materially affect the retirement 
obligations due to the complexity of the valuation, the underlying assumptions and its long-
term nature, thus, all assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date. In determining the 
appropriate discount rate, management considers the interest rates of government bonds that 
are denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid, with extrapolated 
maturities corresponding to the expected duration of the defined benefit obligation.  
 

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables for the specific country and is 
modified accordingly with estimates of mortality improvements. Future salary increases and 
pension increases are based on expected future inflation rates for the specific country. 
 
The details of the Group’s retirement benefit costs are provided in Note 26. Retirement liability 
amounted to P5,847,890 and P5,611,387 as at March 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, 
respectively. Net retirement benefit costs presented under operating expenses amounted to 
P165,249 and P257,915  for the three-month period ended March 31, 2015 and 2014, 
respectively (see Notes 21 and 26) while net interest on defined benefit obligation presented 
under finance costs amounted to P71,254 and P49,527  the three-month periods ended March 
31, 2015 and 2014, respectively (see Note 26). 
 
 
NOTE 4 – FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT 
 
The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of each asset and 
liability for which it is practicable to estimate such value: 
 

Cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables, trade and other payables and short-
term borrowings. Carrying amounts approximate their fair values due to the relatively short-
term maturities of these instruments. 
 
Amounts due from and due to related parties. Carrying amounts of due from and due to related 
parties which are collectible/payable on demand approximate their fair values. Due from 
related parties are unsecured and have no foreseeable terms of repayments. 
 
Biological assets. Swine livestock for sale (weanlings) are measured at their fair values less 
costs to sell. The fair values are determined based on current market prices of livestock of 
similar age, breed and genetic merit. Costs to sell include commissions to brokers and dealers, 
nonrefundable transfer taxes and duties. Costs to sell exclude transport and other costs 
necessary to get the biological assets to the market. 
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Investment properties. The carrying amount of the investment properties approximates its fair 
value as of reporting date. Fair value of investment properties are based on market data (or 
direct sales comparison) approach. This approach relies on the comparison of recent sale 
transactions or offerings of similar properties which have occurred and/or offered with close 
proximity to the subject property. The fair values of the Group’s investment properties have 
been determined by independent external appraisers, in the basis of the recent sales of similar 
properties in the same areas as the investment properties and taking into account the economic 
conditions prevailing at the time of the valuations are made. The Group has determined that 
the highest and best use of the property used for the land and building is its current use. 

 
Long-term borrowings. The fair value of long-term borrowings is based on the discounted value 
of future cash flows (interests and principal) using the applicable rates for similar types of 
loans. The discount rates used range from 9.87% to 10.47% in 2014 and 2013. 
 
Fair value hierarchy assets and liabilities 
 
Assets and liabilities carried at fair value are those whose fair values are required to be 
disclosed. 

 Level 1: quoted (unadjusted) prices in active market for identical assets or liabilities; 

 Level 2: other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect o the recorded 

fair value are observable , either directly or indirectly; and  

 Level 3: techniques which use inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair 
value that are not based on observable market data. 

 
The following table shows the Parent Company’s asset carried at fair value: 
 
  December 31, 2014  

 Carrying value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total fair value 

Biological assets (Note 13)      
 Current   P3,344,996 P3,344,996 P- P- P3,344,996 

 

The Group has no assets and liabilities carried at fair values as at December 31, 2013. 
 
Significant Unobservable Inputs 
 
Size Size of lot in terms of area. Evaluate if the lot size of property or 

comparable conforms to the average cut of lots in the area and estimate the 
impact of the lot size differences in land value. 

Shape Particular form or configuration of the lot. A highly  irregular shape limits 
the usable area whereas an ideal lot configuration maximizes the usable 
area of the lot which is associated in designing an improvement which 
conforms with the highest and best use of the property. 

Location Location of comparative properties whether on a main road, or secondary 
road. Road width could also be a consideration if data is available. As a rule, 
properties located along a main road are superior to properties located 
along a secondary road. 

Time element An adjustment for market conditions is made if general property values have 
appreciated or depreciated since the transaction dates due to inflation or 

deflation or a change in investor’s perceptions of the market over time. In 
which case, the current data is superior to historic data. 

Discount Generally, asking prices in ads posted for sale are negotiable. Discount is 
the amount the seller or developer is willing to deduct from the posted 
selling price if the transaction will be in cash or equity. 

Risk premium The return in excess of the risk-free rate of return that an investment is 
expected. 
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Assets and liabilities carried at amortized cost for which fair values are disclosed: 
 
The table below summarizes the fair value hierarchy of the Group’s assets and liabilities which 
are not measured at fair value in the consolidated financial position as at March 31, 2015 and 
December 31, 2014 but for which fair values are disclosed. 
 
  March 31, 2015  

 Carrying value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total fair value 

Financial assets      
Loans and receivables      
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 9) P339,678,735 P339,678,735 P- P- P339,678,735 
Trade and other receivables, net* 

(Note 10) 254,870,154 - - 254,870,154 254,870,154 
Loans receivable (Note 11) 9,650,000 - - 9,650,000 9,650,000 
Advances to related parties (Note 25) 150,275,682 - - 150,275,682 150,275,682 
Refundable security deposit (Note 28) 1,652,566 - - 1,652,566 1,652,566 

 756,127,137 339,678,735 - 416,448,402 756,127,137 

      
Investment properties (Note 14) 392,071,683 - 392,071,683 - 392,071,683 
Biological assets       
 Noncurrent (Note 13) 56,162,357 - 56,162,357 - 56,162,357 

 448,234,040 - 448,234,040 0 448,234,040 

 P1,204,361,177 P339,678,735 P448,234,040 P416,448,402 P1,204,361,177 

  March 31, 2015  

 Carrying value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total fair value 

      
Financial liabilities      
Other financial liabilities      
Trade payables and other payables  

(Note 16)* P111,648,995 P- P- P111,648,995 P111,648,995 
Borrowings (Note 17) 699,367,056 - - 699,367,056 699,367,056 
Advances from related parties (Note 25) 19,526,234 - - 19,526,234 19,526,234 

 P830,542,285 P- P- P830,542,285 P830,542,285 

 
 
  December 31, 2014  

 Carrying value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total fair value 

Financial assets      
Loans and receivables      
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 9) P378,513,908 P378,513,908 P- P- P378,513,908 
Trade and other receivables, net* 

(Note 10) 261,847,051 - - 261,847,051 261,847,051 
Loans receivable (Note 11) 9,650,000   9,650,000 9,650,000 
Advances to related parties (Note 25) 97,176,174 - - 97,176,174 97,176,174 
Refundable security deposit (Note 28) 1,652,566 - - 1,652,566 1,652,566 

 P748,839,699 P378,513,908 P-  P370,325,791 P748,839,699 

      
Investment properties (Note 14) 392,071,683 - 392,071,683 - 392,071,683 
Biological assets       
 Noncurrent (Note 13) 56,162,357 - 56,162,357 - 56,162,357 

 448,234,040 - 448,234,040 - 448,234,040 

 P1,197,073,739 P378,513,908 P448,234,040  P370,325,791 P1,197,073,739 

  December 31, 2014  

 Carrying value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total fair value 

      
Financial liabilities      
Other financial liabilities      
Trade payables and other payables  

(Note 16)* P112,329,759  P- P- P112,329,759  P112,329,759  
Borrowings (Note 17) 716,982,511 - - 716,982,511 716,982,511 
Advances from related parties (Note 25) 22,719,986 - - 22,719,986 22,719,986 

 P852,032,256 P- P- P852,032,256 P852,032,256 

 
*Excluding government liabilities 
**Excluding advances to employees and suppliers  
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Description of significant unobservable inputs to valuation: 
 

Account Valuation technique 
Significant unobservable 

inputs 

Loans and receivable Discounted cash flow method 4.85% risk premium rate 

Investment properties Market data approach 

Price per square meter, size, 
shape, location, time, 
element and discount 

Long term borrowings Discounted cash flow method 
5.12% to 5.72% risk premium 
rate 

 
Significant increases (decreases) in price per square meter and size of investment properties 
would result in a significantly higher (lower) fair value of the properties. Significant increases 
(decreases) in discount would result in a significantly lower (higher) fair value of the 
properties. 
 
 
NOTE 5 – FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

 
The following table shows the classification, carrying values and fair values of the Group’s 
financial assets and financial liabilities as at March 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014: 
 

 
2015 2014 

 
Carrying value Fair value Carrying value Fair value 

Financial assets:       
Loans and receivables     
Cash and cash equivalents 
(Note 9) P339,678,735 P339,678,735 P378,513,908 P378,513,908 

Trade and other receivables, 
net* (Note 10) 254,870,154 254,870,154 261,847,051 261,847,051 

Loans receivable (Note 11) 9,650,000 9,650,000 9,650,000 9,650,000 
Advances to related parties 
(Note 25) 

150,275,682 150,275,682 

97,176,174 97,176,174 
Refundable security deposit 
(Note 28) 

1,652,566 1,652,566 

1,652,566 1,652,566 

 

P756,127,137 P756,127,137 P748,839,699 P748,839,699 

*Exclusive of advances to suppliers and employees 
 

 2015 2014 

 Carrying value Fair value Carrying value Fair value 

Financial liabilities:     
Other financial liabilities     
Trade and other payables 
(Note 16)* P111,648,995 P111,648,995 P112,329,759  P112,329,759  

Borrowings (Note 17) 699,367,056 699,367,056 716,982,511 716,982,511 
Advances from related parties 
(Note 25) 19,526,234 19,526,234 22,719,986 22,719,986 

 P830,542,285 P830,542,285 P852,032,256 P852,032,256 

*Exclusive of government liabilities 

 
Due to the short-term nature of the transactions, the carrying amounts of cash and cash 
equivalents, trade and other receivables, loans receivable, and borrowings, advances to (from) 
related parties, trade and other payables, and short-term borrowings approximate its fair 
values as at the reporting date. 
 
The fair value of the refundable security deposit is based on the approximate discounted value 
of future cash flows using an interest rate of 3% on similar financial instruments with a term of 
three years. The difference in the fair value and the carrying value of the refundable security 

deposits will not materially affect the Group’s financial position. 
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The fair value of the long term borrowings from a bank is based on its carrying amount which 
approximates the discounted value of future cash flows using interest rates ranging from 9.87% 
to 10.47%. 
 
The fair value of the long term loans receivable is based on its carrying amount which 
approximates the discounted value of future cash flows using its interest rate of 6% payable on 
the balance at the end of every month. 
 
The income, expense, gains and/or losses recognized from financial instruments for the years 

ended March 31, 2015 and 2014 are as follows: 
 
 2015  2014  

     
Finance costs (Note 24) P10,633,496      P9,023,621  
Impairment loss on trade receivables  (Note 22) 

-   
 

 P10,633,496      P9,023,621  

     
 P-         P719,808  

Finance income (Note 23) P-  P719,808  

 
The following table shows the financial asset and liability as presented in the consolidated 
statements of financial position as at December 31, 2013 that are set-off in accordance with 
PAS 32: 
 

 
Financial assets  

Gross amount 
of recognized 

financial 
asset 

 Gross 
amount of 
recognized 
liability set 

off   

Net amount 
of financial 

asset  

 
December 31, 2013   

 
   

Loans receivable  P120,000,000  (P120,000,000)  P- 
Trade and other receivables  237,592,171  (16,200,000)  221,392,171 

  P357,592,171  (P136,200,000)  P221,392,171 

 

Financial liability  

Gross amount 
of recognized 

financial 
liability  

Gross amount 
of recognized 
financial asset 

set off  

Net amount of 
financial 
liability 

 
December 31, 2013   

 
   

Advances from related parties  P151,021,776  (P136,200,000)   P14,821,776 

 
Non-cash settlement was made by the Group on its advances from related parties through 
offsetting on the amount of loans receivable and the related accrued interest receivable as at 
December 31, 2013. 

 
There are no settlement made for the year ended December 31, 2014 that involves offsetting of 
financial assets and liabilities. 
  
There are no amounts subject to an enforceable master netting arrangement or similar 
arrangement that are not otherwise included in the table above. 
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NOTE 6 – FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES 
 
General objectives, policies and processes 
 
The BOD has overall responsibility and authority for the determination of the Group's risk 
management objectives and policies and designing and operating processes that ensure the 
effective implementation of such objectives and policies. The BOD has constituted certain 
committees to effectively manage the operations of the Group. The Group’s principal 
committees of the BOD include the Executive Committee, the Audit Committee, the 

Compensation Committee and the Nominations Committee. A brief description of the functions 
and responsibilities of the key committees are set out below: 
 
Executive Committee 
 
The Executive Committee is composed of three (3) members of the BOD. The Executive 
Committee may act by majority of all its members, on such specific matters within the 
competence of, and as may be delegated by the BOD. 
 
Audit Committee 
 
The Audit Committee provides an oversight of financial management functions, specifically in 
the areas of managing credit, liquidity, market, operational, legal and other risks and is 
primarily responsible for monitoring the statutory requirements of the Group. The Audit 
Committee is responsible for the setting up of an internal audit department and for the 
appointment of an internal auditor, as well as an independent external auditor. It monitors and 
evaluates the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s internal control systems. It ensures 
that the BOD is taking appropriate corrective action in addressing control and compliance 

functions with regulatory agencies. It also ensures the Group’s adherence to corporate 
principles, best practices and compliance with the Manual on Corporate Governance.  
 
Compensation Committee 
 
The Compensation Committee is primarily responsible for establishing a formal and transparent 
procedure for developing a policy on executive remuneration and for fixing the remuneration 
packages of corporate officers who are receiving compensation from the Group. It is responsible 
for providing an oversight of remuneration of senior management and other key personnel and 
ensuring that compensation is consistent with the Group’s culture, strategy and control 
environment.  
 
Nomination Committee 
 
The Nomination Committee is primarily responsible for the review and evaluation of the 
qualifications of all persons nominated to positions requiring appointment by the BOD and the 
assessment of the BOD’s effectiveness in directing the process of renewing and replacing Board 
members.  

 
The overall objective of the BOD is to set polices that seek to reduce risk as far as possible 
without unduly affecting the Group's competitiveness and flexibility. 
 
Financial risk management objectives and policies 
 
The Group is exposed through its operations to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The 
Group’s overall risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets 
and seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.  
 
There have been no substantive changes in the Group's exposure to financial instrument risks, 
its objectives, policies and processes for managing those risks or the methods used to measure 
them from previous periods unless otherwise stated in this note. 
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The policies for managing specific risks are summarized below: 
 
(a) Market risk 
 

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will 

fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market prices comprise three types of risk: 

interest rate risk, foreign currency risk and commodity price risk. Financial instruments 

affected by market risk include cash equivalents and bank borrowings. 
 
i. Interest rate risk 
 

 2015  2014 

 
Outstanding balance  P699,367,056 

 
P716,982,513 

 
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will 
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Group’s exposure to the risk of 
changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s bank borrowings. To mitigate 

this risk, it is the Group’s practice to obtain financing generally from short term loans with 
average renewable terms of 90 to 120 days. The Group has never been in default in making 
principal and interest payments. 
 
Interest rate sensitivity   

 
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest 
rates on that portion of borrowings with all other variables held constant, the Group’s profit 
before tax is affected as follows: 
 

 Increase/decrease 
 Effect on 

profit 
 in interest rate  before tax 

    
2015 +1%  (P6,888,110) 

 -1%  P6,888,110  

2014 +1%  (P6,888,110) 

 -1%  P6,888,110  

2013 +1%  (P6,137,353) 

 -1%  P6,137,353  

 
The assumed movement in interest rates for the interest rate sensitivity analysis is based on the 
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest rates during the years 
presented. 
  
ii. Foreign currency risk 

 
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument 
will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group’s exposure to the risk of 
changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to cash equivalent denominated in a 
currency different from the Group’s functional currency. The principal currency risks to which 
the Group is exposed involve the U.S. Dollar (US$). With the exception of maintaining a foreign 
currency denominated bank deposit, the Group does not enter into foreign currency 
denominated transactions which will result to recognition of either a foreign currency 
denominated monetary liability or asset to mitigate the risk of changes in foreign exchange 
rates at the reporting date, or upon settlement or collection of said financial instruments. 
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The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk on its foreign currency denominated monetary 
asset since the effect of foreign currency changes on the consolidated financial statements is 
material. The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency denominated monetary asset as 
at March 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014 are as follows: 
 
 2015 2014 

 Amount in 
foreign 

currency 
Peso 

equivalent 

Amount in 
foreign 

currency 
Peso 

equivalent 

Monetary asset     
 Cash in bank (Note 9)     
     US Dollar (US$) US$4,000,000  P179,184,000 US$4,000,000  P187,244,000  
     

Monetary liabilities     
 Trade payables (Note 16)     
     Euro (€) €250,000 P12,124,025 €250,000 P13,815,525 

 
Foreign currency sensitivity analysis 
 
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in the foreign 
currency exchange rate, with all other variables held constant, of the Group’s profit before 

tax.  
 
 Changes in 

foreign 
currency rates 

 

Effect on profit before tax* 

   2015  2014  2013 

        
US$ +10%  P17,918,400  P18,724,400   P17,738,000  
 -10%  (P17,918,400)  (P18,724,400)  (P17,738,000) 
        
€ +10%  P1,212,402  P1,381,523  P- 
 -10%  (P1,212,402)  (P1,381,523)  (P-) 
 
*Amounts were translated using foreign exchange rates from the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas. 

 
iii. Commodity price risk 
 
Commodity price risk is the risk related to the volatility of price of certain commodities. The 
Group is not exposed to this risk as its operations do not constitute goods which prices are 
volatile.  

 
(b) Credit risk 
 
Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation 
and cause the other party to incur a financial loss. The receivable balances are monitored on an 
ongoing basis with the result that the Group’s exposure to impairment is not significant. The 
Group has a credit and collection department that is consolidated and independent from the 
sales department. The Group instituted this consolidated department even though the normal 

practice in its industry is that the sales people are also the ones who collect the receivables. 
The Group deals only with creditworthy counterparty duly approved by the management. 
 
The credit quality of the financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired is considered to 
be good quality and expected to be collectible without incurring any credit losses. 
 
Credit losses from balances with banks are managed by ensuring that the Group’s deposit 
arrangements are with reputable and financially sound counterparty. 
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The following table provides information regarding the maximum credit risk exposure of the 
Group arising from its financial assets as at March 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014: 
 
 2015  2014 

    
Cash in banks and cash equivalents (Note 9) P339,678,735  P369,755,519 
Trade and other receivables* (Note 10) 254,870,154  265,011,185 
Advances to related parties (Note 25) 9,650,000  97,176,174 
Loans receivables (Note 11) 150,275,682      9,650,000  
Refundable security deposit (Note 28) 1,652,566  1,652,566 

 P756,127,137  P743,245,444 
*Exclusive of advances to suppliers and employees 

 
The following table provides information regarding the Group’s analysis of the age of financial 
assets by class as at March 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014: 
 
 

March 31, 2015 

Neither past 
due nor 
impaired 

Past due but not impaired 

Impaired Total 31-60 days 61-90 days 
Over 90 

days 

Loans and receivables 
    

 
Cash in banks and 

cash equivalents P339,678,735 P- P- P- P- P339,678,735 
Trade and other 

receivables* 243,197,973 1,837,103 36,445 6,634,499 3,164,134 254,870,154 
Advances to related 
 parties  9,650,000 - - - - 9,650,000 
Loans receivable 150,275,682 - - - - 150,275,682 
Refundable 

security deposit 1,652,566 - - - - 1,652,566 

 
P744,454,956 P1,837,103 P36,445 P6,634,499 P3,164,134 P756,127,137 

 
 
 
 
 
 

     
 

December 31, 2014 

Neither past 
due nor 
impaired 

Past due but not impaired 

Impaired Total 31-60 days 61-90 days Over 90 days 

Loans and receivables 
    

 
Cash in banks and 

cash equivalents P339,678,735 P- P- P- P- P369,755,519 
Trade and other 

receivables* 246,362,107 1,837,103 36,445 6,634,499 3,164,134 258,034,288 
Advances to related 
 parties  9,650,000 - - - - 97,176,174 
Loans receivable 150,275,682 - - - - 9,650,000 
Refundable security 

deposit 1,652,566 - - - - 1,652,566 

 
P747,619,090 P1,837,103 P36,445 P6,634,499 P3,164,134 P736,268,547 

*Exclusive of advances to suppliers and employees 

 
There were no other credit enhancements attached to the Group’s financial assets.  
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Credit quality per class of financial assets 
 
The Group’s bases in grading its financial assets are as follows: 
 
High grade - These are receivables which have a high probability of collection (the counterparty 
has the apparent ability to satisfy its obligation and the security on the receivables are readily 
enforceable). 
 
Standard grade - These are receivables where collections are probable due to the reputation 

and the financial ability of the counterparty to pay but have been outstanding for a certain 
period of time. 
 
Substandard grade - These are receivables that can be collected provided the Group makes 
persistent effort to collect them. 
 
The table below shows the credit quality by class of financial assets of the Group based on their 
historical experience with the corresponding parties as at March 31, 2015 and December 31, 
2014: 
 

 
March 31, 2015 

 
Neither past due nor impaired Past due 

but not 
impaired 

  

 
High grade 

Standard Substandard 

Unrated Impaired Total grade grade 

Loans and receivables 
      Cash in banks and 

cash equivalents P339,678,735 P- P- P- P- P- P369,755,519 
Trade and other 

receivables 246,362,107 - - - 8,508,046 3,164,134 265,011,185 
Advances to related 
parties  9,650,000 - - - - - 97,176,174 
Loans receivable  150,275,682 - - - - -      9,650,000  
Refundable security 

deposit 1,652,566 - - - - - 1,652,566 

 
P747,619,090 P- P- P- P8,508,046 P3,164,134 P743,245,444 

 

 
December 31, 2014 

 
Neither past due nor impaired Past due 

but not 
impaired 

  

 
High grade 

Standard Substandard 

Unrated Impaired Total grade grade 

Loans and receivables 
      Cash in banks and 

cash equivalents 369,755,519 P- P- P- P- P- P369,755,519 
Trade and other 

receivables 253,339,005 - - - 8,508,046 3,164,134 265,011,185 
Advances to related 
parties  97,176,174 - - - - - 97,176,174 
Loans receivable       9,650,000  - - - - -      9,650,000  
Refundable security 

deposit 1,652,566 - - - - - 1,652,566 

 
P731,573,264 P- P- P- P8,508,046 P3,164,134 P743,245,444 

 
The credit quality of the Group’s financial assets is evaluated using internal credit rating. 
Financial assets are considered high grade if the counterparties are not expected to default in 
settling their obligations, thus credit risk exposure is minimal. These counterparties include 
banks, customers with no past due accounts and related parties who pay on or before due date. 
 
The Group has no financial assets whose terms have been renegotiated. 
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(c) Liquidity risk 
 
This represents the risk or difficulty in raising funds to meet the Group’s commitment 
associated with financial obligation and daily cash flow requirement. The Group is exposed to 
the possibility that adverse exchanges in the business environment and/or its operations would 
result to substantially higher working capital requirements and the subsequent difficulty in 
financing additional working capital. 
 

The Group addresses liquidity concerns primarily through cash flows from operations and short-
term borrowings, if necessary. The Group has credit lines with several of the top banks of the 
Philippines which gives it financial flexibility in its operations. The Group likewise regularly 
evaluates other financing instruments to broaden the Group’s range of financing sources. 
 
The following table summarizes the maturity profile of the Group’s other financial liabilities as 
at March 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014 respectively, based on the contractual undiscounted 
payments: 
 
At March 31, 2015 

 On demand Within 1 year 

More than 1 
year but 
not more 

than 5 
years Total 

     

Trade and other 
payables* P111,648,995 P- P- P111,648,995 

Borrowings - 697,496,210 2,663,197 700,159,407 

Advances from related 
parties 19,526,234 - - 19,526,234 

 P131,175,229 P697,496,210 P2,663,197 P831,334,636 

 
*Exclusive of government liabilities 

 
 
At December 31, 2014 

 On demand Within 1 year 

More than 1 
year but 
not more 

than 5 
years Total 

     

Trade and other payables* P100,476,938 P- P- P100,476,938 

Borrowings - 714,540,382 3,114,262 717,654,644 

Advances from related 
parties 66,070,899 - - 66,070,899 

 P166,547,837 P714,540,382 P3,114,262 P884,202,481 
*Exclusive of government liabilities 
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The contractual undiscounted payments related to borrowings consist of the principal amount 
and future interests, details of which are as follow: 
 

  
2015  2014 

Principal of loan 
 

P699,607,661  P716,982,512 
Current portion  (697,152,023)  (714,146,105) 

Net of current portion  P2,455,638  P2,836,407 

   
 

 Future interest 
 

P551,746  P672,132 
Current portion  344,187  (394,277) 

Net of current portion  P207,559  P277,855 

   
 

 Cash flow from principal of loan  P699,607,661  P716,982,512 
Cash flow from future interest  551,746  672,132 

  
P700,159,407  P717,654,644 

 
The Group holds liquid financial assets amounting to P756,127,137 and P800,864,614 as at 
March 31, 2015 and December 31,2014, respectively, that are expected to readily generate 
cash inflows for managing liquidity risk (see Note 6). 
 
Capital risk management 

 
The Group manages its capital structure (total equity) and makes adjustments to it, in light of 
changes in economic conditions. Total equity comprises all components of equity including 
share capital, share premium, treasury shares, remeasurement loss on defined benefit plans 
and retained earnings which amounted to P910,146,720 and P873,755,628 as at March 31, 2015 
and December 31, 2014, respectively. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group 
may adjust or delay the dividend payment to shareholders and appropriate a percentage of 
retained earnings towards expansion and capital expenditures.  
 
The Group through the finance function sets operational targets and performance indicators in 
order to assure that the capital and returns requirements are achieved. Appropriate monitoring 

and reporting systems accompany these targets and indicators to assess the achievement of 
Group goals and institute appropriate action. 
 
No changes were made in the objectives, policies and processes in 2014 and 2013. 
 
The Group has no externally imposed capital requirements. 
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NOTE 7 – BUSINESS COMBINATION 
 
The following table summarizes the Parent Company’s shareholdings on the investees: 
 

Subsidiaries Date of incorporation 

Total number 
of shares 

subscribed 

Par 

value 

Total value 
of shares 

subscribed Amount paid 

Percentage 
of 

ownership 

       
Agri Phil  Corporation January 18, 2011 64,955,249 P1 P64,955,249 P64,955,249 100% 
Brookfields Meat Inc. December 11, 2013 3,187,500 1 3,187,500 3,187,500 51% 

    68,142,749 P68,142,749  

 

a. Agri Phil Corporation (APC) 
 
Acquisition of APC 
 
As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, the Parent Company’s BOD 
approved the conversion of its P55,455,249 worth of advances to equity shares in APC as well as 
the purchase of all the issued and outstanding shares of stock therein on July 19, 2012.  On 
August 3, 2012, the SEC approved said conversion which resulted to the Parent Company owning 
85.37% equity stake in the shareholdings of APC.  The investing public, including all the 
shareholders of the Parent Company have been informed of this development through timely 
and complete disclosure with the SEC via the filing of the requisite SEC Form 17-C and the 
uploading thereof with the PSE via the PSE Online Disclosure System.  The Parent Company 
acquired APC since the subsidiary’s retail chain stores allow the Parent Company to sell its 
products on a significant larger area than it has previously access to, thus increasing its market 
share. 
 
Assets acquired and liabilities assumed 

 
The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of APC as at the date of acquisition are 
as follows: 
 
Assets 

  Cash and cash equivalents P21,529,109 
 Other receivables 606,887 
 Inventories 94,141,759 
 Property and equipment 28,045,513 

 
144,323,268 

Liabilities 
  Advances from related parties 29,944,280 

 Trade and other payables 47,842,868 

 
77,787,148 

  Total identifiable net assets at fair value 66,536,120 

  Non-controlling interest  measured at the non-controlling interest's share of 
the acquiree's identifiable net assets      (2,867,706) 

Gain from bargain purchase  (8,213,165) 

Purchase consideration transferred P55,455,249 

 
The fair value of other receivables equals its book value. None of these receivables have been 
impaired and that the full contractual amounts can be collected. 
 

On December 31, 2012, the Parent Company completed the acquisition of 100% ownership over 
APC. Cash consideration of P9,500,000 was paid to all the minority shareholders comprising 
14.63% of the issued and outstanding capital stock of APC. APC has been included in the 
consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2012. 
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The carrying value of the net assets of APC at the acquisition date was P68,696,134, and the 
carrying value of the additional interest acquired was P2,867,706. The difference of P6,632,294 
between the consideration and the carrying value of the interest acquired has been recognized 
in retained earnings within equity. 
 
APC has contributed P223,169,671 and 183,434,068 revenues and P18,892,469 and P7,698,783 
profit before tax from continuing operations to the Group for the years three-month periods 
ended March 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. 
 

b. Brookfields Meat Inc. (BMI) 
 
BMI was incorporated under the laws of the Republic of the Philippines and registered with the 
Philippine SEC.  BMI is engaged in trading and processing of goods such as, but not limited to, 
meat and its by-products and other animals as may be permitted by law, for food purposes on 
wholesale and retail basis, the business of manufacturing, preparing, stocking, packing, buying, 
selling, importing and exporting, dealing in and delivering all kinds of livestock, meat additives, 
all types of chemicals and substances used for livestock and agriculture, which may be 
necessary or incidental to their manufacture inside or outside the Philippines and all kinds of 
materials and products and by-products arising out or used in the breeding and slaughtering of 
livestock and all agricultural activities for food purposes. 
 
Acquisition of BMI 
 
As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, the Parent Company acquired a 
51% ownership stake in the shareholdings of BMI for a total cash consideration of P3,187,500 
through the execution of a deed of acknowledgment of trust with assignment, which 
acknowledges and confirms that the majority shareholders of BMI entrust their shares as well as 

all the rights and interests accruing therefrom to the Parent Company on June 16, 2014.  The 
acquisition of BMI was disclosed accordingly in the PSE via the PSE Online Disclosure System on 
June 17, 2014. The acquisition of BMI allows the Parent Company to pursue its meat business 
while enabling them to establish major supply agreements with large scale supermarkets 
including supply agreement with the country’s largest retail chain, Puregold Supermarkets, 
hence, leading to increase in corporate profitability. 
 
Assets acquired and liabilities assumed 
 
The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of BMI as at the date of acquisition are 
as follows: 
 
Asset 

  Cash and cash equivalents P8,355,000 
Liability 

  Advances from related parties     2,105,000  

Total identifiable net assets at fair value 6,250,000 
Non-controlling interest  measured at the non-controlling interest's share of the 

acquiree's identifiable net assets 
     

(3,062,500) 

Purchase consideration transferred P3,187,500  

 
BMI has contributed P69,273,615 revenue and P7,441,453 profit before tax from continuing 
operations to the Group for the year ended December 31, 2014.   
 
BMI has been included in the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 
31, 2014. 
 
The CEO is the Group’s CODM. Management has determined the operating segments based on 
the reports reviewed by the CEO that are used to make strategic decisions. 
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The CEO considers the business based on the differences in the Group’s products and services. 
Management considers the performance based on the three revenue-generating activities by 
the Group: the distributorship and the retailing of agro-products and farming operations.  
 
The reportable operating segments of distributorship and retailing derive its revenue primarily 
from different agro-products such as feeds, seeds, chemicals and fertilizers. The revenue of the 
reportable segments arises both from a related party and external customers. The reportable 
operating segment of farming operations derives its revenue from growing, raising and caring 
for swine livestock and poultry owned by a third party and from selling meat. Transfer prices 

between the related parties are set on an arm’s length basis in a manner similar to transactions 
with third parties. Any inter-revenue are eliminated in consolidation. 
 
The operating segments are organized and managed separately according to the different 
products and services, with each segment representing a strategic business unit that offers 
products sold through wholesale or retail or services rendered in farming operations. These 
divisions are the basis on which the Group reports its primary segment information.  All 
operating business segments used by the Group meet the definition of a reportable segment 
under PFRS 8, Operating Segments.  
 
The CEO assesses the performance of the operating segments based on a measure of Earnings 
Before Interests, Taxes and Depreciation and Amortization (EBITDA). This measurement basis 
excludes the effects of non-recurring expenditure from the operating segments and common 
operating expenses. Interest expense is not allocated to segments, as this type of activity is 
driven by the central treasury function, which manages the cash position of the Group.  
 
Segment assets and liabilities 
 

Segment assets include all operating assets used by a segment and consist principally of 
operating cash, receivables, inventories and other current assets. Segment liabilities include all 
operating liabilities and consist principally of trade and other payables. Segment assets and 
liabilities do not include deferred income taxes.  
 
Segment transactions 
 
Segment sales, expenses and performance include sales and purchases with a related party and 
third parties. Intercompany balances and transactions between segments, if any, are 
eliminated during the preparation of the consolidated financial statements. 
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The segment information provided to the CEO for the three-month ended March 31, 2015 and 2013 are as follows (amounts in thousands): 
 

 
Distribution Retail Farming Meat processing Unallocated 

 
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 

   
      

  Sales 270,947 P184,243  223,170 P183,434  P- P6,913  P11,725 P- P- P-  
Cost of sales (219,700) (156,432) (139,321) (154,807) - (2,087) (8,922) - -            -    
Operating expenses (13,143) (16,911) (7,874)  (7,528)  -    (704) (3,604) - -             -    
Other operating income 8,938 7,797  - -    - -    46 - -             -    

Finance income - 462  - 113  -             -    - - -          145  
Finance costs - -  - -    - -    - - (P10,633)  (9,073)  
Provision for income tax  (12,729) (3,062) 5,671  (6,364) -   (1,237) (39) - -           -    

Profit (loss) for the year 32,313 16,097  81,646 14,848  - 2,885  (794) - - (8,928) 
Interest 

 
-     -    -             -    - - (P10,633) 9,073  

Taxes 12,729     3,062  5,671 6,364 -       1,237  (39) - - -    
Depreciation and amortization 2,794       1,266  2,294 2,155  -      1,523  163 - - -    

EBITDA 47,836 P20,425 89,611 P23,367  P5,645  592 - P- P145  
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A reconciliation of the total EBITDA of the reportable segments to the Group’s profit for the 
year is provided as follows (amounts in thousands): 

 
Total 

 
2015  2014 

 
    

Sales P505,840,839  P374,590,023  
Cost of sales (425,130,393)  (313,326,357) 
Operating expenses (24,620,582)        (25,143,390) 
Other operating income 8,983,970            7,797,377  

Finance income -               719,808  
Finance costs (10,633,496)           (9,073,148) 
Provision for income tax  (18,438,847)         (10,662,113) 

Profit for the year 36,001,491  24,902,201  
Interest 10,633,496            9,073,148  
Taxes 18,438,847          10,662,113  
Depreciation and amortization 5,2512,77            4,943,838  

EBITDA P65,073,834  P49,581,299  

 
 

The segment assets and liabilities as at March 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014 are as follows 
(amounts in thousands): 
 

 
Distribution Retail Farming 

 
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 

 
 

 
    

Segment assets 1,027,601 P762,573  122,130 P204,949  P239,147 

Segment liabilities 103,940 P139,012 26,531 P38,366 - P66,847 

Additions to property and 
equipment - P1,355 - P3,463 - P- 

 
   

 
  Meat production Unallocated 

 
 2015 2014 2015 2014 

 
     

Segment assets  75,875 P89,011 518,657 P502,911 

Segment liabilities  65,229 P77,552 724,914 P611,548 

Additions to property and 
equipment  - P56,570 - P- 
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The total reportable segments’ assets are reconciled to the Group’s total assets as at March 31, 
2015 and December 31, 2014 are as follows: 

 2015 

 

2014 
 

 

  

 

 Reportable segments' assets P1,027,601,290  P1,322,239,637 
Unallocated: 

 
 

   Loans receivable (Notes 11 and 25) 9,650,000  9,650,000 
  Advances to related parties (Note 25) 100,918,591  64,777,097 
  Investment properties (Note 14) 392,071,683  392,071,683 
  Property and equipment (Note 15) 9,017,906  29,273,312 
  Deferred tax assets (Note 27) 3,694,167  3,833,997 
  Other noncurrent assets (Note 28) 3,305,133  3,305,132 

 
P1,546,258,770  P1,825,150,858 

 
The total reportable segments’ liabilities are reconciled to the Group’s total liabilities as at 
March 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014 is as follows: 
 

 
2015 

 
2014 

 
Reportable segments' liabilities P195,699,947 

 
P186,435,318 

Unallocated:  
 
 

  Borrowings 699,367,056 
 

716,982,513 
  Advances from related parties (Note 25) 19,525,588 

 
22,719,986 

  Retirement benefit liability (Note 26) 5,847,890 
 

5,611,387 
  Deferred tax liabilities (Note 27) 173,700 

 
173,700 

 
920,614,181 

 
P931,922,904 

 

The amounts provided to the CEO with respect to total assets and total liabilities are measured 
in a manner consistent with that of the consolidated financial statements.  

 
The reportable segments’ assets are allocated based on the operations of the segment and the 
physical location of the assets. The Group’s loans receivable, advances to related parties, 
investment properties, leasehold improvements, deferred tax assets and other noncurrent 
assets are not considered as segment assets. 
 
The reportable segments’ liabilities are allocated based on the operations of the segment. The 
Group’s borrowings, advances from related parties, retirement benefit liability and deferred 
tax liabilities are not considered as segment liabilities. 
 
All other segments include operating segment that did not meet the criteria to be included as 
reportable segment. It derives its revenue through sales from trading of meat products. 
 
Unallocated assets and liabilities are managed by the central administrative and treasury 
functions. 
 
The Group does not have revenues from transactions with a single external customer amounting 
to ten percent (10%) or more of the Group’s total revenues. 

 
 
  



 

55 

NOTE 9 - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 
 
The account consists of: 
 

  2015  2014 

     
Cash in banks  P251,489,138  P288,755,519 
Cash on hand  7,189,598  8,758,389 
Cash equivalents  81,000,000  81,000,000 

  P339,678,736  P378,513,908 

 
Cash in banks earns interest at the respective bank deposit rates. Cash equivalents represent 
time deposit placements with maturities of three months. Interest income earned from bank 
deposits amounted to P1,320,715 and P575,058 for the three-month periods ended March 31, 
2015 and 2014, respectively (see Note 21). 
 
 
NOTE 10 – TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, NET 
 

The account consists of: 
 

  
2015 

 
2014 

     Trade receivables 
 

P262,615,908 
 

P261,124,312  
Advances to suppliers 

 
3,524,030 

 
3,524,030  

Advances to employees 
 

15,12,581 
 

3,211,783  
Accrued interest on loans receivable 

   
  

     Third Party (Note 11) 
 

- 
 

- 
     Related Party (Notes 11 and 25) 

 
763,458 

 
579,000 

Accrued interest on time deposits 
 

- 
 

184,458  
Other receivables 

 
4,886,077 

 
3,123,415  

  
273,302,054 

 
271,746,998  

Allowance for impairment loss on trade receivables 
 

(3,164,134) 
 

(3,164,134) 

  
P270,137,920 

 
P268,582,864  

  
Trade receivables are from dealers and customers of the Group and are not interest-bearing. 
Normal credit terms of trade receivables are 30 days to 60 days.  
 
Advances to suppliers represent advanced payments made to suppliers for purchases of goods. 
These are deducted from the purchase price upon receipt of the goods. 
 
Advances to employees are subject to liquidation upon utilization. 
 
The Group provided for an allowance for impairment loss on trade receivables amounting to 
and P3,164,134  as at March 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, respectively. Details of changes 
in allowance for impairment loss of receivables are as follows: 
 
  2015  2014 

 
January 1 

 

P3,164,134 

 

P6,528,725 
Provision during the year (Note 22)  -  639,880 
Recovery of accounts previously provided with an 
   allowance (Note 22) 

 
- 

 
(3,935,885) 

Accounts written off   -  (68,586) 

December 31  P3,164,134  P3,164,134 

 



 

56 

NOTE 11 – LOANS RECEIVABLE 
 
The movements in the account are as follow: 
 

Borrower 
Interest 

rate Terms Security At January 1, 2013 
Collection 

during the year 
At December 31, 

2013 
Availment 

during the year 

Offsetting 
through 

purchase of 
investment 

properties and 
assumption of 

debt by a 
shareholder 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Assumed by a 
related party 

At December 31, 
2014 and March 

31, 2015 

           
Avestha Holdings 

Corporation (Notes 
25 and i)  

6% per 
annum 3 years 

Real estate 
properties P120,000,000 (P120,000,000) P- P130,000,000 (P130,000,000) 

 
 

P- P- 

Andres Lipana (ii) 
6% per 
annum 

1 year, 
renewable Unsecured 9,650,000 - 9,650,000 - - 

 
(9,650,000) - 

Joseph H. Calata (ii) 
6% per 
annum 

1 year, 
renewable Unsecured - - - - - 

 
9,650,000 9,650,000 

Total    129,650,000 (P120,000,000) 9,650,000 P130,000,000 (P130,000,000) P- 9,650,000 

 Less: Current portion    (9,650,000)  (9,650,000)    (9,650,000) 

 Loans receivable, net 
of current portion 

   
P120,000,000  P- 

 
 

 
P- 

 
i. On September 26, 2011, the Parent Company granted a loan to Avestha Holdings Corporation, a related party, amounting to P120,000,000 for a term of 

three (3) years. The principal of the loan will be payable after two (2) years in which an interest at the rate of six percent (6%) will be payable on the 
balance at the end of every month. The loan is fully secured by the borrower’s various real estate properties independently valued by Cuervo Appraisers, 
Inc. at P166,549,000. During the year ended December 31, 2013, the parties to the loan agreement agreed to a non-cash settlement of this loan through 
offsetting on the Parent Company’s advances from related parties (see Note 25).   
 
On June 30, 2014, Avestha Holdings Corporation re-availed a loan amounting to P130,000,000 from the Parent Company where principal of the loan will 
be payable after three (3) years with the same terms of the original loan agreement. On December 31, 2014, the parties to the loan agreement agreed to 
a non-cash settlement/offsetting of the said loan through purchase of various investment properties amounting to P143,310,844 (see Note 14).  
 

ii. The Parent Company has an existing outstanding loans receivable from Andres Lipana amounting to P9,650,000 out of the original P10,000,000 loan 
granted on November 4, 2010. The loan has a one-year term, renewable annually upon mutual agreement of both parties. The principal of the loan is 
subject to an interest rate of six percent (6%) per annum, payable at the end of every month. The original loan has been renewed in 2014, 2013 and 2012 
with the same terms and conditions. On December 31, 2014, Joseph H. Calata (JHC) assumed the said loans receivable from Andres Lipana with the same 
terms of the original agreement. This loans receivable is presented under current assets in the consolidated statement of financial position. 
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The details and movements of accrued interest on these loans receivable are as follows (see 
Note 10): 

 
  2015  2014 

 
At January 1 

 
P579,000 

 
P772,000  

Interest earned  -  4,479,000 
Interest received  -  (4,672,000)  

At March 31 and December 31  P579,000  P579,000   

 
 
NOTE 12 – INVENTORIES 
 
The account consists of: 
 
  2015  2014 

     
Agro products     
 Chemicals  P89,766,247  P58,304,633 
 Fertilizers  8,061,599  46,924,532 
 Feeds  72,346,278  8,976,350 
 Seeds  4,417,054  14,164,012 
 Soya  -  3,409,585 

  P174,591,178  131,779,112 

Meat products     
Beef cuts    7,929,361 

Major primal cuts    5,803,116 
Primal cuts    4,112,893 
Retail cuts    4,032,336 

  13,498,312  21,877,706 

  P188,089,490  P153,656,818 

 
The above inventories are carried at cost which is lower than the net realizable value (NRV). 
The Group has no unusual purchase commitments or inventories pledged as security for 
liabilities. 

 
The major primal cuts consist of pork ham, pork shoulder, pork chop, and pork belly, primal 
cuts include pork leg, chuck ribs, pig tail, pork joints, shoulder blade, pork ribs and tenderloin, 
retail cuts include country style, adobo cut, ground pork, steak, steak, trotters and butterfly 
cut and beef cuts consist of briskets, cubes, sirloin, T-bone, ground beef, tenderloin, and tapa. 
 
The cost of inventories recognized as expense amounted to P425,130,393 and P310,623,596  for 
the three-month periods ended March 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively (see Note 18). 
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NOTE 13 – BIOLOGICAL ASSETS 
 
On October 15, 2014, the Group purchased one thousand one hundred 1,100 heads of breeder 
swine livestock composed of great grandparent (GGP) and grandparent (GP) breeding stocks for 
P45,000,000 from Topigs Philippines Inc. The Group paid of P10,000,000 for the down payment 
and the remaining balance of P35,000,000 to be paid based on the cash that will be generated 
from the farm operations (see Note 16). 
 
On December 31, 2014, the Group purchased additional one hundred fifteen (115) GP breeding 

stock costing €250,000 payable in three (3) monthly equal installments starting February 15, 
2015. 
 
The Group is exposed to risks relating to its biological assets: 
 

 Price volatility may negatively affect the Company’s margins and results; and 

 Animal breeding and meat processing are subject to sanitary risks and natural disasters. 

 Typhoons and other adverse climate conditions may result in additional inventory losses 
and damage to the Group’s facilities and equipment. 

 
The movements of the biological assets are as follows: 
 

  

Current 

biological 
assets 

 

Non-
current 

biological 
assets 

 
Total 

Cost 
At January 1, 2014 

 
 P-  

 
 P-  

 
 P-  

Net additions 

     

- 

Purchases 
 

- 
 

58,815,525  
 

58,815,525  
Depreciation from noncurrent biological assets 

 
- 

 
 2,855,356  

 
 2,855,356  

Production cost 
 

811,827 
 

 622,551  
 

1,434,378 
Transfers to current 

 

1,546,499 

 

(1,546,499) 

 

- 

Fair value adjustment due to birth (Note 22) 
 

  (64,735) 
 

- 
 

  (64,735) 
Sales (Note 21) 

 
  (118,107) 

 
- 

 
  (118,107) 

Mortalities (Note 22) 
 

 (25,677) 
 

  (1,078,280) 
 

 (1,103,957) 
Fair value adjustment due to growth (Note 22) 

 

1,195,189 

 

- 

 

  1,195,189 

Culling (Note 22) 
 

- 
 

  (736,363) 
 

(736,363) 

At December 31, 2014 and March 31, 2015 

 

3,344,996  

 

58,932,290  

 

62,277,286 

      
 

Accumulated depreciation 
     

 
At January 1, 2014 

 

- 

 

- 

 

- 

Depreciation 
 

- 
 

(2,855,356) 
 

(2,855,356) 
Mortalities (Note 22) 

 
- 

 
43,280 

 
43,280 

Culling (Note 22) 
 

- 
 

42,143 
 

42,143 

At December 31, 2014 and March 31, 2015 
 

- 
 

(2,769,933) 
 

(2,769,933) 

      
 

Carrying value 
 

P3,344,996  
 

P56,162,357  
 
P59,507,353 

      

 

 
Breakdown of mature and immature are as follows: 

     
 

Immature 
 

P1,126,400  
 

P1,630,401  
 

P2,756,801  
Mature 

 

2,218,596  

 

54,531,956  

 

56,750,552  

  
P3,344,996  

 
P56,162,357  

 
P59,507,353  

 
Breakdown of consumable and bearer are as follows: 

     
 

Consumable 
 

P3,344,996  
 

P1,630,401  
 

P4,975,397  
Bearer 

 

- 

 

54,531,956  

 

54,531,956  

  
P3,344,996  

 
P56,162,357  

 
P59,507,353  
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Based on management’s assessment, there is no indication of impairment. The carrying amount 
of the biological assets can be recovered through its intended use. 
 
The Group has no unusual purchase commitments or biological assets pledged as security for 
liabilities. The Company has no biological assets classified as held for sale. 
 
 
NOTE 14 – INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 
 

Investment properties consist of various land and building properties acquired by the Group set 
aside for undetermined future use. The movements in this account are as follows: 
 
  2015 

 

2014 

  
  

 
At January 1  P197,030,425  

 

P197,030,425  
Acquisitions during the year  195,041,258 

 
195,041,258 

At December 31  P392,071,683  
 

P392,071,683  

 
Included in the addition are lands acquired on November 25, 2014 from the Group’s related 
parties amounting to P143,689,975 of which P13,689,975 and P130,000,000 were settled 
through offsetting from the balances of advances to related parties and loans receivable from 
related party loans receivable, respectively. These lands are located in various places like 
Plaridel, Pulilan and Guiguinto, all of which are municipalities in Bulacan. 
 

The Group applies the cost model in its investment properties. Management believes that the 
carrying amounts of the said properties approximate the fair values as at the reporting date. 
 
The Group capitalized expenditures related to building under construction amounting to 
P14,828,783 as at December 31, 2014. The details of the construction in progress as at March 
31, 2015 and 2014 are as follows: 
 

 

 
 

Location 

 
Actual cost to 

date 

 
Estimated 

project cost 

Cumulative percentage of 
completion 

Expected 
date of 

completion 2015 2014 

Building under 
construction 

Guiguinto, 
Bulacan P14.8 million P28,963,513 65% 65% June 2015 

 
There were no income earned and direct operating expenses incurred on these investment 
properties for the three month periods ended March 31, 2015 and 2014. 
 
The Group has no restrictions on the realizability of its investment properties and no 
contractual obligations to either purchase, construct or develop investment properties or for 

repairs, maintenance and enhancements.  
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NOTE 15 – PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, NET 
 
The details of and movements in this account are as follows: 
  

Office 
 

Store  Transportation 
 

Storage 
 

Production Leasehold Buildings and Farm 
 

Farm Construction 
  Land equipment Equipment Equipment Equipment Equipment improvement improvements Equipments Land in-progress Total 

Cost  
 

 
 

      
  At January 1, 2014 P- P4,690,786 P6,767,366 P38,671,677 P- P- P47,435,599 P134,515,907 P54,567,080 P24,731,015 P97,205,818 P408,585,248 

Additions 15,500,000 194,484 589,884 2,144,948 3,521,296 200,270 2,083,157 33,050,172 -  -  21,883,988 79,168,199 
Disposals -  -  -  (3,265,500) -  -  -  -  -  -  -  (3,265,500) 

At December 31, 2014 15,500,000 4,885,270 7,357,250 37,551,125 3,521,296 200,270 49,518,756 167,566,079 54,567,080 24,731,015 119,089,806 484,487,947 
Additions -  -  -  125,590 -  -  -  -  -  -  -  125,590 

At March 31, 2015 15,500,000 4,885,270 7,357,250 37,676,715 3,521,296 200,270 49,518,756 167,566,079 54,567,080 24,731,015 119,089,806 484,613,537 

 
Accumulated 
depreciation and 
amortization    

 
      

  At January 1, 2014 - 910,412 3,255,073 8,753,827 - - 12,533,508 840,724 682,089 - - 26,975,633 
Depreciation and 
 amortization -  584,218 1,416,076 4,220,869 269,007 25,118 7,711,936 3,466,440 2,728,354 -  -  20,422,018 
Disposal -  -  -  (2,285,000) -  -  -  -  -  -  -  (2,285,000) 

At December 31, 2014 - 1,494,630 4,671,149 10,689,696 269,007 25,118 20,245,444 4,307,164 3,410,443 - - 45,112,651 
Depreciation and 
 amortization - 1,087,929 1,954,548 884,474 108,521 10,614 155,240 682,088 367,862 - - 5,251,277 

At March 31, 2015 - 2,582,559 6,625,697 11,574,170 377,528 35,732 20,400,684 4,989,252 3,778,305 - - 50,363,927 

 
Net book values  

 
 

 
      

  March 31, 2015 P15,500,000 P2,302,711 P731,553 P26,102,545 P3,143,768 P164,538 P29,118,072 P162,576,827 P50,788,775 P24,731,015 P119,089,806 P434,249,610 

December 31, 2014 P15,500,000  P3,390,640 P2,686,101 P26,861,429 P3,252,289  P175,152  P29,273,312  P163,258,915 P51,156,637 P24,731,015 P119,089,806 P439,375,296 

December 31, 2013 P- P3,780,374 P3,512,293 P29,917,850 P-  P-  P34,902,091  P133,675,183 P53,884,991 P24,731,015 P97,205,818 P381,609,615 
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During the three-month period ended March 31, 2015 and the year ended December 31, 2014, 
the Group capitalized expenditures amounting to and 21,883,988 respectively, related to 
properties under construction.. These expenditures consist of farm equipment, materials, labor 
and overhead directly related to the construction of the assets. The Group had not capitalized 
any borrowing costs attributable to the construction of such assets. The details of the 
construction in-progress as at the reporting date are as follows: 
 

 

 

Actual cost Estimated project cost 

Cumulative 
percentage of 

completion 

Expected date 
of completion Project 

 
Location 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 

Broiler Growing 
Farm (Bukidnon) 

Kinawe, 
Libona, 

Bukidnon 
P53.07 
millon 

P44.37 
millon 

P91.84 
million  

                  
P91.84 
million  58% 48% March 31, 2015 

Hog Growing Farms 
(Davao) 

Ula, Tugbok 
District, 
Calinan, 

Davao City 
P11.71 
million 

P10.56m
illion 

P49.88 
million 

P49.88 
million 23% 21% 

September 31, 
2015 

Broiler Growing 
Farm (Davao) 

Matina, Biao 
Tienda, 
Calinan, 

Davao City 
P24.49 
million 

P19.49 
million 

P93.60 
million  

P93.60 
million  26% 21% May 30, 2015 

Broiler Growing 
Farm 
(Bukidnon ) 

Nangka, 
Libona, 

Bukidnon 
P6.95 
million 

P4.17 
million 

        
P103.31 
million 

        
P103.31 
million 7% 4% March 30, 2015 

Broiler Breeder 
Farm (Isabela) 

Delfin 
Albano, 
Isabela 

P22.87 
million 

P18.67 
million 

          
P57.81 
million  

          
P57.81 
million  40% 32% 

September 31, 
2015 

 

The Swine livestock Breeder Farm project will breed, raise and care for piglets to be grown in 
swine livestock growing farms. The project will have a total of 1,100 sows producing the 
piglets. An estimated 26,460 piglets will be produced per annum.  
 
The Broiler Breeder Farm project will produce eggs intended to be broiler breeder stock to be 
grown, cared for and managed for sale by Magnolia to fast foods and supermarkets under the 
Magnolia brand name. The project will produce a total of 9.36 million eggs per annum.  
 
The Broiler Growing Farm project will have a capacity to grow 450,000 broiler heads at 8 
growing cycles a year or a total of 3.60 million broiler heads per annum.  
 
The Swine livestock Growing Farm project will have the capacity to grow 3,000 swine livestock 
at 3 cycles per year or a total of 9,000 swine livestock per annum. 
 
The details of agreements related to these projects are provided in Note 28. 
 
As at December 31, 2013, the Group completed the construction of certain farm facilities which 
amounted to P190,946,037. The related amount in construction in-progress was eventually 

transferred to the respective items of property and equipment. The Group commenced the 
depreciation of these assets at the time that these are ready for their intended use. 
 
During the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, the Group disposed fully-
depreciated property and equipment that resulted to a gain on disposal amounting to 
1,750,000, P4,428,681 and P1,735,200, respectively (see Note 22). Gains on disposal amounting 
to nil, P1,392,681 and P835,200 for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, 
respectively, resulted from disposals of fully-depreciated equipment to a related party (see 
Note 25). 
 
The Group’s transportation equipment with a carrying value of P4,087,420 and P6,764,917 is 
subject to a chattel mortgage used as security for the long-term borrowings (see Note 17). 
 
Aside from the abovementioned chattel mortgage, there are neither restrictions on title on the 
Group’s property and equipment nor was any of it pledged as security for liability. The Group 
has no contractual commitment for the acquisition of property and equipment. 
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Depreciation and amortization expense amounted to P5,251,277 and P4,943,838  for the three-
month periods ended March 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively (see Notes 18 and 19).   
 
The cost of fully depreciated property and equipment still in use amounted to P21,268,029 in 
March 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014. 
 
Management has reviewed the carrying values of the Group’s property and equipment as at 
March 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014 for impairment. Based on the results of its evaluation, 
there were no indications that the property and equipment were impaired.  

 
  
NOTE 16 – TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 
 
The account consists of: 
 
  2015  2014 

     
Trade payables  P103,792,807  P112,329,758 

Government liabilities     
Output VAT  12,651,554  12,651,554 
Withholding tax payable   1,691,573  1,766,137 

Accrued payable  4,139,763  4,139,763 
Others  1,313,498  1,287,447 

  P123,589,195  P132,174,659 

 
Trade payables are from suppliers of agro-products and are non-interest-bearing. Normal credit 
terms are 30 to 60 days.  
 
The trade payables account include the P35,000,000 due to Topigs Philippines Inc. for the 
purchase of breeder swine livestock on November 7, 2014 (see Note 13). Payments to Topigs is 
payable in monthly installments at the latest 6 months after sales invoice date and at a 
minimum of the fifty percent (50%) of the revenue generated in the previous month.   
 
Other payables mainly consist of the one percent (1%) tax withheld by the Group on its 
collections from customers. 
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NOTE 17 – BORROWINGS 
 
The borrowings as at March 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014 consist of secured short-term and long-term peso denominated loans obtained from local 
banks. 
 
The secured short-term peso-denominated loans were obtained to augment the Group’s funding for its farming operations. Various properties owned by 
the shareholders were used as collateral for these types of loans. The details of and movements in these loans are as follows: 
 

Lending 
institution 

Interest 
rate Terms Security 

At January 
31, 2014 

 Payments 

during the 
year 

 Availments 

during the 
year 

 

At December 
31, 2014 

 Payments 

during the 
period 

 Availments 

during the 
period 

 

At March 31, 
2015 

 
   

 
            

Banco de Oro 
Unibank Inc. 

Prevailing 
market rate 

Renewable Unsecured 
P190,000,000  P-  30,000,000  P220,000,000   P-  P-  P220,000,000  

Metropolitan 
Bank and 
Trust 
Company 

 
 

Prevailing 
market rate 

 
 
 

Renewable 

 
 

Real estate 
properties 40,000,000  -  20,000,000  60,000,000  -  -  60,000,000 

Bank of the 
Philippine 
Islands 

Prevailing 
market rate 

Renewable Suretyship 
120,000,000  -  -  120,000,000  -  -  120,000,000 

Planters Bank 
Prevailing 

market rate 
 

Renewable 
Deed of 

Assignment      50,000,000   -  25,000,000  75,000,000  (35,000,000)  -  40,000,000 
Development 

Bank of the 
Philippines 

 
 

9% 

 
 

Renewable 

Real estate 
properties 

      85,221,267   (18,373,951)  -  66,847,316  (6,483,514)  -  60,363,801 

Land Bank  
of the 
Philippines 

 
Prevailing 

market rate 

 
 

Renewable 

Real estate 

properties 
and 

suretyship      90,000,000   -  -  90,000,000  -  -  90,000,000 

Bank of 
Commerce 

Prevailing 
market rate 

 
Renewable 

 
Suretyship 30,000,000   -  -  30,000,000  -  -  30,000,000 

 
May Bank 

Prevailing 
market rate 

 
Renewable 

- 
-  -  50,000,000  50,000,000  -  25,000,000  75,000,000 

    
P605,221,267   (P18,373,951)  P125,000,000  P711,847,316  (P6,483,514)  P25,000,000  P695,363,801 

 
Finance costs arising from these loans amounted to P10,513,110 and P8,795,614 in March 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively (see Note 24).   
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The secured long-term peso-denominated loans were obtained to finance the Group’s acquisition of transportation equipment. These loans are secured by 
a chattel mortgage on the Group’s transportation equipment with a carrying amount of P4,087,420 and P6,764,917 (see Note 15). The details of and 
movements in these loans are as follows: 
 

Lending institution Interest rate Terms Security 
At January 1, 

2014 

 
Payments during 

the year 

 Availments 
during the 

year 

 
At December 31, 

2014 

 
Payments during 

the year 

 
At March 31, 

2014 

 
   

 
          

Bank of the Philippine 
Islands 

9.87%-10.47% 

30 or 60 equal 
monthly 

installments 
Chattel 

mortgage P6,022,303 

 

(P1,593,210) 

 

P-  

 

P4,429,093 

 

P425,838 

 

P4,003,255 

Metropolitan Bank and 
Trust Company 8.7%-9.87% 

36 equal 
monthly 

installment 
Chattel 

mortgage 2,491,734 

 

(1,785,630) 

 

- 

 

706,104 

 

465,499 

 

240,605 

Total 
   

8,514,037  (P3,378,840)  P-  5,135,197  P891,337  4,243,860 

Less: Current portion 
   

(3,378,841)      (2,298,789)    1,592,685 
Long-term borrowings, net 

of current portion 
   

P5,135,196 
 

 
   

P2,836,408 
 

 
 

P2,410,570 

 
Finance costs arising from these loans amounted to P109,854 and P150,642  for the three-month period ended March 31, 2015 and 2014 (see Note 24). 
 

There were no breaches of loan agreement terms such as any defaults of principal and interest of these borrowings during the period.
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NOTE 18 - SHARE CAPITAL 
 
The account consists of: 
 
 

 

Number of 
shares 

 
Amount 

 
Authorized: 

              
845,400,000  

 

    
P845,400,000  

Issued and outstanding at March 31, 2015 
    and December 31, 2014: 

              
360,112,000  

 
 P360,112,000  

 
Movements in the share capital are as follows: 
 

 
2014 

 
2013 

 
2012 

 

Number of 
shares 

 
Amount 

 

Number of 
shares 

 
Amount 

 

Number of 
shares 

 
Amount 

            At January 1 360,112,000 
 

P360,112,000 
 

360,112,000 
 

P360,112,000 
 

324,100,000 
 

P324,100,000 
Issuances during the year - 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
36,012,000 

 
36,012,000 

At December 31 360,112,000 
 

P360,112,000 
 

360,112,000 
 

P360,112,000 
 

360,112,000 
 

P360,112,000 

 
Share premium 
 
On May 23, 2012, the Parent Company issued an additional 36,012,000 shares by way of a 
primary offer. The share premium resulting from the said offer is as follows:  
 
Gross proceeds    P269,551,028 
Expenses     

Tax on Initial Public Offering  (P10,782,041)   
Underwriting and selling fees for the offer 
 shares 

 
(8,102,700) 

  

Professional fees   (4,582,587)   
Philippine SEC filing and legal research fees  (733,991)   
Documentary Stamp Tax  (180,060)  (24,381,379) 

Net proceeds  
 

 245,169,649 
Par value of offer shares 

  
 (36,012,000) 

   
 P209,157,649 

 
Share premium arises when the amount subscribed for share capital is in excess of nominal 
value. 
 
Treasury shares 
 
During the year ended December 31, 2013, the Group reacquired at cost its own shares, details 
of which are as follows: 
 

 Number of 
shares 

 
Amount 

    
November 22, 2013 100,000  P353,580 
November 26, 2013 75,000  267,000 
November 27, 2013 60,000  209,800 
December 3, 2013 50,000  184,810 

 285,000  P1,015,190 
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NOTE 19 – REVENUE 
 
The account consists of: 
 

  2015  2014 

     

Sale of goods     

Fertilizers  P205,865,556  P145,055,057  

Chemicals  86,211,191  129,305,381 

Feeds  131,779,560    47,611,772 

Seeds  40,388,583       29,595,802 

Soya  -     10,494,322 

Others  29,871,419         5,614,213 

  494,116,309  430,694,370 

Meat processing     
Farms  11,724,529         6,913,477  

  P505,840,838  P374,590,023  
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The Parent Company’s revenue may be affected by any program developed or supported by the 
Department of Agriculture of the Philippines. 
 
The Parent Company’s revenue comes primarily from the sale of agricultural products. Any 
agricultural program that the Department of Agriculture develops for the farmers of the 
country may affect the Parent Company’s revenue. In the event that the government is unable 
to effectively implement its programs, this might result in a slowdown of the Parent Company’s 
business as farmers might not have the required resources to purchase the Parent Company’s 
products. There is no guarantee that the Philippine government will not change or prioritize 

programs for agriculture in the coming years.  
 
To mitigate this risk, the Parent Company updates itself regularly with the Department of 
Agriculture’s policies or programs developed for the agricultural product industry. This allows 
the Parent Company to react quickly to government programs relating to agricultural products. 
It also enables the Parent Company to plan ahead to meet the Department of Agriculture’s 
ongoing or future policies or programs.  
 
The Parent Company also conducts its own marketing activities to promote the use or 
consumption of its product. The Parent Company intends to strengthen its marketing efforts 
nationwide. 
 
Risk of natural calamities and effects of pestilence 
 
The Parent Company’s revenue are highly dependent on the weather conditions in the 
Philippines. Severe drought or flooding in a certain agricultural region will significantly affect 
the productivity of the farmer. This will highly affect the demand for fertilizers, pesticides and 
other agricultural chemicals. 

 
Furthermore, the effects of pestilence on agricultural crops can have a significant effect on the 
demand for the distribution products used in growing them. Crop farmers may be unable to 
engage in their farming and growing activities since the agricultural land may not be fit for 
planting. 
 
To mitigate this risk related to natural calamities, the Parent Company, in partnership with its 
key suppliers, would distribute new products manufactured through the use of modern 
technology to withstand if not totally resist the devastating effects forces of nature bring. The 
Parent Company likewise distributes other agricultural products which are unaffected by 
natural calamities such as animal feeds for poultry, hogs and ducks. 
 
Lastly, to mitigate the effects of pestilence, apart from the distribution of superior quality 
agricultural products which can help in strengthening the immunity of plants to any damage 
caused, the Parent Company designates its farm aid technicians to provide an information 
campaign to educate farmers on how to combat pestilence through proper farming practices as 
well as the introduction and proper utilization of modern farming technology. 
 

Risk of outbreak of animal diseases 
 
The Parent Company’s revenue may be affected by the outbreak of swine and poultry diseases 
because the demand for animal feeds decreases in case an outbreak happens. 
 
To mitigate this risk the Parent Company, in partnership with its key suppliers, currently 
deploys farm assistant technicians in the field to prevent and/or treat swine and poultry 
diseases. In addition, the Parent Company also distributes veterinary medicines that help 
prevent or treat the said diseases. 
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Risk of production uncertainty 
 
The amount and quality of the output that will result from a given bundle of production 
decisions are not known with certainty. Uncontrolled elements such as weather conditions play 
a fundamental role in agricultural production. Typhoons and other adverse climate conditions 
may result in additional inventory losses and damage to the Parent Company’s facilities and 
equipment. 
 
Financial risk on management strategies 

 
The Parent Company is exposed to risks arising from environmental and climatic changes, 
commodity prices and financing risks. 
 
The Parent Company actively manages the working capital requirement and has secured 
sufficient credit facilities sufficient to meet the cash flow requirements.  
Philippine government will not change or prioritize programs for agriculture in the coming 
years.  
 
To mitigate this risk, the Group updates itself regularly with the Department of Agriculture’s 
policies or programs developed for the agricultural product industry. This allows the Group to 
react quickly to government programs relating to agricultural products. It also enables the 
Group to plan ahead to meet the Department of Agriculture’s ongoing or future policies or 
programs.  
 
The Group also conducts its own marketing activities to promote the use or consumption of its 
product. The Group intends to strengthen its marketing efforts nationwide. 
 

Risk of natural calamities and effects of pestilence 
 
The Group’s revenue are highly dependent on the weather conditions in the Philippines. Severe 
drought or flooding in a certain agricultural region will significantly affect the productivity of 
the farmer. This will highly affect the demand for fertilizers, pesticides and other agricultural 
chemicals. 
 
Furthermore, the effects of pestilence on agricultural crops can have a significant effect on the 
demand for the distribution products used in growing them. Crop farmers may be unable to 
engage in their farming and growing activities since the agricultural land may not be fit for 
planting. 
 
To mitigate this risk related to natural calamities, the Group, in partnership with its key 
suppliers, would distribute new products manufactured through the use of modern technology 
to withstand if not totally resist the devastating effects forces of nature bring. The Group 
likewise distributes other agricultural products which are unaffected by natural calamities such 
as animal feeds for poultry, swine livestock and ducks. 
 

Lastly, to mitigate the effects of pestilence, apart from the distribution of superior quality 
agricultural products which can help in strengthening the immunity of plants to any damage 
caused, the Group designates its farm aid technicians to provide an information campaign to 
educate farmers on how to combat pestilence through proper farming practices as well as the 
introduction and proper utilization of modern farming technology. 
 
Risk of outbreak of animal diseases 
 
The Group’s revenue may be affected by the outbreak of swine and poultry diseases because 
the demand for animal feeds decreases in case an outbreak happens. 
 
To mitigate this risk the Group, in partnership with its key suppliers, currently deploys farm 
assistant technicians in the field to prevent and/or treat swine and poultry diseases. In 
addition, the Group also distributes veterinary medicines that help prevent or treat the said 
diseases. 
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NOTE 20 – COST OF SALES AND SERVICES 
 
The account consists of: 
 

 2015  2014 

Cost of sales    
Inventories, beginning P180,613,455   P160,230,593 
Net purchases 431,083,616  335,877,123 

Cost of goods available for sale 611,697,071  496,107,716 

Inventories, ending (Note 11) (188,089,490)  (186,391,060) 

 P423,607,581  P309,716,657 

Cost of services    
Depreciation and amortization (Note 13)     1,522,813      1,522,813 
Communication, light and water  -          885,906  
Salaries, wages and benefits -  609,242  
Fuel and oil -            194,252  
Repairs and maintenance -              80,750  
Office supplies -              19,039  
Others -         297,698 

     1,522,813  3,609,700 

 P425,130,393  P313,326,357 
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NOTE 21 – OPERATING EXPENSES 
 
The account consists of: 
 

  
2015  2014 

  
   

Salaries, wages and benefits 

 
P6,778,568   P7,635,430 

Rental (Note 26) 

 
3,520,434          4,446,779 

Depreciation and amortization (Note 13) 

 
1,097,717          3,421,025 

Taxes and licenses 

 
3,619,444          1,353,164 

Communication, light and water 

 
592,513         1,299,752 

Transportation and travel 

 
1,370,216          1,179,950 

Marketing  

 
1,709,649          1,158,841 

Professional fees 

 
1,031,952         1,151,847 

Representation and entertainment 

 
562,124             729,628 

Association dues 

 
956,204             603,669 

Insurance 

 
414,238             498,588 

Repairs and maintenance 

 
609,221             452,115 

Office supplies 

 
824,315             344,829 

Retirement benefit costs (Note 24) 

 
165,249             257,915 

Commissions 

 
47,516              34,152 

Others  

 
1,321,221             575,706 

  
P24,620,578   P25,143,390 

 
 
NOTE 22 – OTHER OPERATING INCOME, NET 
 
The account consists of: 
 

  
2015  2014 

  
   

Rebate income 

 
P7,503,636  P7,684,127 

Others 

 
1,480,334  113,250  

  
P8,983,970  P7,797,377  
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NOTE 23 – FINANCE INCOME 
 
The account consists of: 
 

  
2015  2014 

  
   

From bank deposits (Note 8) 
 

P-  P575,058  
From loans receivable (Note 10) 

 
-           144,750  

  
P-  P719,808  

 
 
NOTE 24 – FINANCE COSTS 
 
The account consists of: 
 

  
2015  2014 

  
   

Interest from borrowings (Note 17) 
 

P10,562,242  P575,058  
Interest from defined benefit obligation (Note 27) 

 
71,253           144,750  

  
P10,633,495  P719,808  
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NOTE 25 – RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 
 
Related party relationships exist when one party has the ability to control, directly or indirectly 
through one or more intermediaries, the other party or exercise significant influence over the 
other party in making financial and operating decisions. Such relationships also exist between 
and/or among entities which are under common control with the reporting enterprise, or 
between and/or among the reporting enterprises and their key management personnel, 
directors or its shareholders. Key management personnel are individuals who have authority 
and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Group. 

 
The details of the Group’s related parties are summarized as follows: 
 
Name of the related 

party  Relationship  Nature of operations  
Country of 

incorporation 

       
Calata Builders  Affiliate  A corporation established in 

the Philippines which 
ventures as a subcontractor 
and into the realty business 
 

 Republic of the 
Philippines 

Seneca Farms  Affiliate  A sole proprietorship owned 
by which offers high 
efficiency poultry growing 
using climate-controlled 
system 
 

 Republic of the 
Philippines 

Avestha Holdings 
Corporation 

 Affiliate  A corporation established to 
engage in holding of shares of 
different corporations 
 

 Republic of the 
Philippines 

Twinnings Holding 
Incoporated 

 Affiliate  A corporation established to 
engage in financial holding 
activities. 

 

 Republic of the 
Philippines 

Patient Hill  Affiliate  A sole proprietorship 
established to engage in and 
carry on the business of 
trading, export, import and 
processing of goods including 
but not limited to meat and its 
by-products and other animals 
as may be permitted by law, 
for food purposes, on 
wholesale or retail basis. 
 

 - 

Individuals  Shareholders  - 
 

 - 

Individuals  Key 
management 
personnel 

 -  - 
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Significant transactions and outstanding balances with related parties are as follows: 
 
Transactions 
 

  
Sales Rent expense (“i”) 

Key management personnel 
compensation (“ii”) 

Related parties Relationship 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 

  
    

  Patient Hill Affliate P- P- P- P- 
 

P- 
Individuals Key management personnel - - - - P903,514 P5,125,715 

 
 

P- P- P- P- P903,514 P5,125,715 
 

Outstanding balances 
 

Related party Relationship 

Trade receivables 
Terms and 
conditions Security 

Nature of 
consideration to 
be provided upon 

settlement 

Guarantees 
given or 
received 

Allowance for 
impairment 

loss 
Impairment 

loss 2015 2014 

 
Patient hill Affliate P4,326,019 P8,914,227 30 to 60 days Unsecured Cash None P- P- 

 

Related parties Relationship 

Advances to related parties 
(“iv”) Terms and 

conditions Security 

Nature of 
consideration to 

be provided 
upon settlement 

Guarantees 
given or 
received 

Allowance for 
impairment 

loss 
Impairment 

loss 2015 2014 

 
Calata Builders 

 
Affliate P2,316,540 P2,916,390 Demandable Unsecured Cash None - - 

Twinnings Holding 
Incorporated Affliate 66,518 66,518 Demandable Unsecured Cash None - - 

Individuals Shareholder 199,005,257 94,193,266 Demandable Unsecured Cash None - - 

  
P201,388,315 P97,176,174 

   
 P- P- 

 

Related parties Relationship 

Advances from related parties 
(“vii”) Terms and 

conditions Security 

Nature of consideration 
to be provided upon 

settlement 
Guarantees given 

or received 2015 2014 

        Calata Farms Affiliate P10,000,000 P9,800,000 Demandable Unsecured None None 
Individuals Shareholders 9,525,588 12,919,986 Demandable Unsecured None None 

  
P19,525,588 P22,719,986 
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(i) An operating lease agreement was executed between the Group and its shareholders 
whereby the latter granted the former with the rent-free use of office premises and a 
warehouse located in Bulacan (see Note 28).  
 

ii) The key management personnel compensation recognized in salaries, wages and other 
benefits under operating expenses in the consolidated statements of income consists of 
short-term benefits. There are no long term compensation and post-employment and 
termination benefits of key management personnel for the years ended December 30, 2014, 
2013 and 2012. 

 
Movements of the outstanding balances showing the nature and amount of transactions under 
each category are as follows: 
 
iii) Loans receivable 
 
 

  2015  2014 

 
Avestha Holdings Corporation/Individuals 

 
   

At January 1  P9,650,000  P- 
Offsetting of loans receivable with 
advances from related party 

 
-  - 

Re-availment of loans (Note 10)  -  130,000,000 
Offsetting through purchase of various 
investment properties (Note 14) 

 
-  (130,000,000) 

Assumption of a third party loans 
receivable by a major shareholder 
(Note 10) 

 

-  9,650,000 

At March 31 and December 31  P-  P9,650,000 

 
The principal of the loan will be payable after three (3) years in which an interest at the 
rate of six percent (6%) per annum will be payable on the balance at the end of every 
month. The loan is fully secured by the borrower’s various real estate properties 
independently valued at P166,549,000 on June 21, 2011 by Cuervo Appraisers, Inc. In 
exchange for the settlement of the loan, as at the reporting date, the parties to the loan 
agreement agreed to a non-cash settlement of this loan through offsetting on the Parent 
Company’s advances from related parties (see Note “vi”). 
 
On June 30, 2014, the loan was re-availed by Avestha Holding Corporation amounting to 
P130,000,000 from the Company payable in three (3) years under the same terms of original 
loan agreement as a result of the purchase of various properties amounting to P143,689,975 
(see Note 14). On December 31, 2014, the parties to the loan agreed to a noncash 
settlement through offsetting on the Parent Company’s advances from related parties.  

 
The outstanding loans receivable from Andres Lipana amounting to P9,650,000 has a 
one- year term, renewable annually upon mutual agreement of both parties. The 
principal of the loan is subject to an interest rate of six percent (6%) per annum, 

payable at the end of every month. The original loan has been renewed in 2014, 2013 
and 2012 with the same terms and conditions. On December 31, 2014, JHC assumed the 
said loans receivable from Andres Lipana with the same terms of the original 
agreement.  
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iv) Advances to related parties 

 
 2015  2014  

     
Calata Builders     
At January 1 2,916,390  P3,297,063   
Cash advances to (collections from)  (599,850)  (380,673)  

December 31 2,316,540  2,916,390   

     
Twinings Holding Incorporated     
At January 1 66,518   -  
Cash advances to (collections from)  -  66,518   

December 31 -  66,518   

     

Individuals     

At January 1 94,193,266  44,574,039  

Cash advances to 104,811,991  35,929,252  

Cash advances from   -  

Sale to a related party of property 
and equipment   - 

 

Cash dividends distributed   -  

Offsetting as a result of purchase of 
various investment properties 

(Note 14)   13,689,975 

 

At December 31 199,005,257  94,193,266  

     
Total advances to related parties P201,388,315  P97,176,174  

 
Cash advances were made to related parties to support their operating capital 
requirements. These are repayable once the related parties have sufficient cash flows to 
support their respective operations. These advances are non-interest bearing, unsecured 
and payable on demand. Cash advances were made to individual shareholders for the 

respective shareholders’ investment in entities for which the Group has the option to 
purchase in the future. These investments are in line with the Group’s expansion programs. 

 
v) The assessment of the allowance for impairment loss related to the amount of outstanding 

balances of the Group’s loans receivable and advances to related parties and the expense 
recognized during the period in respect of impairment loss is undertaken through examining 
the financial position of the related parties and the market in which they operate. 
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vi) Advances from related parties 
 

  2015  2014  

      
Calata Farms      
January 1  (P9,800,000)  (P5,500,000)  
Cash advances from  (200,000  (4,300,000)  

December 31  (P10,000,000)  (9,800,000)  

      
Individuals      
January 1  (12,919,986)  (9,321,776)  
Cash advances from    (12,919,986)  
Cash advances to  3,394,398  9,321,776  
Purchase of property and 

equipment on behalf of the 
Company 

 

 

 

- 

 

Sale to a related party of 
property and equipment 

(Note 15) 

 

 

 

- 

 

Collection of loans receivable 
thru offsetting (Note 9) 

 

  -  

  9,525,588  (12,919,986)  

      

Total advances from related 
parties 

 
P19,525,588  (P22,719,986)   

 
Cash advances from shareholders are used to support the operating capital requirements of 
the Group.  
 
 

NOTE 26 - RETIREMENT BENEFITS 
 
The Group maintains an unfunded, non-contributory defined benefit retirement plan covering 
all qualified employees. Normal retirement benefit costs are equal to the employee’s 
retirement pay as defined in Republic Act No. 7641 multiplied by his years of service. Normal 
retirement date is the attainment of age 60 and completion of at least five years of service. 
The law does not require minimum funding of the plan. 
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The following tables summarize the components of net retirement benefits recognized in the 
consolidated statements of income and the movements and amounts of defined benefit 
liabilities recognized in consolidated statements of financial position: 

 
The movements in the defined benefit obligation and the amount recognized in the 
consolidated statements of financial position are as follows: 
 
  2015  2014 

     
At January 1  P5,611,387   P5,285,805  

  165,249   
 Service cost – current  71,253   660,997  

Interest cost  5,847,889   278,033  

Included in profit or loss  P5,611,387   939,030  

Remeasurements in OCI:  

 
 

 Changes in financial assumptions  -  138,233  
Changes in demographic assumptions  -  (783,481) 
Experience adjustments  -  31,800  

  -  (613,448) 

Balance at March 31 and December 31  P5,847,889   P5,611,387  

 
The principal assumptions used in determining retirement benefit liability of the Group are 
shown below: 
 
  2015  2014 

     
Discount rates  4.49%  4.49% 

Future salary increase rates  5.00%  5.00% 
 
Sensitivity analysis 
 
The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on a reasonably possible change of 
each significant assumption on the defined benefit obligation as at the December 31, with all 
other variables held constant: 
 
 Reasonably 

possible 
change 

 

2014 

 

2014 

      
Discount rate 1%    P210,930 
 -1%    (P174,861) 
      
Salary increase rate 1%    P192,659 

 -1%    (P164,046) 
 
The defined benefit obligation is calculated using the discount rate set with reference to 
government bonds. When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to 
significant actuarial assumptions, the same method (present value of the defined benefit 
obligation calculated with the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period) 
has been applied as when calculating the retirement benefit liability recognized in the 
consolidated statements of the financial position. 
 
There were no changes from the previous years in the methods and assumptions used in 
preparing the sensitivity analysis. 

 
The average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 16.3 as at March 31, 2015 and 
December 31, 2014, respectively. 
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Maturity analysis 
 
Shown below is the maturity analysis of the undiscounted benefit payments: 
 
 2015  2014 

    

Between 1 to 5 years P4,444,069  P4,444,069 

Between 5 to 10 years P1,096,820  P1,096,820 

 
 
NOTE 27 – INCOME TAXES 
 
a. The components of the Group’s provision for income tax as reported in the consolidated 

statements of income are as follows: 
 

  2015  2014 

     
Current   P18,753,051  P57,205,937 
Deferred  (314,204)  (531,574) 

  (P18,438,847)  P56,674,363 

 
b. The component of the Group’s provision for income tax as reported in the consolidated 

statements of comprehensive income is as follows: 
 

  2015  2014 

Remeasurement gain (loss) on defined benefit 

plans  

 

P429,414  P613,448 

Deferred tax  -  (184,034) 

Remeasurement gain (loss) on defined benefit 

plans, net of tax 

 

P429,414  P429,414 

 
c. The components of the Group’s deferred tax assets are as follows: 

 

  2015  2014 

At January 1  P3,833,997  P3,544,357 
Charged to consolidated statements of 
 income during the year: 

 
   

Retirement benefits obligation  113,083  281,710 
Allowance for impairment loss on trade and 

other receivables 
 

-  191,964 

     

Charged to consolidated statements of 
 comprehensive income during the 
 year: 

 

   
Loss on remeasurement of the defined benefit 

obligation 
 

-  (184,034) 

At December 31  P3,947,081  P3,833,997 

 
The Group reviews deferred tax assets at each reporting date and recognizes these to the 
extent that it is probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of 
the deferred tax assets to be utilized. Deferred tax assets were recognized as at March 31, 2015 
and December 31, 2014 as management believes that the carryforward benefit would be 
realized in its future operations. 
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d. The components of the Group’s deferred tax liabilities are as follows: 
 

  2015  2014 

 
 

   

At January 1  P173,700  P231,600 
Charged to consolidated statements of 
 income during the year: 

 
   

Movement in accrued interest  -  (57,900) 

Unrealized gain on disposal of equipment    - 

At March 31 and December 31  P173,700  P173,700 

 
e. The reconciliation of the provision for income tax computed at the statutory income tax 

rate to provision for income tax shown in the consolidated statements of income are as 
follows: 

 

  2015  2014 

     

Income tax computed at statutory  rate of 30%  P18,074,470  p57,328,814 

Add (deduct) income tax effects      
 resulting from:     

Non-deductible expenses  364,377  1,140,576 

 Income subjected to final tax  -  (1,795,027) 

  P18,438,847  P56,674,363 

 
 
NOTE 28 – COMMITMENTS 

 
Distributorship agreements  
 
a. The Group has an existing Sales Agreement with New Hope Tarlac Agriculture Inc. (New 

Hope) wherein the parties agreed that the Group will exclusively distribute in the whole 
territory of the Republic of the Philippines animal feeds under the brand name “Golden 
Bean”. New Hope shall not designate any other authorized distributor without the written 
consent of the Group. 

 
b. The Parent Company has entered into a non-exclusive distribution and production 

agreement with Topigs Philippines, Inc. in which the parties agreed that the Parent 
Company will establish an operation to produce Topigs breeding animals under license and 
to sell them within the territory of the Republic of the Philippines. Topigs will provide 
access to technology, knowhow and genetics to produce the breeding animals and assist the 
Company in the sales distribution and use of the products. The agreement does not provide 
any royalty and fees charged for the pigs produced. The distribution and production 
agreement shall have a term of ten (10) years beginning October 28, 2014. 
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c. The Group has other distributorship agreements but on a non-exclusive basis.  In general, 
all supply and distribution agreements are renewed on a yearly basis. Renewal may be 
expressed when parties opt to execute a written agreement or implied when parties 
continue to do business dealings with each other such as taking of orders of supplies. The 
Group does not usually have duly executed distribution agreements with the rest of its 
suppliers of agro chemicals, fertilizers and seeds. Furthermore, based on industry practice, 
actual exclusive distribution agreements are not issued on a yearly basis. In the case of 
non-exclusive distribution agreements, no formal agreement is executed except for some. 
Instead, certifications are issued to attest that the Group is a distributor of the pertinent 

supplier products indicating therein exclusivity or non-exclusivity. However, for other non-
exclusive suppliers, certifications are not even given since supply of the products continues 
for so long as the Group places an order. 
 

Lease agreements 
 
a. The Group has entered into various lease agreements with different entities for the lease of 

store outlets and warehouses located in various provinces in Luzon, all of which fall under 
the category of operating leases. The lease agreements are renewable every year where 
terms and conditions are subject to the agreement of both parties. The security deposit 
and advanced rental related to these leases amounted to P1,469,122 as at March 31, 2015 
and December 31, 2014. 
 

b. The Group has entered in a lease agreement with its shareholders for the lease of office 
premises and warehouse located in Bulacan. The said lease is rent-free and renewable 
every year upon mutual agreement by the parties (see Note 25). 

 
c. On August 1, 2012, the Group entered into a lease agreement with KSA Realty Corporation 

for the lease of its office premises in Makati. The terms of the lease is for three (3) years 
and is subject to annual escalation rate of ten percent (10%). The lease agreement has a 
renewal option. The details of the security deposit and advanced rental on this lease 
agreement are as follows: 

 

 
Terms and conditions  2015  2014 

Refundable security     
deposit 

 
Equivalent to three (3) months’ 
lease payment and refundable at 
the end of the lease term 

 

P1,652,566  

 

P1,652,566  
Advanced rental Equivalent to three (3) months’ 

lease payment and to be applied 
on the last three months of the 
lease term 

 

1,652,566 

 

1,652,566 

 
  P3,305,132   P3,305,132  

 
The refundable security deposit and the advanced rental are recognized in the consolidated 
statements of financial position under other noncurrent assets.  
 

There were no contingent rent related to or restrictions imposed by these lease arrangements 
such as those concerning dividends, additional debt and further leasing. 
 
The rent expense charged to operations for the three-month periods ended March 31, 2014 and 
2013 amounted to P3,520,434  and P4,446,799  respectively (see Note 21). 
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Future minimum annual rentals are as follows: 
 
  2015  2014 

 
Not later than one year  P5,278,045  P5,278,045 
More than one year but not later than five years  1,099,655  1,099,655 

  P6,377,700  P6,377,700 

 
 
NOTE 29 – EARNINGS PER SHARE  

 
Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing net profit for the year attributable to ordinary 
equity holders of the Parent Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares 
outstanding during the year. 
 
The financial information pertinent to the derivation of the basic earnings per share for the 
years ended March 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, are as follows:  
 

  2014  2014 

     
Profit from continuing operations attributable to 

ordinary equity holders of the Parent Company 
 

P36,391,093  P127,710,892 

Weighted average number of shares outstanding  359,827,000  359,827,000 

Basic and diluted earnings per share from continuing 
operations 

 
P0.10  P0.35 

 
 
There are no dilutive potential ordinary shares for the years ended March 31, 2015 and 
December 31, 2014. Therefore, the Group’s basic and diluted EPS for the said years are equal. 
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The reconciliations of the average number of shares outstanding as of the reporting date are as follows: 
 

Date 

Issuance (purchase) during the year Number of shares outstanding Weighted average number of shares 

2015 2014 2013 2015 2014 2013 2015 2014 2013 

January 1 - - 
                              

-    359,827,000 359,827,000 
        

360,112,000 359,827,000 359,827,000 
         

360,112,000  
May 23 - - - 

  
 - - - 

November 22 - -       (100,000) - -  (100,000) - -  (8,333) 
November 26 - -  (75,000) - -  (75,000) - -  (6,250) 

November 27 - - (60,000) - -   (60,000) - -    (5,000) 
December 3 - -     (50,000) - - (50,000) - -      (4,167) 

 
- -  (285,000) 359,827,000 359,827,000 359,827,000 359,827,000 359,827,000 360,088,250  

 
 

 



 
CALATA CORPORATION & ITS SUBSIDIARIES 

  
INDEX TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

AND SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES 
Audited Financial Statements (AFS) 

March 31, 2015 
 
 

   
   

Consolidated Financial Statements   
   
Consolidated Statement of Management’s Responsibility for Financial Statements 
     as at December 31, 2014 and 2013 and for the years ended  

     December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 
Independent Auditors’ Report dated April 15, 2015    
Consolidated Statements of Financial Position as at December 31, 2014 and 
2013   
Consolidated Statements of Income for the years ended December 31,  
     2014, 2013 and 2012 
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income for the years ended   
     December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity for the years ended  
     December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31,  
      2014, 2013 and 2012   
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements as at December 31, 2014 
     and 2013 and for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 
   
Supplementary Schedules   
    
Independent Auditors’ Report on Supplementary Schedules dated  

April 15, 2015 
    
A. Financial Assets  Not Applicable 
B. Amounts Receivable from Directors, Officers, Employees, Related     

Parties and Principal Shareholders(Other than Related parties)  
Not Applicable 

 
C. Amounts Receivable from Related Parties which are Eliminated during 

the Consolidation of Financial Statements  
Applicable 

(See Schedule C) 
D. Intangible Assets – Other Assets  Not Applicable 
E. Long-Term Debt  Applicable 

(See Schedule E) 
F. Indebtedness to Related Parties (Long-Term Loans from Related 

Companies)  Not Applicable 
G. Guarantees of Securities of Other Issuers  Not Applicable 
H. Capital Stock 

 
Applicable 

(See Schedule H) 
I. Map of the Group of Companies  Applicable 

(See Schedule I) 
J. Reconciliation of Retained Earnings Available for Dividend Declaration  Applicable 

(See Schedule J) 
K. Effective Standards and Interpretations under PFRS as of year-end  Applicable 

(See Schedule K) 
L. Financial Soundness Indicators in Two Comparative Periods  Applicable 

(See Schedule L) 



Schedule C. Amounts Receivable from Related Parties which are Eliminated during the Consolidation of Financial Statements 
 

Deductions 

Name and 
designation of 

debtor 
Type of 

Receivable 

Balance at 
beginning of 
the period Additions Payments 

Amounts 
written-off Current 

Not 
Current 

Balance at 
end of period 

         
Agri Phil Corporation  

(Subsidiary) 

Trade 

receivables P2,470,007 P- P2,470,007 P- P- P- P- 
 Advances 6,738,004 476,031 - - 7,214,035 - 7,214,035 
Brookfields Meat 
Inc. (Subsidiary) Advances 45,320,909  1,422,311 - 43,898,598 - 43,898,598 

  P54,528,920 476,031 P3,892,318 P- P51,112,633 P- P51,112,633 

 
 
Schedule E. Long-Term Debt 
 

Title of issue and type of obligation 
 

Interest rate Terms Maturity dates 

Amount 

authorized by 
indenture 

Amount shown 

under caption 
“Current portion 

of long-term debt” 
in related 

statement of 
financial position 

Amount shown 
under caption 

“Long-term Debt” 
in related 

statement of 
financial position 

 
Loans payable 9.87%-10.47% 

30-60 equal 
monthly 

installments 2015-2017 P4,003,255 
 

P1,592,685 
 

P2,410,570 

 
Schedule H. Share Capital 
 

Title of issue 
Number of shares 

authorized 

Number of shares 
issued and 

outstanding as shown 
under related 

statement of financial 
position caption 

Number of shares 
reserved for options, 
warrants, conversion 

and other rights 

Number of shares 
held by related 

parties 

Directors, 
officers and 
employees Others 

 
Common shares 845,400,000 360,112,000 None None 217,700,000 142,127,000 

  



Schedule I. Map of Group of Companies 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Schedule J. Reconciliation of Retained Earnings Available for Dividend Declaration as at 
December 31, 2014 
 
Unappropriated Retained Earnings, as adjusted to available for 

dividend distribution, beginning 

 

 P305,789,976 
   
Add: Net income actually earned/ realized during the period   
   

Net income during the period closed to Retained Earnings P36,001,492  

   

Less: Non-actual/unrealized income net of tax             
        Equity in net income of associated/joint venture           -  

Unrealized foreign exchange gain – net (except those 
attributable  to Cash and Cash Equivalents)           - 

 

        Unrealized actuarial gain -  
        Fair value adjustment (M2M gains)           -  
        Fair value adjustment of Investment Property resulting to   gain           -  
        Adjustment due to deviation from PFRS/GAAP – gain           -  

Other unrealized gains or adjustments to the retained earnings 
as a result of certain transactions accounted for under the 
PFRS            - 

 

        Sub-total 36,001,492  

   
Add: Non-actual losses             
        Depreciation on revaluation increment (after tax)           -  
        Adjustment due to deviation from PFRS/GAAP – loss           -  

        Loss on fair value adjustment of Investment Property (after 
tax)           - 

 

        Sub-total -  

   

Net income actually earned during the period  36,001,492 
   
Add (Less):   
        Dividend declarations during the period -  

        Appropriations of Retained Earnings during the period           -  
        Reversals of appropriation           -  
        Effects of prior period adjustments           -  
        Treasury shares 1,015,190  

Sub-total  1,015,190 

   
TOTAL RETAINED EARNINGS, END    
           AVAILABLE FOR DIVIDEND  P342,806,658 

 

Calata Corporation 
(Parent Company) 

Agri Phil Corporation 
(Subsidiary) 

 

Brookfields Meat, Inc. 
(Subsidiary) 



Schedule K. Effective Standards and Interpretations under the PFRS as of year-end 

PHILIPPINE FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS 
Effective as of December 31, 2014 

“Adopted”, 
“Not Adopted” or 
“Not Applicable” 

Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial 
Statements  
Conceptual Framework Phase A: Objectives and qualitative characteristics  Adopted 

PFRSs Practice Statement Management Commentary Adopted 

Philippine Financial Reporting Standards  

PFRS 1 

(Revised)  

First-time Adoption of Philippine Financial Reporting 

Standards Adopted 

Amendments to PFRS 1 and PAS 27: Cost of an Investment 
in a Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled Entity or Associate Adopted 

Amendments to PFRS 1: Additional Exemptions for First-
time Adopters Not applicable 

Amendment to PFRS 1: Limited Exemption from 
Comparative PFRS 7 Disclosures for First-time Adopters   Not applicable 

Amendments to PFRS 1: Severe Hyperinflation and Removal 
of Fixed Date for First-time Adopters   Not applicable 

Amendments to PFRS 1: Government Loans Not applicable 

PFRS 2  Share-based Payment  Not applicable 

Amendments to PFRS 2: Vesting Conditions and 
Cancellations Not applicable 

Amendments to PFRS 2: Group Cash-settled Share-based 
Payment Transactions Not applicable 

PFRS 3 
(Revised)  Business Combinations  Adopted 

PFRS 4  Insurance Contracts  Not applicable 

Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 4: Financial Guarantee 
Contracts Not applicable 

PFRS 5  Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued 
Operations Not applicable 

PFRS 6  Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources  Not applicable 

 Amendments to PFRS 7: Disclosures – Offsetting Financial 
Assets and Financial Liabilities Adopted 

PFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures  Adopted 

Amendments to PFRS 7: Transition  Adopted 

Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7: Reclassification of 
Financial Assets Adopted 

Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7: Reclassification of 
Financial Assets - Effective Date and Transition Adopted 

Amendments to PFRS 7: Improving Disclosures about 
Financial Instruments Adopted 

Amendments to PFRS 7: Disclosures - Transfers of Financial 
Assets Adopted 



PHILIPPINE FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS 
Effective as of December 31, 2014 

“Adopted”, 
“Not Adopted” or 
“Not Applicable” 

Amendments to PFRS 7: Disclosures – Offsetting Financial 
Assets and Financial Liabilities Adopted 

Amendments to PFRS 7: Mandatory Effective Date of PFRS 
9 and Transition Disclosures Adopted 

PFRS 8  Operating Segments  Adopted 

PFRS 9  Financial Instruments  Adopted 

Amendments to PFRS 9: Mandatory Effective Date of PFRS 
9 and Transition Disclosures Adopted 

PFRS 10  Consolidated Financial Statements  Adopted 

 Consolidated Financial Statements - Investment Entities Not applicable 

PFRS 11  Joint Arrangements  Not applicable 

PFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities  Adopted 

PFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement  Adopted 

Philippine Accounting Standards  

PAS 1 
(Revised)  

Presentation of Financial Statements  Adopted 

Amendment to PAS 1: Capital Disclosures  Adopted 

Amendments to PAS 32 and PAS 1: Puttable Financial 
Instruments and Obligations Arising on Liquidation Adopted 

Amendments to PAS 1: Presentation of Items of Other 
Comprehensive Income Adopted 

PAS 2  Inventories  Adopted 

PAS 7  Statement of Cash Flows  Adopted 

PAS 8  Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and 
Errors Adopted 

PAS 10  Events after the Balance Sheet Date  Adopted 

PAS 11  Construction Contracts  Not applicable 

PAS 12  Income Taxes  Adopted 

Amendment to PAS 12 - Deferred Tax: Recovery of 
Underlying Assets Adopted 

PAS 16  Property, Plant and Equipment  Adopted 

PAS 17  Leases  Adopted 

PAS 18  Revenue  Adopted 

PAS 19  Employee Benefits  Adopted 

 Amendments to PAS 19: Actuarial Gains and Losses, Group 
Plans and Disclosures 
 Adopted 

PAS 19 
(Amended)  Employee Benefits  Adopted 

PAS 20  Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of 
Government Assistance Not applicable 



PHILIPPINE FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS 
Effective as of December 31, 2014 

“Adopted”, 
“Not Adopted” or 
“Not Applicable” 

PAS 21  The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates  Adopted 

Amendment: Net Investment in a Foreign Operation  Not applicable 

PAS 23 
(Revised)  Borrowing Costs  Adopted 

PAS 24 
(Revised)  Related Party Disclosures  Adopted 

PAS 26  Accounting and Reporting by Retirement Benefit Plans Not applicable 

PAS 27 
(Amended)  Separate Financial Statements  Not applicable 

PAS 28 
(Amended)  Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures  Not applicable 

PAS 29  Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies  Not applicable 

PAS 31  Interests in Joint Ventures  Not applicable 

PAS 32  Financial Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation Adopted 

Amendments to PAS 32 and PAS 1: Puttable Financial 
Instruments and Obligations Arising on Liquidation Not applicable 

Amendment to PAS 32: Classification of Rights Issues  Not applicable 

Amendments to PAS 32: Offsetting Financial Assets and 
Financial Liabilities Adopted 

PAS 33  Earnings per Share  Adopted 

PAS 34  Interim Financial Reporting  Adopted 

PAS 36  Impairment of Assets  Adopted 

PAS 37  Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets Not applicable 

PAS 38  Intangible Assets  Not applicable 

PAS 39  Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement  Adopted 

Amendments to PAS 39: Transition and Initial Recognition 
of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities Adopted 

Amendments to PAS 39: Cash Flow Hedge Accounting of 
Forecast Intragroup Transactions Not applicable 

Amendments to PAS 39: The Fair Value Option  Not applicable 

Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 4: Financial Guarantee 
Contracts Not applicable 

Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7: Reclassification of 
Financial Assets Adopted 

Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7: Reclassification of 
Financial Assets – Effective Date and Transition Adopted 

Amendments to Philippine Interpretation IFRIC–9 and PAS 

39:  Not applicable 

Embedded Derivatives Not applicable 

Amendment to PAS 39: Eligible Hedged Items  Not applicable 

PAS 40  Investment Property  Adopted 



PHILIPPINE FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS 
Effective as of December 31, 2014 

“Adopted”, 
“Not Adopted” or 
“Not Applicable” 

PAS 41  Agriculture  Adopted 

Philippine Interpretations  

IFRIC 1  Changes in Existing Decommissioning, Restoration and 
Similar Liabilities Not applicable 

IFRIC 2  Members' Share in Co-operative Entities and Similar 
Instruments Not applicable 

IFRIC 4  Determining Whether an Arrangement Contains a Lease Adopted 

IFRIC 5  Rights to Interests arising from Decommissioning, 
Restoration and Environmental Rehabilitation Funds Not applicable 

IFRIC 6  Liabilities arising from Participating in a Specific Market - 
Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment Not applicable 

IFRIC 7  Applying the Restatement Approach under PAS 29 Financial 
Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies  Not applicable 

IFRIC 8  Scope of PFRS 2  Not applicable 

IFRIC 9  Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives  Not applicable 

Amendments to Philippine Interpretation IFRIC–9 and PAS 
39: Embedded Derivatives Not applicable 

IFRIC 10  Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment  Not applicable 

IFRIC 11  PFRS 2- Group and Treasury Share Transactions  Not applicable 

IFRIC 12  Service Concession Arrangements  Not applicable 

IFRIC 13  Customer Loyalty Programmes  Not applicable 

IFRIC 14  The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding 
Requirements and their Interaction Not applicable 

Amendments to Philippine Interpretations IFRIC- 14, 
Prepayments of a Minimum Funding Requirement Not applicable 

IFRIC 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation  Not applicable 

IFRIC 17  Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners  Not applicable 

IFRIC 18  Transfers of Assets from Customers  Not applicable 

IFRIC 19  Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity Instruments Not applicable 

IFRIC 20  Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Mine Not applicable 

SIC-7  Introduction of the Euro  Not applicable 

SIC-10  Government Assistance - No Specific Relation to Operating 
Activities Not applicable 

SIC-12  Consolidation - Special Purpose Entities  Not applicable 

Amendment to SIC - 12: Scope of SIC 12  Not applicable 

SIC-13  Jointly Controlled Entities - Non-Monetary Contributions by 
Venturers Not applicable 

SIC-15  Operating Leases - Incentives  Not applicable 

SIC-21  Income Taxes - Recovery of Revalued Non-Depreciable 
Assets Not applicable 

SIC-25  Income Taxes - Changes in the Tax Status of an Entity or its Not applicable 



PHILIPPINE FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS 
Effective as of December 31, 2014 

“Adopted”, 
“Not Adopted” or 
“Not Applicable” 

Shareholders 

SIC-27  Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the 

Legal Form of a Lease Not applicable 

SIC-29  Service Concession Arrangements: Disclosures.  Not applicable 

SIC-31  Revenue - Barter Transactions Involving Advertising 
Services Not applicable 

SIC-32  Intangible Assets - Web Site Costs  Not applicable 

 
 
PFRS 2 
 
PFRS 3 
 
PFRS 8 
 
 
PFRS 13 
 
PAS 16 
 

PAS 24 
 
PAS 38 

Annual Improvements to PFRS (2010-2012 Cycle)     
 
Share-based Payment – Definition of Vesting Condition 
 
Business Combination – Accounting for contingent 
consideration in a business combination 
Operating Segments – Aggregation of Operating Segments 
Operating Segments – Reconciliation of the total of a 
reportable segment’s assets to the entity’s assets 
Fair Value Measurement – Short-term receivables and 
payables 
Property, Plant and Equipment – Revaluation method – 
proportionate restatement of accumulated depreciation 

Related Party Disclosures – Key management personnel 
 
Intangible Assets – Revaluation method – proportionate 
restatement of accumulated amortization 
 

Adopted 
 
 
 
 

 
 
PFRS 1 
 
PFRS 3 
 
PFRS 13 
 
PAS 40 
 

Annual Improvements to PFRS (2011-2013 Cycle)     
 
First-time Adoption of Philippine Financial Reporting 
Standards – Meaning of effective PFRSs 
Business Combination – Scope exceptions for joint ventures 
 
Fair Value Measurement – Scope of PFRS 13.52 (scope 
exemption) 
Investment Property – Clarifying the interrelationship of 
PFRS 3 and PAS 40 when classifying property as investment 
property or owner-occupied property   

Adopted 
 
 
 
 

 

 
PFRS 5 
 
PFRS 7 
 
 
PAS 19 

Annual Improvements to PFRS (2012-2014 Cycle)     

 
Noncurrent Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued 
Operations – Changes in methods of disposal 
Financial Instruments: Disclosures – Servicing contracts and 
the applicability of offsetting amendments in condensed 
interim financial statements 
Employee Benefits – Discount rate – regional market issue 
 

Adopted 

 
 
 
 

 



 
Schedule L. Financial Soundness Indicators in Two Comparative Periods 
 

Current/Liquidity Ratios March 2015 

 

December 

2014 

   

 

Current ratio 1.06 

 

1.01 

Quick ratio 0.84 

 

0.83 

   

 

Solvency Ratio/Debt-to-Equity Ratio March 2015 

 

December 

2014 

   

 

Gearing ratio 0.99 

 

1.04 

   

 

Asset-to-Equity Ratio March 2015 

 

December 

2014 

   

 

Net assets per share 2.59 

 

2.47 

   

 

Interest Rate Coverage Ratio March 2015 

 

December 

2014 

   

 

Interest cover 6.12 

 

6.10 

   

 

Profitability Ratios March 2015 

 

December 

2014 

   

 

Return on capital employed 7% 

 

24% 

Gross profit margin 16% 

 

16.93% 

Net profit margin 11% 

 

7.56% 

   

 

Other Ratios March 2015 

 

December 

2014 

   

 

Earnings per share P0.15 

 

P0.36 
 

 



Item 2. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.  

Overview 

 
The Company’s revenues continues its upward momentum as Sales for the quarter ended March 31, 2015 
amounted to P505.84 Million or an increase of P131.25 Million or 35% increase from the same period last 
year. 
 

 
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 
 

 
Results of operations for the first quarter March 31, 2015 compared to the same period March 
31,2014 ended last year. 

 

Sales for the period increased by P131.65 Million or 35%. The sales increase is a result of the better sales 
performance of the Company’s current sales mix which prioritizes high margin products. The previous 
year, this strategy was in the initial stages of implementation and sales have been lower as a result. 

 

The Company’s own products like Golden Bean and Agri generics have also seen increased market 
penetration; they are now distributed over a larger area of Luzon and now also in some small parts of 
Visayas and Mindanao. 

 

Gross profit increased by P19.45 Million or 32%. The increase is mainly due to the increased proportion 

of sales generated from higher margin products which are the Company’s own brand of agro products. 

 

These are the AGRI brand of agro-chemicals and Golden Bean for animal feeds.  

 

The Company’s farm sales have also contributed significantly, and since the farms are capital intensive 
but high in margins, the overall Company margins have been significantly increased as a result. 

 

Operating expenses decreased by P0.52 Million or 2%. The decrease is a result of austerity measures 

implemented by the Company. This is also the result of the streamlining of the Company’s operations. 
Now that we are focusing on our own brands, the manpower needed is streamlined compared to before 
where there are dedicated people and resources used for every major brand that we carry. 

 
 
Audited results for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2014 compared to Audited results for the 
fiscal year ended December 31, 2013 
 

Sales for the period increased by P147.65 Million or 10%. The Sales increased as a result of better  
market penetration of the Company’s own brands. The selling of the AGRI brand of agro-chemicals 
which was previously exclusive to the AGRi stores to other dealers has significantly increased the sales 
of this high margin product and has opened up new distribution channels. 
 
The Company’s Golden Bean brand of animal feeds has also seen increased market penetration to 
include provinces in Northern Luzon, Southern Luzon and even a small portion of Visayas and Mindanao 

thru the use of distributor partners in those areas. 
 
The Company’s Meat business division has also started contributing in 2014 but just a small amount since 
it was in its initial phases of operation in 2014. It is expected that division will contribute a higher 
proportion of revenues in 2015. 
 
Gross profit increased by P59.95 Million or 26%. The increase is mainly due to the increased proportion 
of sales generated from higher margin products which are the Company’s own brand of agro products. 
These are the AGRI brand of agro-chemicals and Golden Bean for animal feeds.  



 
Operating expenses decreased by P9.81 Million or 9%. The decrease is mainly due to decrease in  salaries 
and rental expense. The decrease in these expense items is due to the streamlining of Agri  stores to 
downsize the number of stores to consolidate the customer base in some areas, this is also in  line with 
the strategy to sell the AGRI brand og agro-chemicals to other dealers, this necessitated the  relocation 
or closing of some stores so that the dealers in the area will support our brand. This strategy  was done 
in areas where there were established dealers and it was decided that it would be better to  partner 
with them. This also resulted in the increase in market penetration of AGRI branded agro- chemicals as 
well as Golden Bean branded animal feeds as one AGRI store closed resulted in bout 5 to  10 dealers 

carrying the said products.  
 
Other operating income decreased by P7.07 Million or 26%. The decrease in this account is mainly due to 
the decrease in rebates received from Suppliers as the strategy of the Company has been to purchase 
the lowest prices and commit itself to sales targets with rebates when the targets are met. 
 
Finance costs increased by P1.25 Million or 4%. This is mainly due to the increase in average loan 
balances during the year that were used to fund the increase in the Company’s operations including its 
expansions. 

 
Audited results for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2013 compared to Audited results for the 
fiscal year ended December 31, 2012 

 

Sales for the period decreased by P652.40 Million or 29%. The decrease is mainly due to the Company’s 
shift in focus from distribution sales to retail sales where the margins are higher. Also the Company 
shifted to the sales of its own brands rather than the third party brands. This is in line with the 

Company’s focus to develop its own brand in the market for higher margins as well as more stable sales 
in the long term. 

 
Gross profit decreased by P27.90 Million or 11%. The decrease is mainly due to the decrease in sales. It 
is noteworthy that the decrease is much lower compared to the decrease in sales, this is due to the 
abovementioned strategy of focusing on higher margin sales. 

 
Operating expenses decreased by P0.63 Million or 1%. The decrease is mainly due to the scaling down 
of the distribution business and as a result most of the expenses from this business has been saved. As 
shown by the decrease in sales, the scale down of the business from distribution has been significant 

and the retail sales as projected has not yet been able to increase in the same pace. This is the main 
reason for the decrease in operating expenses. 

 
Finance income decreased by P0.12 Million or 1%. The decrease is due to the decrease in interest 
bearing loans receivable. 

 
Finance costs increased by P1.92 Million or 6%. This is mainly due to the higher loan balance this year. 

 
Audited results for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2012 compared to Audited results for the 
fiscal year ended December 31, 2011 

 

Sales for the year ended December 2012 amounted to P2.20 Billion which is the highest that the 
Company has achieved in its history. This represents an increase of P204.00 Million or 10% compared to 
the 2011 sales. The increase in sales is mainly  brought about  by the sales contribution of  the 
Company’s wholly owned chain of stores under Agri Phil Corporation. The retail store chain allowed the 
Company to sell its products on a significantly larger area than it has previously access to. 

 
Gross Profit increased by increased by P42.38 Million or 20% compared to 2011. Besides the increase in 
sales, the gross profit increased because of the increase in margins enjoyed by the Company in its sales 
direct to end users thru its retail stores. 

 
Operating expenses increased significantly. The increase amounted to P48.03 Million or 82%. The 
increase is mainly due to increased expenses incurred from retail operations, which began its first full 
year of operations in 2012. The Company aggressively competed for market share for its retail shares 
thru extensive marketing activities in its area of operations. The operations of the retail stores 
incurred large amounts of expenditures most notably salaries due to the large number of the 



Company’s stores that require a large number of people needed to operate. 

 
Other operating income increased by P19.59 Million or 203%. This is mainly due to the P8.21 Million 
recorded as gain from the purchase of Agri Phil Corporation. The Company also recorded a gain from a 
liability that was forgiven by an affiliate which amounted to P5.28 Million. 

 
Finance income increased by P6.67 Million or 174%. This is mainly due to the P7.97 Million interest from 

loans receivables recorded in 2011. 
 

Finance costs increased by P5.96 Million or 22%. This is mainly due to the increase in loans payable 
balances mainly to fund the increased operations as well as for the construction of the Company’s 
farms which resulted in a big increase in the Company’s property and equipment. 

 
Audited results for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2011 compared to Audited results for the 
fiscal year ended December 31, 2010 

 

The year 2011 saw the highest recorded revenues and net income in the Company’s history. 

 
The Revenues amounted to P2.00 Billion in 2011 from P1.80 Billion in 2010 or an increase of P203.65 
Million or 11%. The net income amounted to P100.17 Million in 2011 from P33.84 Million in 2010 or an 
increase of P66.34 Million or 196%. 

 
The increase in sales is mainly attributed to increased market penetration primarily through the 
affiliate “AGRI” retail  store chain  which  allowed to Company to sell  in markets not previously 
accessible. 

 
The fertilizer business also had a bigger contribution this year compared to the previous years as the 
Company saw favorable price movements in fertilizer products. 

 
The increase in net income is aside from the increased revenues, mainly due to the increase in the 
Company’s margins. The Company’s gross profit amounted to P227.31 Million and P142.65 Million in 
2011 and 2010 respectively, or an increase of P84.66 Million or 59%. 

 
The Company’s operating expenses decreased, for 2011 it amounted to P63.30 Million from P67.33 
Million in 2010. The decrease amounted to P4.53 Million or 7%. The decrease is mainly due to the 
Company’s austerity measures which has resulted in decreasing expenses for the past several years. 

The Company recorded finance income amounting to P3.83 Million in 2011. This is the interest from the 
loans receivable of the Company. 

 
The Company’s finance cost had no significant movement. 

 
 
FINANCIAL POSITION 

 
Financial position as of March 31, 2015 compared to December 31, 2014 including discussion on 
Material Changes to the Balance Sheet as of March 31, 2015 compared to Audited Balance Shee t as 
of Fiscal year ended December 31, 2014 (increase/decrease of 5% or more). 

 

Cash and cash equivalents decreased by P38.83 Million or 10%. The decreased is mainly due to the 
increased working capital needed for the Company’s increased operations and increased sales. 

 

Inventories increased by P15.17 Million or 10%. The increase is mainly due to increased inventory 
requirements needed to support the increased sales levels of the Company. 

 

Advances to Related parties increased by P53.10 Million or 54%. The increase is mainly due to advances 
to affiliates for their expansion purposes. All of this advances are intended for operations that are 
deemed by management to be beneficial to the Company as a whole. 

 

Trade and other payables decreased by P8.58 Million or 6%. The decrease is due to the Company’s 



management of payables to take advantage of cash discounts or short term discounts. 

 

Advances from related parties decreased by P3.19 Million or 14%. The decrease is due to payments made 
by related parties 

 
 
Audited financial position as of December 31, 2014 compared to December 31, 2013 including 
discussion on Material Changes to the Company’s Audited Balance Sheet as of Fiscal year ended  
December 31, 2014 compared to Audited Balance Sheet as of Fiscal year ended December 31, 2013 
(increase/decrease of 5% or more) 
 
Cash and cash equivalents decreased by P66.45 Million or 15%. The decreased is mainly due to the purchase and 
construction of facilities for the Company’s expansion mainly on the farms business and meat business. The purchase 
of the hog breeding biological assets also affected the cash balance. 
 
Trade receivables increased by P47.19  Million or 21%. This is mainly due to the increase in sales of the Company. The 
increase in the dealer and distribution network of the Company’s products mainly the own brands resulted in an 
increase in the extension of credit to dealers and distributors. 
 
Advances to related parties increased by P49.30 Million or 103%. The increase is mainly due to advances made to 
related parties for projects related to the Company’s expansion mainly into the farms and meat businesses. 
 
Other current assets increased by P1.62 Million or 59%. This is mainly due to various advance payments made by the 
Company. 
 
Noncurrent biological assets amounted to P56.16 Million from last year’s zero balance. This is composed of the hog 
breeding herd purchased from Topigs Norsvin, one of the largest hog genetics specialist Companies in the world. 
 
Investment properties increased by P195.04 Million or 99%. These are various properties acquired by the Company 
for investment and intended for the later expansion programs by the Company. 
 
Property and equipment increased by P57.77 Million or 15%. The increase is mainly due to the additions to the farms 
and also the Company’s meat facility. 
 
Trade and other payables increased by P82.58 Million or 167%.  The increase in trade payables is mainly due to the 
increased orders for goods to support the higher level of sales this year. The different divisions like the retail, meat 
and farms businesses also had higher payable balances to support the increased level of operations. 
 
Borrowings increased by P105.54 Million or 17%. The increase is mainly due to the increased requirements from the 
increased level of operations of the Company as reflected in the increased revenues and net income. 

 

 
Audited financial position as of December 31, 2013 compared to December 31, 2012 including 
discussion on Material Changes to the  Co mp any ’s  A udi te d  B al ance  Shee t  as  of  Fi sca l  
ye ar e nded December 31, 2013 compared to Audited Balance Sheet as of Fiscal year ended  
December 31, 2012 (increase/decrease of 5% or more) 

 
 

Cash and cash equivalents decreased by 49.46 Million or 13%. The decrease is mainly due to the 
decrease in trade and other payables. Trade payables were paid up to take advantage of higher 
discounts on cash payments. The Company also purchased additional property and equipment. 

 
Trade and other receivables decreased by P20.75 Million or 9%. The decrease is mainly due to the 
scaling down of the distribution business which is the main source of the Company’s trade receivables. 

 
Advances to related parties increased by P6.30 Million or 15%. The increase is mainly due to the 
expansion programs of affiliates for which the Company has the option to purchase if and when it 
decides to. 

 
Inventories decreased by P60.25 Million or 27%. The decrease is mainly due to the decrease in inventory 
requirement in the distribution business segment. 

 
Loans receivable decreased by P120.00 Million or 100%. The decrease is due to the collection of the 
receivable. 



 
Investment properties increased by P84.16 Million or 74%. The increase is mainly due to purchase of 
various properties by the Company. 

 
Property and equipment increased by P36.17 Million or 10%. The Company spent for additional property 
and equipment particularly for its farm projects. 

 
Trade and other payables decreased by P137.33 Million or 73%. The trade payables were paid up to 
take advantage of higher discounts on cash payments. Purchases were also made as much as possible 
on cash terms or the short credit terms to take advantage of the lowest possible inventory costs for the 
Company. The decrease is also due to the shift in strategy of scaling down the distribution business 
which requires a high amount of inventory turnover, this resulted in a significant decrease in the 
amount of payables for inventory. 

 
Borrowings increased by P106.46 Million or 21%. The increase is mainly due to payment of trade 
payables to take advantage of cash discounts. This was done because cash discounts are significantly 
higher compared to finance costs considering the low interest rates in the current market. 

 
Advances from related parties increased by P12.75 Million or 615%. The increase is from various 
advances made by owners and other affiliates for various expenses and investments by the Company. 

 
 
Audited financial position as of December 31, 2012 compared to December 31, 2011 including 
discussion on Mate ri al C h ange s to  the  Co mp any ’s  A udi te d  B al ance  Shee t  as  of  Fi sca 
l ye ar e nded December 31, 2012 compared to Audited Balance Sheet as of Fiscal year  ended 
December 31, 2011 (increase/decrease of 5% or more) 

 

Total assets increased by P443.72 Million or 42%. This is mainly due to the increase of P272.68 Million in 
the Property and equipment of the Company which increased bue to the Construction of the Company’s 
farming projects. The cash balance also increased by P190.71 Million mainly due to the Company’s 
Initial Public Offering last year. 

 
Trade receivables decreased by P10.38 Million or 4%. This is mainly due to the lower amount of credit 
sales for the year by the Company which is a result of the significant sales recorded by the Company’s 
retail operations. 

 
Current loans receivables decreased by P5.35 Million or 36%. This is mainly due to the payment 
received by the Company. 

 
Advances to related parties P24.93 Million or 37%. This is mainly due to payment received from related 
parties. 

 
Inventories increased by P40.65 Million or 23%. The inventories increased due to the amount of 
inventories stocked on the Company’s retails stores. 

 
Other current assets decreased by P2.41 Million or 43%. This is mainly due to the collection of other 
current receivables from different sources. 

 
Loans receivable is unchanged at P120.00 Million. This loan earns a 6% interest rate per annum. This is 
fully secured by the borrower’s various real estate properties independently valued by Cuervo 
Appraisers, Inc. at P166,549,000. 

 
Investment properties decreased by P21.29 Million or 16%. The decrease is mainly due to the change in 
classification of some of the properties into the property and equipment account. 

 
Property and equipment increased by P272.68 Million or 375%. The increase is mainly due to the 
construction of the Company’s farms. The Company’s farms total project cost is projected to be over 
P500 Million. 

 
Other current assets amounted to P3.31 Million. There was no amount recorded in this account last 
year. This account consists of the security and rental deposits to the Company’s numerous leased retail 



stores. 

 
Trade and other payables increased by P52.23 Million or 39%. The increase is mainly due to the 
increased inventory requirements of the Company in order to support the inventory requirement of the 
Company’s retail stores. 

 
Current Loans payables increased by P109.64 Mllion or 28%. The increase is used mainly to fund the 

increased operations. 

 
Advances from related parties decreased by P50.39 Million or 96%. The increase is mainly due to the 
payments made to the Company’s related parties. 

 
Dividends payable decreased by P25.00 Million. There is no balance in this account as of the end of 
2012. The dividends recorded last year has already been paid in full. 

 
Non-current loans payables increased by P6.02 Million. This account is for the loans for vehicles 
acquired by the Company. 

Retirement benefit liability increased by P1.12 Million or 61%. This is due to the increased provision for 
the year mainly due to the increased number of employees to be covered by provision for retirement 
benefits. 

 
Share capital increased by P36.01 Million or 11%. This is due to the capital raised from the Company’s 
Initial Public Offering last year. 

 
Share premium increased by P209.16 Million. This is due to the capital raised from the Company’s 

Initial Public Offering last year. 

 
Audited financial position as of December 31, 2011 compared to December 31, 2010 including 

 dis cuss i on on Mate ri al C h ange s to the Co mp any ’s  A udi te d  B al ance  Shee t  as  of  
Fiscal year ended 
December 31, 2011 compared to Audited Balance Sheet as of Fiscal year ended December 31, 
2010 (increase/decrease of 5% or more) 

 

Total assets increased by P391.74 Million or 59%. Recorded amounts were P1.05 Billion and P661.31 
Million as of yearend 2011 and 2010 respectively. The increase in assets is primarily due to the 
Company’s income from operations and the infusion of P323.10 Million additional capital by 
stockholders during the year. The infused capital shall be used for general corporate purposes and 
expansion of the business such as but not limited to contract growing and breeding of hogs and poultry. 
These aforementioned projects, however, is not the target for the use of proceeds of the Company’s 
application for listing and initial public offering of its shares to the public. 

 
Total liabilities had no significant movement, it only decreased by P6.54 Million or 1%. There was no 
significant movement because the reduction in the amounts of trade payables and short term loans 
were offset by the increase in amounts owed to stockholders and the increased provision for income 
tax. 

 
Cash increased by P185.68 Million or 972%. It amounted to P204.79 Million in 2011 up from P19.11 
Million in 2010. This is primarily due to the additional cash invested by the stockholders. 

 
Trade receivables decreased by P88.36 Million or 26%. It amounted to P252.53 Million in 2011 down 
from P340.86 Million in 2010. The decrease is mainly due to the normalization of our terms, the 2010 
balance is high because we extended terms to our dealers to encourage them to book their orders. We 
did this in 2010 because of the effects of the El Nino phenomenon on our sales. In year end 2011, we no 
longer offered the extended terms. 

 
The advances to related parties increased by P31.62 Million or 91%. It amounted to P66.50 Million in 
2011 up from P34.87 Million in 2010. This is due to the expansion of operations of affiliates which 
necessitated the increase in funds needed for investment and operations. 

 
Inventories decreased by P44.41 Million or 20%. It amounted to P179.84 Million in 2011 down from 
P224.44 Million in 2010. This is mainly due to the favorable weather and market conditions for our 



products in 2011. Our products were fast moving especially in the year-end which is our peak season. 
This contrasts to the situation in 2010 when the El Nino phenomenon affected the sales of our products 
which resulted in higher than anticipated levels of inventory in year-end 2010. 

 
Loans receivable amounted to P120.00 Million in 2011, there was no amount recorded in 2010. This 
account represents the amount loaned to Avestha Holding Corporation, which is an affiliate of the 

Company. The loan is intended as an advance for the planned purchase of the Company of Avestha’s 
properties. The loan is provided with a market rate of interest set at 6%, so as to compensate the 
Company for the loan until the purchase of the properties is finalized. 

 

Investment properties amounted to P134.15 Million in 2011, there was no amount recorded in 2010. 
These are the properties purchased by the Company, which are being used as collateral by the 
Company for loans. 

 
Property and equipment increased by P47.55 Million or 189%. It amounted to P72.77 Million in 2011 up 
from P25.22 Million in 2010. The increase represents amounts spent for the Company’s construction of 
Hog and Broiler farms. 

 
Trade payables decreased by P34.66 Million or 20%. It amounted to P134.70 Million in 2011 down from 
P169.36 Million in 2010. The decrease is mainly due to the fact that the Company takes advantage of 
cash discounts as much as possible. 

 
Loans payable decreased by P77.00 Million or 16%. The decrease is mainly due to the increased cash 
infusion from stockholders and also from cash internally generated from operations which has allowed 
the Company to lower its debt levels, while at the same time having enough funds for current 
operations and also pursue its expansion programs in Hog and Broiler farms. 

 
To clarify, the intended target expansion program for part of the additional cash infusion is the Hog 
and Broiler Farms. On the other hand, the expansion program relating to the establishment of a chain 
of Calata Retail Stores will be funded by the net proceeds of the Initial Public Offering. 

 
Advances from related parties amounted to P52.46 Million in 2011, there was no amount recorded in 
2010. This represents the amount loaned from stockholders which is intended to offset the amounts 
advanced by the Company to its affiliates with the intention that the Company’s funds are intact for its 
own operations and expansion programs. 

 
Dividends payable amounted to P25.00 Million, there was no amount recorded in 2010. This is the 
accrual of the dividend declared by the Company’s board of directors from the Company’s unrestricted 
retained earnings. 

 
Capital stock increased by P323.10 Million or 32,310%. The increase is due to the additional investment 
in the Company from the stockholders. As previously explained said capital infusion was useful in 
decreasing the loans payable by 16% and partially funding the Hog and Broiler Farm construction. 

 
Debt to equity decreased from 271.25 in 2010 to 0.98 in 2011 or a decrease of 270.27 or 27,579%. The 
increase is mainly due to the increase in stockholders’ equity from P1.73 Million in 2010 to P400.00 
Million in 2011. The increase in stockholders’ equity came from the additional investment infused by 
stockholders amounting to P323.10 Million which increased the paid up capital stock to P324.10 Million 
from only P1.00 Million the year before. The stockholders’ equity also increased due to the increase in 
retained earnings brought about by the net income earned by the Company during the year which 
amounted to P100.17 Million after taxes. The increase in retained earnings from the net income was 
partially offset by the declaration of dividend in 2011 amounting to P2.00 Million. 

 
Discussion and Representation on both Interim and Year End Audited Financial Statements 

 
There are no known trends or demands, commitments, events or uncertainties that will result in or 
that are reasonably likely to result in increasing or decreasing the Company’s liquidity in any material 
way. 

 
The Company does not anticipate having any cash flow or liquidity problems within the next twelve 
(12) months. 



 
The Company is not in default or breach of any note, loan, lease or other indebtedness or financing 
arrangement requiring it to make payments. No significant amount of the Company’s trade payables 
have not been paid within the stated trade terms. 

 

The Company does not foresee any event that will trigger direct or contingent financial obligation that 

is material to it, including any default or acceleration of an obligation. 

 
There are no material commitments for capital expenditures, events or uncertainties that have had or 
that are reasonably expected to have a material impact on the continuing operations of the Company. 

 
There are no known trends, events or uncertainties that have had or that are reasonably expected to 
have a material favorable or unfavorable impact on net sales or revenues or income from continuing 
operations. 

 
No significant elements of income or loss had arisen from the Company’s continuing operations. 

 
There are no other material changes in the Company’ financial position (5%) or more and condition that 
will warrant a more detailed discussion. Further, there are no material events and uncertainties 
known to management that would impact or change reported financial information and condition of the 
Company. 

 
There were no seasonal aspects that had a material effect on the financial condition or results of 
operations of the Company. 
 

 
LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES 

 
In the years 2011, 2012, 2013 and 2014 the Company’s primary source of liquidity was proceeds from 
sales and bank financing activities and also the proceeds of the Company’s IPO. Net cash from 
operating and financing activities were sufficient to cover the Company’s working capital and 
capital expenditure requirements in the years 2010, 2011, 2012, 2013 and 2014. The Company has 
credit lines with several of the top banks of the Philippines which gives it financial flexibility in its 
operations. 

 
The Company’s cash position as of March 31, 2015 amounted to P339.68 Million compared to 
P378.51 million as of Dec. 31, 2014. This is a decrease of P38.84 Million or 10%. 

 
The following table sets forth information from the Company’s pro forma statements of cash flows for 
the periods indicated: 

 
Cash Flows 

 
 March 31, 2015 Dec. 31, 2014 Dec. 31, 2013 Dec. 31, 2012 Dec. 31, 2011 

Net cash provided 
by (used in) 
operating activities 

(10,772,488) 144,644,425 198,885,916 127,225,605 302,478,444 

Net cash provided 

by (used in) 
investing activities 

(125,590) (281,478,957) (129,298,178) (257,813,354) (335,961,664) 

Net cash provided 
by (used in) 
financing activities 

(27,937,095) 70,385,377 (20,128,452) 321,302,708 219,165,977 

Beginning Cash 378,513,908 444,963,063 395,503,777 204,788,818 19,106,061 

Ending Cash 339,678,735 378,513,908 444,963,063 395,503,777 204,788,818 



Indebtedness 

 
Almost all of the Company’s bank financing are short term loans with average terms of 90 to 120 days 
with the exception of loans for the acquisition of Company vehicles.  
 

To date, the Company has never been in default in making principal and interest payments. 
 

 
KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 

 
The Company’ top five (5) key performance indicators are listed below: 
 

 March 31, Dec. 31, Dec. 31, Dec. 31, Dec. 31, Dec. 31, 

 
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 

 
Unaudited Audited Audited Audited Audited Audited 

 
            

Current Ratio1 1.04 0.99 1.24 1.24 1.11 0.91 

Debt to Equity 
Ratio2 

1.01 0.96 0.82 0.67 0.98 271.25 

Earnings per 
Share3 

0.10 0.35 0.25 0.32 0.31 33.84 

Earnings before 
Interest and 
Taxes4 

65,073,835 223,140,255 161,357,218 190,408,476 169,794,248 75,015,214 

Return on Equity5 4% 15% 12% 19% 50% 407% 

  
 

1 Current Assets / Current Liabilities 
2 Bank Loans/Stockholders’ Equity 
3 Net Income/Outstanding Shares 
4 Net Income plus Interest Expenses and Provision for Income Tax 
5 Net Income / Average Stockholders’ Equity 

 
These key indicators were chosen to provide Management with a measure of the Company’s financial 
strength (i.e., Current Ratio, Debt to Equity Ratio, and Earnings before Interest and Taxes) and the 
Company’s ability to maximize the value of its stockholders’ investment in the Company (i.e., Return 
on Equity, Earnings per Share). Current ratio shows the liquidity of the Company by measuring how 
much current assets it has over its current liabilities. The Debt to Equity Ratio indicates how much 
debt the Company has incurred for each amount of equity in the Company. A higher ratio means that 
the Company is more aggressive in its use of capital.  Earnings per share show how much the Company 
is earning for each share that is currently issued and outstanding. Earnings before interest and taxes 
indicate how much income the Company is generating from its entire operations before interest 
charges. 
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